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We may not have or be able to obtain or maintain sufficient and affordable insurance coverage, and without sufficient coverage
any claim brought against us could have a materially adverse effect on our business, financial condition or results of operations.
We run clinical trials through investigators that could be negligent through no fault of our own and which could affect patients,
cause potential liability claims against us and result in delayed or stopped clinical trials. We are required in many cases by
contractual obligations, to indemnify collaborators, partners, third party contractors, clinical investigators and institutions. These
indemnifications could result in a material impact due to product liability claims against us and / or these groups. We currently
carry $ 3. 0 million in product liability insurance, which we believe is appropriate for our clinical trials. Although we maintain
such insurance, any claim that may be brought against us could result in a court judgment or settlement in an amount that is not
covered, in whole or in part, by our insurance or that is in excess of the limits of our insurance coverage. Our insurance policies
also have various exclusions, and we may be subject to a product liability claim for which we have no coverage. We will have
to pay any amounts awarded by a court or negotiated in a settlement that exceed our coverage limitations or that are not covered
by our insurance, and we may not have, or be able to obtain, sufficient capital to pay such amounts. Testosterone is a Schedule
III substance under the Controlled Substances Act and any failure to comply with this Act or its state equivalents would have a
negative impact on our business. Testosterone is listed by the U. S. Drug Enforcement Agency, or DEA, as a Schedule III
substance under the Controlled Substances Act of 1970. The DEA classifies substances as Schedule I, II, III, IV or V substances,
with Schedule I substances considered to present the highest risk of substance abuse and Schedule V substances the lowest risk.
Scheduled substances are subject to DEA regulations relating to manufacturing, storage, distribution and physician prescription
procedures. For example, all regular Schedule III drug prescriptions must be signed by a physician and may not be refilled more
than six months after the date of the original prescription or more than five times unless renewed by the physician. Entities must
register annually with the DEA to manufacture, distribute, dispense, import, export and conduct research using controlled
substances. In addition, the DEA requires entities handling controlled substances to maintain records and file reports, follow
specific labeling and packaging requirements, and provide appropriate security measures to control against diversion of
controlled substances. Failure to follow these requirements can lead to significant civil and / or criminal penalties and possibly
even lead to a revocation of a DEA registration. Individual states also have controlled substances laws. State controlled
substances laws often mirror federal law, however because the states are separate jurisdictions, they may schedule products
separately. While some states automatically schedule a drug when the DEA does so, in other states there must be rulemaking or
legislative action, which could delay commercialization. Products containing controlled substances may generate public
controversy. As a result, these products may have their marketing approvals withdrawn. State and Federal legislatures and
administrative agencies may take additional action to combat a perceived misuse or overuse of such products. We may have to
dedicate resources to the defense and resolution of litigation. Securities legislation in the United States makes it relatively easy
for stockholders to sue companies. This can lead to frivolous lawsuits which take substantial time, money, resources and
attention or force us to settle such claims rather than seek adequate judicial remedy or dismissal of such claims. Historically,
securities class action litigation has often been brought against a company following a decline in the market price of its
securities. Biotechnology and pharmaceutical companies, including us, have experienced significant stock price volatility in
recent years, increasing the risk of such litigation. As-We have insurance that covers claims of this nature. However, as we
defend class action lawsuits or future patent infringement actions should they be filed, or if we are required to defend future
actions brought by shareholders, we may be required to pay substantial litigation costs and managerial attention and financial
resources may be diverted from business operations even if the outcome is in our favor. In addition, while our insurance carrier
may cover the costs of settling claims, the Company’ s capital resources are critical to its continued operations, and the payment
of litigation settlements and associated legal fees diverts these capital resources away from our operations, even if such amounts
do not have a material impact on our financial statements. On November 14, 2019, the Company and certain of its officers were
named as defendants in a purported shareholder class action lawsuit, Solomon Abady v. Lipocine Inc. et al., 2: 19- cv- 00906-
PMW, filed in the United District Court for the District of Utah. The complaint alleges that the defendants made false and / or
misleading statements and / or failed to disclose that our filing of the NDA for TLANDO to the FDA contained deficiencies and
as a result the defendants’ statements about our business and operations were false and misleading and / or lacked a reasonable
basis in violation of federal securities laws. The lawsuit seeks certification as a class action (for a purported class of purchasers
of the Company’ s securities from March 27, 2019 through November 8, 2019), compensatory damages in an unspecified
amount, and unspecified equitable or injunctive relief. We-have-insuranee-thateovers-elaims-ofthisnatare—The Company filed a
motion to dismiss the class action lawsuit on July 24, 2020. In response, the plaintiffs filed their response to the motion to
dismiss the class action lawsuit on September 22, 2020 and the Company filed its reply to its motion to dismiss on October 22,
2020. A hearing on the motion to dismiss occurred on January 12, 2022. On April 14, 2023, a judgment was issued ordering the
case dismissed with prejudice and closure of the action. Although this outcome was in favor of our current and former officers
and directors, we incurred litigation costs and expended managerlal resources defending ourselves against these allegations. In
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v way Ay A - Cyber security risks and the failure
to maintain the integrity of company, employee or guest data could expose us to data loss, litigation and liability, and our
reputation could be significantly harmed. We collect , and third parties collaborating on our clinical trials collect and retain ,
large volumes of data, including personally identifiable information regarding clinical trial participants and others, for business
purposes, including for regulatory, research and development and commercialization purposes, and our collaborators’ various
information technology systems enter, process, summarize and report such data. We also maintain personally identifiable
information about our employees. The integrity and protection of our Company, employee and clinical data is critical to our
business. We are subject to significant security and privacy regulations, as well as requirements imposed by government
regulation. Maintaining compliance with these evolving regulations and requirements could be difficult and may increase our
expenses. In addition, a penetrated or compromised data system or the intentional, inadvertent or negligent release or disclosure
of data could result in theft, loss or fraudulent or unlawful use of company, employee or clinical data which could harm our
reputation, disrupt our operations, or result in remedial and other costs, fines or lawsuits. Risks Related to Our Dependence on
Third Parties We may enter into license agreements and / or collaborations with third parties for the development and
commercialization of our drug candidates. If those collaborations, including, without limitation, our license arrangement with
Verity for the development and commercialization of TLANDO, are not successful, we may not be able to capitalize on the
market potential of these drug candidates and may have to alter our development and commercialization plans for our products.
Our drug development programs for our product candidates will require substantial additional cash to fund expenses. We have
not yet established any collaborative arrangements relating to the development or commercialization of LPCN 1154, LPCN
2401, LPCN 2101, LPCN 2203, LPCN 1144, LPCN 1148, or LPCN 1107. We have entered into the Verity License Agreement
for TLANDO and LPCN 1111 with respect to TRT in the U. S . and Canada . We intend to continue to develop our product
candidates in the United States with or without a partner although our ability to advance these product candidates will depend on
our capital resources and / or our ability to find a suitable partner to further develop our product candidates. In order to
commercialize our TLANDO product candidates in the United States and Canada, we have partnered with Verity with respect to
TLANDO and LPCN 1111 and we will likely look to establish partnership arrangements with respect to the development of
some of our other product candidates. We may also seek to enter into collaborative arrangements to develop and commercialize
our product candidates outside the United States and have partnered with SPC for South Korea and with Pharmalink for
the GCC countries for TRT . We will face significant competition in seeking appropriate collaborators and these
collaborations are complex and time- consuming to negotiate and document. We may not be able to negotiate collaborations on
acceptable terms or in a timely manner, or at all. If that were to occur, we may have to curtail the development or delay
commercialization of our product candidates in certain geographies, reduce the scope of our sales or marketing activities, reduce
the scope of our development plans, or increase our expenditures and undertake development or commercialization activities at
our own expense. If we elect to increase our expenditures to fund development or commercialization activities either inside or
outside of the United States on our own, we may need to obtain additional capital, which may not be available to us on
acceptable terms, or at all. To the extent we have, and if we do enter into any further such arrangements with any third parties,
we will likely have limited control over the amount and timing of resources that our partners dedicate to the development or
commercialization of our product candidates. On January 12, 2024, we entered into the Verity License Agreement with Verity,
pursuant to which we granted to Verity an exclusive, royalty- bearing, sublicensable right and license to develop and
commercialize our TLANDO and LPCN 1111 products with respect to TRT in the U. S. and Canada. Consequently, our ability
to generate any revenues from TLANDO with respect to TRT in the U. S. and Canada depends on the efforts of Verity to
commercialize TLANDO. We have very limited control over the amount and timing of resources that Verity dedicates to these
efforts. Our ability to generate revenues from this and other collaborative arrangements , including with SPC and Pharmalink,
will depend on our collaborators’ abilities and efforts to successfully perform the functions agreed to with them in these
arrangements. License agreements and / or collaborations involving our drug candidates, such as our agreement with Verity,
pose numerous risks to us, including the following: @ partners have significant discretion in determining the efforts and
resources that they will apply to these efforts and may not perform their obligations as expected; ® partners may de- emphasize
or not pursue development and commercialization of our drug candidates or may elect not to continue or renew development or
commercialization programs based on clinical trial results, changes in the partners’ strategic focus, including as a result of a sale
or disposition of a business unit or development function, or available funding or external factors such as an acquisition that
diverts resources or creates competing priorities; ® partners may delay clinical trials, provide insufficient funding for a clinical
trial program, stop a clinical trial or abandon a drug candidate, repeat or conduct new clinical trials or require a new formulation
of a drug candidate for clinical testing; ® partners could independently develop, or develop with third parties, products that
compete directly or indirectly with our products or drug candidates if the partners believe that competitive products are more



likely to be successfully developed or can be commercialized under terms that are more economically attractive than ours; @
partners may not be able to acquire and maintain supplier and manufacturer relationships necessary to successfully
commercialize our products; e a partner with marketing and distribution rights to multiple products may not commit sufficient
resources to the marketing and distribution of our product relative to other products; @ partners may not properly obtain,
maintain, defend or enforce our intellectual property rights or may use our proprietary information and intellectual property in
such a way as to invite litigation or other intellectual property related proceedings that could jeopardize or invalidate our
proprietary information and intellectual property or expose us to potential litigation or other intellectual property related
proceedings; e disputes may arise between our partners and us that result in the delay or termination of the research,
development or commercialization of our products or drug candidates or that result in costly litigation or arbitration that diverts
management attention and resources; ® agreements may be terminated and, if terminated, may result in a need for additional
capital to pursue further development or commercialization of the applicable drug candidates; ® agreements may not lead to
development or commercialization of drug candidates in the most efficient manner or at all; and e if a partner of ours were to be
involved in a business combination, the continued pursuit and emphasis on our product development or commercialization
program could be delayed, diminished or terminated. If our license arrangements with Verity, or any other or future license or
collaboration we may enter into, if any, are not successful, our business, financial condition, results of operations, prospects and
development and commercialization efforts may be adversely affected. Any termination or expiration of the Verity License
Agreement, or any other or future license or collaboration we may enter into, if any, could adversely affect us financially or
harm our business reputation, development and commercialization efforts. We rely upon third- party contractors and service
providers for the execution of some aspects of our development programs. Failure of these collaborators to provide services of a
suitable quality and within acceptable timeframes may cause the delay or failure of our development programs. We outsource
certain functions, tests and services to contract research organizations (“ CROs ), medical institutions and collaborators; and
also outsource manufacturing to collaborators and / or contract manufacturers (“ CMOs ). We also rely on third parties for
quality assurance, clinical monitoring, clinical data management and regulatory expertise. We may also engage a CRO to run all
aspects of a clinical trial on our behalf. There is no assurance that such individuals or organizations will be able to provide the
functions, tests, drug supply or services as agreed upon or in a quality fashion. Any failure to do so could cause us to suffer
significant delays in the development of our products or processes. Due to our reliance on CROs or other third parties to assist us
or who have historically assisted us in conducting clinical trials, we will be unable to directly control all aspects of our clinical
trials. We engaged a CRO to conduct our SOAR, DV and DF Phase 3 clinical studies for TLANDO, as well as the ABPM study
for TLANDO. Additionally, we utilized a CRO for the Phase 2 LiFT clinical study for LPCN 1144, the Phase 2 clinical study
for LPCN 1148 and the pilot , pivetal and future pivetatstudies for LPCN 1154. As a result, we have less direct control over the
conduct of our clinical trials, the timing and completion of the trials and the management of data developed through the trials
than if we were relying entirely upon our own staff. Communicating with outside parties can also be challenging, potentially
leading to mistakes as well as difficulties in coordinating activities. Outside parties, including CROs, may: @ have staffing
difficulties or disruptions; e fail to comply with contractual obligations; e experience regulatory compliance issues; ® undergo
changes in priorities or may become financially distressed; @ form relationships with other entities, some of which may be our
competitors; or ® be subject to manufacturing capacity limitations. These factors may materially adversely affect their
willingness or ability to conduct our trials in a manner acceptable to us. We may experience unexpected cost increases that are
beyond our control. Moreover, the FDA requires us to comply with GCP’ s for conducting, recording, and reporting the results
of clinical trials to assure that data and reported results are credible and accurate and that the rights, integrity and confidentiality
of trial participants are protected. Our reliance on third parties that we do not control does not relieve us of these responsibilities
and requirements. Problems with the timeliness or quality of the work of a CRO may lead us to seek to terminate the relationship
and use an alternative service provider. However, making this change may be costly and may delay our trials, and contractual
restrictions may make such a change difficult or impossible. If we must replace any CRO that is conducting our clinical trials,
our trials may have to be suspended until we find another CRO that offers comparable services. The time that it takes us to find
alternative organizations may cause a delay in the commercialization of our product candidates or may cause us to incur
significant expenses to replicate data that may be lost. Although we do not believe that any CRO on which we may rely will
offer services that are not available elsewhere, it may be difficult to find a replacement organization that can conduct our trials
in an acceptable manner and at an acceptable cost. Any delay in or inability to complete our clinical trials could significantly
compromise our ability to secure regulatory approval of our product candidates and preclude our ability to commercialize them,
thereby limiting or preventing our ability to generate revenue from their sales. We and our Eieensee-Licensees rely / will rely on
a single supplier for our supply of testosterone esters, the active pharmaceutical ingredient of TLANDO, LPCN 1111, LPCN
1148, and LPCN 1144, and the loss of this supplier could harm our business. We and our Eieensee-Licensees rely / will rely on
a single third- party supplier for our supply of testosterone esters, the active pharmaceutical ingredient of TLANDO, LPCN
1111, LPCN 1148, and LPCN 1144. Since there are only a limited number of testosterone esters suppliers in the world, if this
supplier ceases to provide us with testosterone esters, we or our Eteensee-Licensees may be unable to procure testosterone esters
on commercially favorable terms and / or may not be able to obtain testosterone esters in a timely manner. Furthermore, the
limited number of suppliers of testosterone esters may provide such companies with greater opportunity to raise their prices. If
we or our Hteensee-Licensees are unable to obtain testosterone esters in a timely manner and / or in sufficient quantities, our
ability to develop, and potentially commercialize, LPCN 1111, LPCN 1148, and LPCN 1144 may be adversely affected. In
addition, any increase in price for testosterone esters will likely reduce our potential gross margins for LPCN 1148 and LPCN
1144. We rely on limited suppliers for our supply of NAS, the active pharmaceutical ingredients of LPCN 1154, LPCN 2101,
and LPCN 2203 and the loss of these limited suppliers could harm our business. We rely on a limited third- party supplier for
our supply of NAS, the active pharmaceutical ingredients of LPCN 1154, LPCN 2101, and LPCN 2203. Since there are only a



limited number of NAS suppliers in the world, if a supplier ceases to provide us with NAS, we may be unable to procure NAS
on developmental or commercially favorable terms. Furthermore, the limited number of suppliers of NAS may provide such
suppliers with a greater opportunity to raise their prices. If we are unable to obtain NAS in a timely manner and / or in sufficient
quantities, our ability to develop and potentially commerecialize LPCN 1154, LPCN 2101, and LPCN 2203 may be adversely
affected. If we do not establish successful collaborations, we may have to alter our development and commercialization plans
for our products. Our drug development programs for our product candidates will require substantial additional cash to fund
expenses. We have not yet established any collaborative arrangements relating to the development or commercialization of
LPCN 1154, LPCN 1148, LPCN 1144, or LPCN 1107. We could ntend-te-continue to develop some of our product candidates
in the United States without a partner although our ability to advance these product candidates will depend on our capital
resources. However, in order to commercialize our product candidates in the United States, we will likely look to establish a
partnership or co- promotion arrangement with an established pharmaceutical company that has a sales force, collaborate on the
establishment of an internal sales force or build an internal sales force on our own. We may also seek to enter into collaborative
arrangements to develop and commercialize our product candidates outside the United States. We will face significant
competition in seeking appropriate collaborators and these collaborations are complex and time- consuming to negotiate and
document. We may not be able to negotiate collaborations on acceptable terms or in a timely manner, or at all. If that were to
occur, we may have to curtail the development or delay commercialization of our product candidates in certain geographies,
reduce the scope of our sales or marketing activities, reduce the scope of our commercialization plans, or increase our
expenditures and undertake development or commercialization activities at our own expense. If we elect to increase our
expenditures to fund development or commercialization activities either inside or outside of the United States on our own, we
may need to obtain additional capital, which may not be available to us on acceptable terms, or at all. If we are successful in
entering into collaborative arrangements and any of our collaborative partners do not devote sufficient time and resources to a
collaboration arrangement with us, we may not realize the potential commercial benefits of the arrangement, and our results of
operations may be materially adversely affected. In addition, if any future collaboration partner were to breach or terminate its
arrangements with us, the development and commercialization of our product candidates could be delayed, curtailed or
terminated because we may not have sufficient financial resources or capabilities to continue development and
commercialization of our product candidates on our own in such locations. Risks Related to Ownership of Our Common Stock
Our stock price could decline significantly based on the results and timing of clinical trials, and / or regulatory and other
decisions affecting our product candidates. Results of clinical trials and preclinical studies of our current and potential product
candidates may not be viewed favorably by us or third parties, including the FDA or other regulatory authorities, investors,
analysts and potential collaborators. The same may be true of how we design the clinical trials of our product candidates and
regulatory decisions affecting those clinical trials. Pharmaceutical company stock prices have declined significantly when such
results and decisions were unfavorable or perceived negatively or when a product candidate did not otherwise meet expectations.
The final results from our clinical development programs may be negative, may not meet expectations or may be perceived
negatively. The designs of our clinical trials (which may change significantly and be more expensive than currently anticipated
depending on our clinical results and regulatory decisions) may also be viewed negatively by third parties. We may not be
successful in completing these clinical trials on our projected timetable, if at all. In addition, we may never achieve FDA
approval for any of our product candidates other than TLANDO, which could cause our stock price to decline significantly and
have other significant adverse effects on our business. If we do not maintain effective internal controls over financial reporting
in the future, the accuracy and timeliness of our financial reporting may be adversely affected. The Sarbanes- Oxley Act
requires, among other things, that we assess the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting annually and
disclosure controls and procedures quarterly. In particular, we must perform system and process evaluation and testing of our
internal control over financial reporting to allow management to report on the effectiveness of our internal control over financial
reporting, as required by Section 404 of the Sarbanes- Oxley Act. If material weaknesses are identified in the future or we are
not able to comply with the requirements of Section 404 in a timely manner, our reported financial results could be materially
misstated, we could receive an adverse opinion regarding our internal controls over financial reporting from our accounting
firm, and we could be subject to investigations or sanctions by regulatory authorities, which would require additional financial
and management resources, and the market price of our stock could decline. We incur significant expenses in order to comply
with the requirements of being a public company in the United States. As a public company, we incur significantly more legal,
accounting and other expenses than as a private company. In addition, the Sarbanes- Oxley Act of 2002 and rules subseqtently
implemented by the SEC and U. S. stock exchanges impose numerous requirements on public companies, including requiring
changes in corporate governance practices. Also, the Exchange Act requires, among other things, that we file annual, quarterly
and current reports with respect to our business and operating results. Our management and other personnel will need to devote a
substantial amount of time to compliance with these laws and regulations. These requirements have increased and will continue
to increase our legal, accounting, and financial compliance costs and have made and will continue to make some activities more
time - consuming and costly. Our share price is expected to be volatile and may be influenced by numerous factors that are
beyond our control. A low share price and low market valuation may make it difficult to raise sufficient additional cash due to
the significant dilution to current stockholders. Market prices for shares of biotechnology and biopharmaceutical companies
such as ours are often volatile. The market price of our common stock may fluctuate significantly in response to a number of
factors, most of which we cannot control, including: e the success of the commercialization of TLANDO); e plans for, costs of,
progress of and results from clinical trials of our product candidates; ® the failure of our product candidates to receive FDA
approval ° regulatory uncertalnty in the TRT class ° F DA AdVlsory Commlttee meetlngs and related recommendatlons




language and / or Phase 4 study commitments; ® announcements of new products, technologies, commercial relationships,
acquisitions or other events by us or our competitors; ® our ability to license our products to third parties; @ failure to engage
with collaborators or build an internal sales force to commercialize our products should a product candidate other than
TLANDO receive FDA approval; e the success or failure of other TRT products or non- testosterone based testosterone therapy
products; e failure of our products, if approved, to achieve commercial success; ® fluctuations in stock market prices and trading
volumes of similar companies; ® general market conditions and overall fluctuations in U. S. equity markets; ® variations in our
quarterly operating results; ® changes in our financial guidance or securities analysts’ estimates of our financial performance; ®
changes in accounting principles; @ sales of large blocks of our common stock, including sales by our executive officers,
directors and significant stockholders; ® additions or departures of key personnel; ® discussion of us or our stock price by the
press and by online investor communities; ® our cash balance; and e other risks and uncertainties described in these risk factors.
In recent years, the stock of other biotechnology and biopharmaceutical companies has experienced extreme price fluctuations
that have been unrelated to the operating performance of the affected companies. There can be no assurance that the market price
of our shares of common stock will not experience significant fluctuations in the future, including fluctuations that are unrelated
to our performance. These fluctuations may result due to macroeconomic and world events, national or local events, general
perception of the biotechnology industry or to a lack of liquidity. In addition, other biotechnology companies or our competitors’
programs could have positive or negative results that impact their stock prices and their results, or stock fluctuations could have
a positive or negative impact on our stock price regardless of whether such impact is direct or not. Stockholders may not agree
with our business, scientific, clinical, commercial, or financial strategy, including additional dilutive financings, and may decide
to sell their shares or vote against shareholder proposals. Such actions could materially impact our stock price. In addition,
portfolio managers of funds or large investors can change or change their view on us and decide to sell our shares. These actions
could have a material impact on our stock price. In order to complete a financing, or for other business reasons, we may elect to
consolidate our shares of common stock. Investors may not agree with these actions and may sell our shares. We may have little
or no ability to impact or alter such decisions. The stock prices of many companies in the biotechnology industry have
experienced wide fluctuations that have often been unrelated to the operating performance of the companies. Following periods
of volatility in the market price of a company’ s securities, securities class action litigation often has been initiated against a
company. For example, on July 1, 2016, the Company and certain of its officers were named as defendants in a purported
shareholder class action lawsuit, David Lewis v. Lipocine Inc., et al., filed in the United States District Court for the District of
New Jersey. This initial action was followed by additional lawsuits also filed in the District of New Jersey. David Lewis v
Lipocine Inc., et al. was ultimately settled. Additionally on November 14, 2019, the Company and certain of its officers were
named as defendants in a purported shareholder class action lawsuit, Solomon Abady v. Lipocine Inc. et al., 2: 19- cv- 00906-
PMW, filed in the United District Court for the District of Utah. This initial action was followed by additional lawsuits also filed
in the United States District Court for the District of Utah. Any future class action litigation that may be initiated against us may
result in us incurring substantial costs and our management’ s attention may be diverted from our operations, which could
significantly harm our business. In addition, such litigation could lead to increased volatility in our share price. Fhre-valae-ofour
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valne-of-the-hability—We may not be able to maintain our listing on the Nasdaq Capital Market, which would
adversely affect the price and liquidity of our common stock. As a small capitalization pharmaceutical company, the price of our
common shares has been, and is likely to continue to be, highly volatile. Any announcements concerning us or our competitors,
clinical trial results, quarterly variations in operating results, introduction of new products, delays in the introduction of new
products or changes in product pricing policies by us or our competitors, acquisition or loss of significant customers, partners
and suppliers, changes in earnings estimates or our ratings by analysts, regulatory developments, or fluctuations in the economy
or general market conditions, among other factors, could cause the market price of our common shares to fluctuate substantially.
There can be no assurance that the market price of our common shares will not decline below its current price or that it will not
experience significant fluctuations in the future, including fluctuations that are unrelated to our performance. Currently our
common stock is quoted on the NASBAQ-Nasdaq Capital Market under the symbol “ LPCN . ” —=We must satisfy certain
minimum listing maintenance requirements to maintain the NASBAQ-Nasdaq Capital Market quotation, including certain




governance requirements and a series of financial tests relating to stockholders’ equity or net income or market value, public
float, number of market makers and stockholders, market capitalization, and maintaining a minimum bid price of $ 1. 00 per
share. If Nasdaq delists our common stock from trading on its exchange and we are not able to list our securities on another
national securities exchange, we expect our securities could be quoted on an over- the- counter market. If this were to occur, we
could face significant material adverse consequences, including: e a limited availability of market quotations for our securities;
e reduced liquidity for our securities; ® a determination that our common stock is a “ penny stock ” which will require brokers
trading in our common stock to adhere to more stringent rules and possibly result in a reduced level of trading activity in the
secondary trading market for our securities; ® a limited amount of news and analyst coverage; and e a decreased ability to issue
additional securities or obtain additional financing in the future. The National Securities Markets Improvement Act of 1996,
which is a federal statute, prevents or preempts the states from regulating the sale of certain securities, which are referred to as “
covered securities. ”” If our common stock continues to be listed on NASBAQ-Nasdaq , our common stock will be a covered
security. Although the states are preempted from regulating the sale of our securities, the federal statute does allow the states to
investigate companies if there is a suspicion of fraud, and, if there is a finding of fraudulent activity, then the states can regulate
or bar the sale of covered securities in a particular case. Anti- takeover provisions in our amended and restated certificate of
incorporation and our amended and restated bylaws, as well as provisions of Delaware law and our stockholder rights plan,
might discourage, delay or prevent a change in control of our Company or changes in our Board of Directors or management
and, therefore, depress the trading price of our common stock. Our amended and restated certificate of incorporation, amended
and restated bylaws and Delaware law contain provisions that may depress the market price of our common stock by acting to
discourage, delay or prevent a merger, acquisition or other change in control that stockholders may consider favorable, including
transactions in which stockholders might otherwise receive a premium for their shares of our common stock. These provisions
may also prevent or frustrate attempts by our stockholders to replace or remove members of our Board of Directors or our
management. Our corporate governance documents include provisions: @ limiting the ability of our stockholders to call and
bring business before special meetings and to take action by written consent in lieu of a meeting; ® requiring advance notice of
stockholder proposals for business to be conducted at meetings of our stockholders and for nominations of candidates for
election to our Board of Directors; @ authorizing blank check preferred stock, which could be issued with voting, liquidation,
dividend and other rights superior to our common stock; and e limiting the liability of, and providing indemnification to, our
directors and officers. As a Delaware corporation, we are also subject to provisions of Delaware law, including Section 203 of
the Delaware General Corporation Law, which limits the ability of stockholders owning in excess of 15 % of our outstanding
voting stock from engaging in certain business combinations with us. Any provision of our amended and restated certificate of
incorporation, amended and restated bylaws or Delaware law that has the effect of delaying or deterring a change in control
could limit the opportunity for our stockholders to receive a premium for their shares of our common stock, and could also
affect the price that some investors are willing to pay for our common stock. Additionally, on Nevember-5-October 22 , 202+
2024 , we adopted an amended and restated stockholder rights plan that would cause substantial dilution to, and substantially
increase the costs paid by, a stockholder who attempts to acquire us on terms not approved by our board. The intent of the
stockholder rights plan is to protect our stockholders’ interests by encouraging anyone seeking control of our Company to
negotiate with our board. However, our stockholder rights plan could make it more difficult for a third party to acquire us
without the consent of our board, even if doing so may be beneficial to our stockholders. This plan may discourage, delay or
prevent a tender offer or takeover attempt, including offers or attempts that could result in a premium over the market price of
our common stock. This plan could reduce the price that stockholders might be willing to pay for shares of our common stock in
the future. Furthermore, the anti- takeover provisions of our stockholder rights plan may entrench management and make it
more dlfﬁcult to replace management even if the stockholders c0n51der it beneﬁmal to do so. fPhe—eeﬁaﬁaeﬁ—waﬁaﬁfs—lsﬁied—m

to pay d1v1dends on our common stock and investors must look solely to stock appre(:1at10n for a return on their investment in us.
We do not anticipate paying any cash dividends on our common stock in the foreseeable future. We currently intend to retain all
future earnings to fund the development and growth of our business. Any payment of future dividends will be at the discretion of
our board of directors and will depend on, among other things, our earnings, financial condition, capital requirements, level of
indebtedness, statutory and contractual restrictions applying to the payment of dividends and other considerations that the board
of directors deems relevant. Investors may need to rely on sales of their common stock after price appreciation, which may
never occur, as the only way to realize a return on their investment. Investors seeking cash dividends should not purchase our
common stock. Our management and directors will be able to exert influence over our affairs. As of December 31, 2623-2024 ,
our executive officers and directors beneficially owned approximately 5-6 . 9-3 % of our common stock. These stockholders, if
they act together, may be able to influence our management and affairs and all matters requiring stockholder approval, including
significant corporate transactions. This concentration of ownership may have the effect of delaying or preventing a change in
control and might affect the market price of our common stock. The market price of our common stock has been volatile over
the past year and may continue to be volatile. The market price and trading volume of our common stock has been volatile over



the past year, and it may continue to be volatile. During 2623-2024 , our common stock has traded as low as $ 2. 36-83 and as
high as $ 9-10 . 86-69 per share. We cannot predict the price at which our common stock will trade in the future, and it may
decline. The price at which our common stock trades may fluctuate significantly and may be influenced by many factors,
including our financial results; developments generally affecting our industry; general economic, industry and market
conditions; the depth and liquidity of the market for our common stock; investor perceptions of our business; reports by industry
analysts; announcements by other market participants, including, among others, investors, our competitors, and our customers;
regulatory action affecting our business; and the impact of other *“ Risk Factors ” discussed herein and in our Annual Report. In
addition, changes in the trading price of our common stock may be inconsistent with our operating results and outlook. The
volatility of the market price of our common stock may adversely affect investors’ ability to purchase or sell shares of our
common stock. If securities or industry analysts do not publish research or publish inaccurate or unfavorable research about our
business, our stock price could decline. The trading market for our common stock will depend in part on the research and reports
that securities or industry analysts publish about us or our business. We currently only have limited securities and industry
analysts providing research coverage of our Company and may never obtain additional research coverage by securities and
industry analysts. If no additional securities or industry analysts commence coverage of our Company or if current securities
analyst coverage of our Company ceases, the trading price for our stock could be negatively impacted. If the analysts
downgrade our stock or publish inaccurate or unfavorable research about our business, our stock price would likely decline. If
analysts cease coverage of us or fail to publish reports on us regularly, demand for our stock could decrease, which could cause
our stock price and trading volume to decline. Risks Relating to Our Financial Position and Capital Requirements We will need
substantial additional capital in the future. If additional capital is not available, we will have to delay, reduce or cease
operations. We will need to raise additional capital to continue to fund our operations. Our future capital requirements may be
substantial and will depend on many factors including: ® market conditions for raising capital, particularly for life science
companies; ® current and future clinical trials for our product candidates, including for LPCN 1154, LPCN 2401, LPCN 2101,
LPCN 2203 and LPCN 1148; e regulatory actions of the FDA; ® the scope, size, rate of progress, results and costs of
completing ongoing clinical trials and development plans with our product candidates; @ the cost, timing and outcomes of our
efforts to obtain marketing approval for our product candidates in the United States; ® payments received under any current or
future license agreements, strategic partnerships or collaborations; @ the cost of filing, prosecuting and enforcing patent claims;
e the costs associated with commercializing our product candidates if we receive marketing approval for product candidates
other than TLANDO, including the cost and timing of developing internal sales and marketing capabilities or entering into
strategic collaborations to market and sell our products; e the costs of on- going and future litigation; and e funding additional
product line expansions. We believe that our existing capital resources, together with interest thereon, will be sufficient to meet
our projected operating requirements through at least March 31, 26252026 . We have based this estimate on assumptions that
may prove to be wrong, and we could utilize our available capital resources sooner than we currently expect. While we believe
we have sufficient liquidity and capital resources to fund our projected operating requirements through at least March 31, 2625
2026 , we will need to raise additional capital at some point through the equity or debt markets or through out- licensing
activities, either before or after March 31, 2825-2026 , to support our operations, the on- going clinical development of our
product candidates, and compliance with regulatory requirements. If the Company is unsuccessful in raising additional capital,
its ability to continue as a going concern will become a risk. Further, our operating plan may change, and we may need
additional funds to meet operational needs and capital requirements for product development, regulatory compliance, and
clinical trial activities sooner than planned. In addition, our capital resources may be consumed more rapidly if we pursue
additional clinical studies for LPCN 1154, LPCN 2401, LPCN 2101, LPCN 2203, LPCN 1148, LPCN 1144, and LPCN 1107.
Conversely, our capital resources could last longer if we reduce expenses, reduce the number of activities currently
contemplated under our operating plan or if we terminate or suspend on- going clinical studies. Funding may not be available to
us on favorable terms, or at all. Also, market conditions may prevent us from accessing the debt and equity capital markets,
including sales of our common stock through the ATM Offering (as defined below). If we are unable to obtain adequate
financing when needed, we may have to delay, reduce the scope of or suspend one or more of our clinical studies, research and
development programs or, if any of our product candidates other than TLANDO receive approval from the FDA,
commercialization efforts. We may seek to raise any necessary additional capital through a combination of public or private
equity offerings, including the ATM Offering, debt financings, collaborations, strategic alliances, licensing arrangements and
other marketing and distribution arrangements. These arrangements may not be available to us or available on terms favorable to
us. To the extent that we raise additional capital through marketing and distribution arrangements, other collaborations, strategic
alliances or licensing arrangements with third parties, we may have to relinquish valuable rights to our product candidates, future
revenue streams, research programs or product candidates or grant licenses on terms that may not be favorable to us. If we do
raise additional capital through public or private equity offerings, the ownership interest of our existing stockholders will be
diluted, and the terms of these securities may include liquidation or other preferences, warrants or other terms that adversely
affect our stockholders’ rights or further complicate raising additional capital in the future. If we raise additional capital through
debt financing, we may be subject to covenants limiting or restricting our ability to take specific actions, such as incurring
additional debt, making capital expenditures or declaring dividends. If we are unable, for any reason, to raise needed capital, we
will have to reduce costs, delay research and development programs, liquidate assets, dispose of rights, commercialize products
or product candidates earlier than planned or on less favorable terms than desired, or reduce or cease operations. Raising
additional capital may cause dilution to our existing stockholders, restrict our operations, or require us to relinquish rights. We
may seek additional capital through a combination of private and public equity offerings, debt financings, collaborations, and
strategic and licensing arrangements. To the extent that we raise additional capital through the sale of common stock or
securities convertible or exchangeable into common stock, current stockholders’ ownership interest in the Company will be



diluted. In addition, the terms may include liquidation or other preferences that materially adversely affect their rights as a
stockholder. Debt financing, if available, would increase our fixed payment obligations and may involve agreements that
include covenants limiting or restricting our ability to take specific actions, such as incurring additional debt, making capital
expenditures or declaring dividends. If we raise additional funds through collaboration, strategic alliance and licensing
arrangements with third parties, we may have to relinquish valuable rights to our product candidates, our intellectual property,
future revenue streams or grant licenses on terms that are not favorable to us. We cannot predict when we will generate product
revenues and may never achieve or maintain profitability. Our ability to become profitable depends upon our ability to generate
revenue from product sales and / or licensing agreements. To date, we have not generated any significant revenue from product
sales of TLANDO or our other drug candidates in the current pipeline, and we do not know when, or if, we will generate
significant revenue from product sales. Our ability to generate revenue depends on a number of factors, including, but not
limited to, our ability to: e other than for TLANDO in the U. S., obtain U. S. and foreign marketing approval for our product
candidates; ® commercialize our product candidates by developing a sales force and / or entering into licensing agreements or
collaborations with partners / third parties, either before or after obtaining marketing approval for our product candidates; and
achieve market acceptance of our product candidates in the medical community and with third- party payors. Even if our
product candidates other than TLANDO are approved for commercial sale, we expect to incur significant costs as we prepare to
commercialize them. Even if we receive FDA approval for our product candidates, they may not be commercially successful
drugs. We may not achieve profitability soon after generating product sales, if ever. If we are unable to generate product
revenue, we will not become profitable and may be unable to continue operations without continued funding. Accordingly, the
likelihood of our success must be evaluated in light of many potential challenges and variables associated with an early- stage
drug development company, many of which are outside of our control, and past operating or financial results should not be
relied on as an indication of future results. If one or more of our product candidates is approved for commercial sale and we
retain commercial rights, we anticipate incurring significant costs associated with commercializing any such approved product
candidate. Therefore, even if we are able to generate revenues from the sale of any approved product, we may never become
profitable. Because of the numerous risks and uncertainties associated with pharmaceutical product development, we are unable
to predict the timing or amount of expenses and when we will be able to achieve or maintain profitability, if ever. We have
incurred significant operating losses in most years since our inception and anticipate that we will incur continued losses for the
foreseeable future. We have focused a significant portion of our efforts on developing TLANDO and more recently on our oral
neuroactive steroids LPCN 1154 and-, LPCN 2101, and LPCN 2203, in addition to LPCN 2401, and LPCN 1148 ;and-=PEN
+H44-. We have funded our operations to date through sales of our equity securities, debt, and payments received under our
license and collaboration arrangements. We have incurred losses in most years since our inception. As of December 31, 2823
2024, we had an accumulated deficit of § 199. 8 million. Substantially all of our operating losses resulted from costs incurred in
connection with our research and development programs and from general and administrative costs associated with our
operations. These losses, combined with expected future losses, have had and will continue to have an adverse effect on our
stockholders’ equity and working capital. We expect our research and development expenses to increase in connection with
clinical trials associated with our oral neuroactive steroids LPCN 1154, LPCN 2101, and LPCN 2203, and possible trials
associated with LPCN 2401 and / or LPCN 1148 ;andPENH44-and RPENO7-, if further clinical trials are initiated. As a
result, we expect to continue to incur significant operating losses for the foreseeable future as we evaluate further clinical
development of LPCN 1154, LPCN 2401, LPCN 2101, LPCN 2203, and LPCN 1148 s ERPENH44-andERPENHO67-and our
other programs and continued research efforts. Because of the numerous risks and uncertainties associated with developing
pharmaceutical products, we are unable to predict the extent of any future losses or when we will become profitable, if at all.
Our operating results may fluctuate significantly, and any failure to meet financial expectations may disappoint securities
analysts or investors and result in a decline in the price of our securities. We have a history of operating losses. Our operating
results have fluctuated in the past and are likely to do so in the future. These fluctuations could cause our share price to decline.
Due to fluctuations in our operating results, we believe that period- to- period comparisons of our results are not indicative of
our future performance. It is possible that in some future quarter or quarters, our operating results will be above or below the
expectations of securities analysts or investors. In this case, the price of our securities could decline. Risks Relating to Our
Intellectual Property Our success depends in part on our ability to protect our intellectual property. It is difficult and costly to
protect our proprietary rights and technology, and we may not be able to ensure their protection. Our commercial success will
depend in large part on obtaining and maintaining patent, trademark and trade secret protection of our product candidates, their
respective formulations, methods used to manufacture them and methods of treatment, as well as successfully defending these
patents against third party challenges. Our ability to stop unauthorized third parties from making, using, selling, offering to sell,
or importing our product candidates, once commercialized, is dependent upon the extent to which we have rights under valid and
enforceable patents or trade secrets that cover these products and activities. The patent positions of pharmaceutical,
biopharmaceutical and related companies can be highly uncertain and involve complex legal and factual questions for which
important legal principles remain unresolved. No consistent policy regarding the breadth of claims allowed in patents in these
fields has emerged to date in the United States. There have been changes regarding how patent laws are interpreted, and both the
United States Patent and Trademark Office (“ USPTO ”) and Congress have enacted radical changes to the patent system. We
cannot accurately predict future changes in the interpretation of patent laws or changes to patent laws which might be enacted
into law. Those changes may materially affect our patents, our ability to obtain patents and / or the patents and applications of
our collaborators and licensors. The patent situation in these fields outside the United States is even more uncertain. Changes in
either the patent laws or in interpretations of patent laws in the United States and other countries may diminish the value of our
intellectual property or narrow the scope of our patent protection. Accordingly, we cannot predict the breadth of claims that may
be allowed or enforced in the patents we own or which we license or third- party patents. The degree of future protection for our



proprietary rights is uncertain because legal means afford only limited protection and may not adequately protect our rights or
permit us to gain or keep a competitive advantage. For example: ® others may be able to make or use compounds that are the
same or similar to the pharmaceutical compounds used in our product candidates but that are not covered by the claims of our
patents; e the Active Pharmaceutical Ingredients (“ APIs ™) in our licensed product TLANDO and current product candidates
LPCN 1154, LPCN 2401 , LPCN 1148, LPCN 1144, LPCN 1111, and LPCN 1107 are, or may soon become, commercially
available in generic drug products, and no patent protection may be available without regard to formulation or method of use; ®
we may not be able to detect infringement against our owned or licensed patents, which may be especially difficult for
manufacturing processes or formulation patents; ® we might not have been the first to make the inventions covered by our
issued patents or pending patent applications or those we license; ® we might not have been the first to file patent applications
for these inventions; @ others may independently develop similar or alternative technologies or duplicate any of our
technologies; @ it is possible that our pending patent applications or those of our licensor will not result in issued patents; ® it is
possible that there are dominating patents to any of our product candidates of which we are not aware; e it is possible that there
are prior public disclosures that could invalidate our patents, or parts of our patents, of which we are not aware; ® it is possible
that others may circumvent our owned or licensed patents; ® it is possible that there are unpublished applications or other patent
applications maintained in secrecy that may issue later than our patents / applications but may have priority dates that are earlier
than our priority dates and may have claims covering our products or technology similar to ours; e the laws of foreign countries
may not protect our proprietary rights to the same extent as the laws of the United States; ® the claims of our owned or licensed
issued patents or patent applications, if and when issued, may not cover our product candidates; ® our issued patents or those of
our licensor may not provide us with any competitive advantages, or may be narrowed in scope, be held invalid or unenforceable
as a result of legal challenges by third parties; ® our licensor or licensees as the case may be, who have access to our patents,
may attempt to enforce our owned or licensed patents, which if unsuccessful, may result in narrower scope of protection of our
owned or licensed patents or our owned or licensed patents becoming invalid or unenforceable; ® we may not develop additional
proprietary technologies for which we can obtain patent protection; or e the patents of others may have an adverse effect on our
business. We also may rely on trade secrets to protect our technology, especially where we do not believe patent protection is
appropriate or obtainable. However, trade secrets are difficult to protect, and we have limited control over the protection of trade
secrets used by our collaborators and suppliers. Although we use reasonable efforts to protect our trade secrets, our employees,
consultants, contractors, outside scientific collaborators and other advisors may unintentionally or willfully disclose our
information to competitors. Enforcing a claim that a third party illegally obtained and is using for any of our trade secrets is
expensive and time consuming, and the outcome is unpredictable. In addition, courts outside the United States are sometimes
less willing to protect trade secrets. Moreover, our competitors may independently develop equivalent knowledge, methods, and
know- how. If our confidential or proprietary information is divulged to or acquired by third parties, including our competitors,
our competitive position in the marketplace will be harmed and our ability to successfully penetrate our target markets could be
severely compromised. If any of our owned or licensed patents are found to be invalid or unenforceable, or if we are otherwise
unable to adequately protect our rights, it could have a material adverse impact on our business and our ability to commercialize
or license our technology and products. Additionally, we currently do not have patent protection for some of our product
candidates in many countries, including large territories such as India, Russia, and China, and we will be unable to prevent
unauthorized third parties from using our intellectual property in those countries unless we can file patent applications and
obtain patents in those countries that cover our product candidates. Likewise, our United States patents covering certain
technology used in our product candidates, including TLANDO, are expected to expire on various dates through 26442042 .
Upon the expiration of these patents, we will lose the right to exclude others from practicing these inventions to the extent that
at those times we have no additional issued patents to protect our product candidates, including TLANDO. Additionally, if these
are our only patents listed in the FDA Orange Book, should we have an FDA- approved and marketed product at that time, their
expiration will mean that we lose certain advantages that come with Orange Book listing of patents. The expiration of these
patents could also have a similar material adverse effect on our business, results of operations, financial condition and prospects.
Moreover, if we are unable to commence or continue any action relating to the defense of our patents, we may be unable to
protect our product candidates. If we do not obtain additional protection under the Drug Price Competition and Patent Term
Restoration Act and similar foreign legislation by extending the patent terms and obtaining data exclusivity for our product
candidates, our business may be materially harmed. Depending upon the timing, duration and specifics of FDA marketing
approval of our product candidates, one or more of our U. S. patents may be eligible for limited patent term restoration under the
Drug Price Competition and Patent Term Restoration Act of 1984, referred to as the Hatch- Waxman Act. The Hatch- Waxman
Act permits a patent restoration term of up to five years as compensation for patent term lost during product development and
the FDA regulatory review process. However, we may not be granted an extension because of, for example, failing to apply
within applicable deadlines, failing to apply prior to expiration of relevant patents or competitor’ s prior product launch or
otherwise failing to satisfy applicable requirements. Moreover, the applicable time period or the scope of patent protection
afforded could be less than we request. If we are unable to obtain patent term extension or restoration or the term of any such
extension is less than we request, our competitors may obtain approval of competing products following our patent expiration,
and our ability to generate revenues could be materially adversely affected. We may incur substantial costs as a result of
litigation or other proceedings relating to patent and other intellectual property rights, and we may be unable to protect our rights
to our products and technology. If we or our collaborators choose to go to court to stop a third party from using the inventions
claimed in our owned or licensed patents, that third party may ask a court to rule that the patents are invalid and should not be
enforced against that third party. These lawsuits are expensive and would consume time and other resources, including financial
resources, even if we were successful in stopping the infringement of these patents. In addition, there is a risk that a court will
decide that these patents are not valid or not enforceable and that we do not have the right to stop others from using the



inventions. There is also the risk that, even if the validity of these patents is not challenged or is upheld, the court will refuse to
stop the third party on the ground that such third- party’ s activities do not infringe on our owned or licensed patents. In addition,
the U. S. Supreme Court has changed and continues to change some standards relating to the granting of patents and assessing
the validity of patents. As a consequence, issued patents may be found to contain invalid claims according to the newly revised
standards. Some of our owned or licensed patents may be subject to challenge and subsequent invalidation or significant
narrowing of claim scope in a reexamination or other proceeding before the USPTO, or during litigation, under the revised
criteria which make it more difficult to obtain or maintain patents. While our in- licensed patents and applications are not
currently used in our product candidates, should we develop other product candidates that are covered by this intellectual
property, we may rely on our licensor to file and prosecute patent applications and maintain patents and otherwise protect the
intellectual property we license from them. Our licensor has retained the first right, but not the obligation, to initiate an
infringement proceeding against a third- party infringer of the intellectual property licensed to us, and enforcement of our in-
licensed patents or defense of any claims asserting the invalidity or unenforceability of these patents would also be subject to the
control or cooperation of our licensor. It is possible that our licensor’ s defense activities may be less vigorous than had we
conducted the defense ourselves. We also license our patent portfolio, including U. S. and foreign patents and patent
applications that cover TLANDO and our other product candidates, to third parties for their respective products and product
candidates. Under our agreements with our licensees, we have the right, but not the obligation, to enforce our current and future
licensed patents against infringers of our licensees. In certain cases, our licensees may have primary enforcement rights and we
have the obligation to cooperate. In the event of an enforcement action against infringers of our licensees, our licensees might
not have the interest or resources to successfully preserve the patents, the infringers may countersue, and as a result our patents
may be found invalid or unenforceable or of a narrower scope of coverage and leave us with no patent protection for TLANDO
and our other product candidates. We may be subject to a third- party pre- issuance submission of prior art to the USPTO, or
become involved in opposition, derivation, reexamination, inter partes review, post- grant review or interference proceedings
challenging our owned or licensed patent rights or the patent rights of others. An adverse determination in any such submission,
proceeding or litigation could reduce the scope of, or invalidate, our owned or licensed patent rights, allow third parties to
commercialize our technology or products and compete directly with us, without payment to us, or result in our inability to
manufacture or commercialize products without infringing third party patent rights. In addition, if the breadth or strength of
protection provided by our patents and patent applications is threatened, it could dissuade companies from collaborating with us
to license, develop or commercialize current or future product candidates and impair our ability to raise needed capital. If we are
required to defend patent infringement actions brought by other third parties, or if we sue to protect our own patent rights or
otherwise to protect our proprietary information and to prevent its disclosure, we may be required to pay substantial litigation
costs and managerial attention and financial resources may be diverted from business operations even if the outcome is in our
favor. If we are sued for infringing intellectual property rights of third parties, it will be costly and time consuming, and an
unfavorable outcome in that litigation would have a material adverse effect on our business. Our commercial success depends
upon our ability and the ability of our collaborators to develop, manufacture, market and sell our product candidates and use our
proprietary technologies without infringing the proprietary rights of third parties. Numerous U. S. and foreign patents and
pending patent applications, which are owned by third parties, exist in the fields relating to our product candidates. As the
biotechnology, pharmaceutical, and related industries expand and more patents are issued, the risk increases that others may
assert that our product or product candidates infringe the patent rights of others. Moreover, it is not always clear to industry
participants, including us, which patents cover various types of drugs, products or their formulations or methods of use. Thus,
because of the large number of patents issued and patent applications filed in our fields, there may be a risk that third parties
may allege they have patent rights encompassing our product, product candidates, technology, or methods. For example, on
November 2, 2015, Clarus Therapeutics Holdings, Inc. (Clarus) filed a complaint against us in the United States District Court
for the District of Delaware alleging that TLANDO would infringe the Clarus 428 Patent, and the complaint sought damages,
declaratory and injunctive relief. On October 6, 2016, United States District Court of the District of Delaware granted our
motion to dismiss the lawsuit filed by Clarus, because at the time there was no actionable infringement on Clarus’ 428 patent. In
addition, there may be issued patents of third parties of which we are currently unaware, that are infringed or are alleged to be
infringed by our product candidates or proprietary technologies. Because some patent applications in the United States may be
maintained in secrecy until the patents are issued, because patent applications in the United States and many foreign
jurisdictions are typically not published until eighteen months after filing, and because publications in the scientific literature
often lag behind actual discoveries, we cannot be certain that others have not filed patent applications for technology covered by
our or our licensor’ s patents or our pending applications, or that we were the first to invent the technology. Our competitors
may have filed, and may in the future file, patent applications covering our products or technology similar to ours. Any such
patent application may have priority over our owned or licensed patent applications or patents, which could further require us to
obtain rights to issued patents covering such technologies. If another party has filed a U. S. patent application on inventions
similar to those owned or licensed by us, we may have to participate in an interference proceeding declared by the USPTO to
determine priority of invention in the United States. If another party has an allowed reason to question the validity of our owned
or licensed U. S. patents, the third party can request that the USPTO reexamine the patent claims, which may result in a loss of
scope of some claims or a loss of the entire patent. In addition to potential infringement claims, interference and reexamination
proceedings, we may become a party to patent opposition proceedings in the European Patent Office or post- grant proceedings
in the United States where either our patents are challenged, or we are challenging the patents of others. The costs of these
proceedings could be substantial, and it is possible that such efforts would be unsuccessful, for example if the other party had
independently arrived at the same or similar invention prior to our invention, resulting in a loss of our U. S. patent position with
respect to such inventions. We may be exposed to, or threatened with, future litigation by third parties having patent or other



intellectual property rights alleging that our product candidates and / or proprietary technologies infringe their intellectual
property rights. These lawsuits are costly and could adversely affect our results of operations and divert the attention of
managerial and technical personnel. There is a risk that a court would decide that we or our commercialization partners are
infringing the third party’ s patents and would order us or our partners to stop the activities covered by the patents. In addition,
there is a risk that a court will order us or our partners to pay the other party damages for having violated the other party’ s
patents. If a third- party’ s patent was found to cover our product candidates, proprietary technologies or their uses, we or our
collaborators could be enjoined by a court and required to pay damages and could be unable to commercialize any one or more
of our product candidates or use our proprietary technologies unless we or they obtain a license to the patent. A license may not
be available to us or our collaborators on acceptable terms, if at all. In addition, during litigation, the patent holder could obtain
a preliminary injunction or other equitable relief which could prohibit us from making, using or selling our products,
technologies or methods pending a trial on the merits, which could be years away. There is a substantial amount of litigation
involving patent and other intellectual property rights in the biotechnology, pharmaceutical, and related industries generally. If a
third- party claims that we or our collaborators infringe its intellectual property rights, we may face a number of issues,
including, but not limited to: e infringement and other intellectual property claims which, regardless of merit, may be expensive
and time- consuming to litigate and may divert our management’ s attention from our core business; ® substantial damages for
infringement, which we may have to pay if a court decides that the product at issue infringes on or violates the third party’ s
rights, and if the court finds that the infringement was willful, we could be ordered to pay treble damages and the patent owner’
s attorneys’ fees; ® a court prohibiting us from selling or licensing the product unless the third- party licenses its product rights
to us, which it is not required to do; e if a license is available from a third party, we may have to pay substantial royalties,
upfront fees and / or grant cross- licenses to intellectual property rights for our products; and e redesigning our products or
processes so they do not infringe, which may not be possible or may require substantial monetary expenditures and time. Some
of our competitors may be able to sustain the costs of complex patent litigation more effectively than we can because they have
substantially greater resources. In addition, any uncertainties resulting from the initiation and continuation of any litigation
could have a material adverse effect on our ability to raise the funds necessary to continue our operations or otherwise have a
material adverse effect on our business, results of operations, financial condition, and prospects. Although we own worldwide
rights to our product candidates, we do not have patent protection for the product candidates in a significant number of countries,
and we will be unable to prevent infringement in those countries. Our patent portfolio related to our product candidates includes
patents in the United States and other foreign countries. The covered technology and the scope of coverage varies from country
to country. For those countries where we do not have granted patents, we have no ability to prevent the unauthorized use of our
intellectual property, and third parties in those countries may be able to make, use, or sell products identical to, or substantially
similar to our product candidates. Obtaining and maintaining our patent protection depends on compliance with various
procedural, document submission, fee payment and other requirements imposed by governmental patent agencies, and our patent
protection could be reduced or eliminated for non- compliance with these requirements. Periodic maintenance / annuity fees on
our owned or licensed patents and patent applications are due to be paid to respective patent offices in several stages over the
lifetime of the patents and applications. In addition, the USPTO and various foreign governmental patent agencies require
compliance with a number of procedural, documentary, fee payment and other similar provisions during the patent application
process. There are situations in which noncompliance can result in abandonment or lapse of the patent or patent application,
resulting in partial or complete loss of patent rights in the relevant jurisdiction. In such an event, our competitors might be able
to enter the market and this circumstance would have a material adverse effect on our business. We also may rely on trade
secrets and confidentiality agreements to protect our technology and know- how, especially where we do not believe patent
protection is appropriate or obtainable. However, trade secrets are difficult to protect, and we have limited control over the
protection of trade secrets used by our collaborators and suppliers. Although we use reasonable efforts to protect our trade
secrets, our employees, consultants, contractors, outside scientific collaborators, and other advisors may unintentionally or
willfully disclose our information to competitors. Enforcing a claim that a third party illegally obtained and is using any of our
trade secrets is expensive and time consuming, and the outcome is unpredictable. In addition, courts outside the United States
are sometimes less willing to protect trade secrets. Moreover, our competitors may independently develop equivalent
knowledge, methods, and know- how. If our confidential or proprietary information is divulged to or acquired by third parties,
including our competitors, our competitive position in the marketplace will be harmed and our ability to successfully generate
revenues from our product candidates, if approved by the FDA or other regulatory authorities, could be adversely affected. We
may be subject to claims that our employees have wrongfully used or disclosed alleged trade secrets of their former employers.
As is common in the biotechnology, pharmaceutical and related industries, we employ individuals who were previously
employed at other biotechnology or pharmaceutical companies, including our competitors or potential competitors. Although no
claims against us are currently pending, we may be subject to claims that these employees or we have inadvertently or otherwise
used or disclosed trade secrets or other proprietary information of their former employers. Litigation may be necessary to defend
against these claims. Even if we are successful in defending against these claims, litigation could result in substantial costs and
be a distraction to management, which would adversely affect our financial condition. ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF
COMMENTS None. ITEM 1C. CYBERSECURITY Risk Management and Strategy We regularly assess risks from
cybersecurity threats, monitor our information systems for potential vulnerabilities, and test those systems pursuant to our
cybersecurity policies, processes, and practices, which are integrated into our overall risk management program. To protect our
information systems from cybersecurity threats, we use various security tools that are designed to help identify, escalate,
investigate, resolve, and recover from security incidents in a timely manner. Our board of directors assesses risks based on
probability and potential impact to key business systems and processes as part of our overall risk management program overseen
by the board of directors. Risks that are considered high are incorporated into our overall risk management program. We



collaborate with third parties to assess the effectiveness of our cybersecurity prevention and response systems and processes and
to assist in the identification, verification, and validation of cybersecurity risks, as well as to support associated mitigation plans
when necessary. We have also developed a third- party cybersecurity risk management process to conduct due diligence on
external entities, including those that perform cybersecurity services. Cybersecurity threats, including those resulting from any
previous cybersecurity incidents, have not materially affected our Company, including our business strategy, results of
operations, or financial condition. Refer to the risk factor captioned ““ Cyber security risks and the failure to maintain the
integrity of company, employee or guest data could expose us to data loss, litigation and liability, and our reputation could be
significantly harmed ” in Part I, Item 1A. “ Risk Factors ” for additional details regarding cybersecurity risks and potential
impacts on our business. Gevernanee-GovernanceQur Sur-board of directors oversees our risk management process, including
as it pertains to cybersecurity risks, which focuses on the most significant risks we face in the short-, intermediate-, and long-
term timeframe. Management is responsible for the operational oversight of company- wide cybersecurity strategy, policy, and
standards across relevant departments to assess and help prepare us to address cybersecurity risks. Meetings of our board of
directors include discussions and presentations from management regarding specific risk areas throughout the year, including,
among others, those relating to cybersecurity threats, and reports from management on our enterprise risk profile on an annual
basis. The board of directors reviews our cybersecurity risk profile with management on a periodic basis using key performance
and / or risk indicators. These key performance indicators are metrics and measurements designed to assess the effectiveness of
our cybersecurity program in the prevention, detection, mitigation, and remediation of cybersecurity incidents. We take a risk-
based approach to cybersecurity and have implemented cybersecurity policies throughout our operations that are designed to
address cybersecurity threats and incidents. ITEM 2. PROPERTIES Our corporate headquarters are located in a leased facility in
Salt Lake City, Utah. Our lease expires on February 28, 2025-2026 . We believe that our existing facility is suitable and
adequate and that we have sufficient capacity to meet our current anticipated needs. ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS SaAprit
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14, 2019, we and certain of our officers were named as defendants in a purported shareholder class action lawsuit, Solomon
Abady v. Lipocine Inc. et al., 2: 19- cv- 00906- PMW, filed in the United District Court for the District of Utah. The complaint
alleges-alleged that the defendants made false and / or misleading statements and / or failed to disclose that our filing of the
NDA for TLANDO to the FDA contained deficiencies and as a result the defendants’ statements about our business and
operations were false and misleading and / or lacked a reasonable basis in violation of federal securities laws. The lawsuit seeles
sought certification as a class action (for a purported class of purchasers of the Company’ s securities from March 27, 2019,
through November 8, 2019), compensatory damages in an unspecified amount, and unspecified equitable or injunctive relief.
We have insurance that covers claims of this nature. The retention amount payable by us under our policy is $ 1. 25-5 million.
On April 14, 2023, a judgment was issued ordering the case dismissed with prejudice and closure of the action. We are not
currently a party to any material litigation or other material legal proceedings. We may, from time to time, be involved
in various legal proceedings arising from the normal course of business activities, and, while the Company has insurance
that covers claims of this nature, unfavorable resolution of any of these matters could materially affect our future results
of operations, cash flows, or financial position. I[TEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES Not Applicable. PART HHHEM
IIITEM 5. MARKET FOR THE REGISTRANT’ S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND
ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES Market Information Our common stock is quoted on The NASBAQ
Nasdaq Capital Market under the symbol “ LPCN . ” ~Holders As of March 5-11 , 2624-2025 , there were approximately 87
holders of record of our common stock. This number does not include an undetermined number of stockholders whose stock is
held in “ street ” or “ nominee ” name. Dividends We do not anticipate paying any cash dividends on our common stock in the
foreseeable future. We intend to retain any future earnings to finance growth and development and therefore do not anticipate
paying cash dividends in the foreseeable future. HFEM-Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities Issuer Purchases of Equity
SecuritiesITEM 6. [ RESERVED ] ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’ S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL
CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS The following discussion of our financial condition and results of operations
should be read in conjunction with our consolidated financial statements and the related notes thereto and other financial
information included elsewhere in this Annual repertReport . As used in the discussion below, “ we, ” “ our, ”” and “ us ” refers
to the historical financial results of Lipocine. Forward Looking Statements This section and other parts of this report contain
forward- looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Section 21E of



the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, that involve risks and uncertainties. Forward- looking statements provide
current expectations of future events based on certain assumptions and include any statement that does not directly relate to any
historical or current fact. Forward- looking statements may refer to such matters as products, product benefits, pre- clinical and
clinical development timelines, clinical and regulatory expectations and plans, anticipated financial performance, future
revenues or earnings, business prospects, projected ventures, new products and services, anticipated market performance, future
expectations for liquidity and capital resources needs and similar matters. Such words as “ may ”, “ will ”, *“ expect ”, “ continue
7, estimate project ”, and “ intend ” and similar terms and expressions are intended to 1dent1fy forward looking staternentst
F orward lookrng statements are not guarantees of future performance and our actual results may differ significantly from the
results discussed in the forward- looking statements. Factors that might cause such differences include, but are not limited to,
those discussed in Part I, Item 1A (Risk Factors) of this Form 10- K. Except as required by applicable law, we assume no
obligation to revise or update any forward- looking statements for any reason. Overview of Our Business We are a
biopharmaceutical company focused on leveraging our proprretary L1p ral platform to develop dlfferentrated products through
the oral delivery of previously difficult to deliver molecules ;fee p p
Our proprretary delivery technologies are designed to improve patient Comphance and %afety through orally avarlable treatment
options. Our primary development programs are based on oral delivery solutions for poorly bioavailable drugs. We have a
portfolio of differentiated innovative product candidates that target high unmet needs for neurological and psychiatric CNS
disorders, liver diseases, and hormone supplementation for men and women. We entered into a license agreement for the
development and commercialization our product Candrdate TLANDO ®, an oral testosterone replacement therapy (—T—R—T—)
eomprr%ed ofte%to%terone undecanoate Hranta ertered-tto-4a 0 v y
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d 6 . On March
28 2022 the FDA approved TLANDO asa TRT in adult males for eondrtronq a%socrated W1th a deficiency of endogenous
testosterone, also known as hypogonadism. On June 7, 2022, our former commercial partner Antares (a wholly owned
subsidiary of Halozyme) announced the commercial launch of TLANDO . On January 12 , 2024, we entered into the Verity
License Agreement with Verity, pursuant to which we granted to Verity an eral-treatmentindieated-exclusive, royalty-
bearing, sublicensable right and license to develop and commercialize the TLANDO product for TRT testosterone
replacement-therapy-in adultmales-the Licensed Verity Territory. Any FDA post- marketing studies required will also be
the responsibility of our Licensee, Verity. In September 2024, we entered into the SPC License Agreement for eonditions
assoetated-the development and commercialization of TLANDO with SPC, pursuant to which the Company granted to
SPC a defieteney-non- transferable, exclusive, royalty- bearing license to commercialize or-our absenee-efendogenous
testosterone-(primary-TLANDO product in the SPC Territory. In October 2024, we entered into the Pharmalink
Distribution Agreement with Pharmalink granting a non- transferable, exclusive, license to commercialize ot-our
hypogenadetropie-hypogonadismt)-TLANDO product in the Pharmalink Territory. Our ex- U. S. commercialization
partners are planning to file marketing approval applications in Canada, the GCC countries, and South Korea in 2025 .
Additional clinical development pipeline candidates include: LPCN 1154 for pestpartam-depresston~PPD ,2+~L.PCN 2101 for
epilepsy , —and-L.LPCN 2203 for essential tremor and LPCN 2401 for improved body composition in obesity management .
In addition to our €NS-clinical development product candidates, we have assets for which we expect to seek partnerships to
enable further development including TLANDO for territories outside of North America, South Korea, and the GCC, LPCN
1148 comprising a novel prodrug of testosterone, and testestereretanrate~TL 2 for the management of deeompensated
cirrhosis, LPCN 1144, an oral prodrug of androgen receptor modulator for the treatment of non- cirrhotic ren—aleoheolie
steatohepatitis-CNASH-MASH 2)-which has completed Phase 2 testing +, and LPCN 1107, potentially the first oral hydrexy
progesterone-eaproate--HPC Zproduct indicated for the prevention of recurrent preterm-birth¢-PTB 2, which has completed

a dose finding clinical study in pregnant women and has been granted orphan drug designation by the FDA. To date, we have
funded our operations primarily through the sale of equity securities, debt and convertible debt and through up- front payments,
research funding and royalty and milestone payments from our license and collaboration arrangements. We have not generated
any revenues from product sales and while we expect to generate royalties from our Licensee’ s sales of TLANDO, we do not
expect to generate revenue from product sales from our other product candidates unless and until approval. We have incurred
losses in most years since our inception. As of December 31, 2623-2024 , we had an accumulated deficit of approximately $
199. 8 million. Income and losses fluctuate year to year, primarily depending on the nature and timing of research and
development occurring on our product candidates. Our net foss-income was approximately $ 8, 000 +6—4-miHion-for the year
ended December 31, 2623-2024 , compared to approximately $ +6-16 . -4 million for the year ended December 31, 2022-2023
. Substantially all of our operating losses resulted from expenses incurred in connection with our product candidate development
programs, our research activities and general and administrative costs associated with our operations. We expect to continue to
incur significant expenses and operating losses for the foreseeable future as we: ® subject to resource availability, conduct
further development of our other product candidates, including LPCN 1154, LPCN 2101, LPCN 2203, and LPCN +H48-2401 ; e
continue our research efforts; @ research new products or new uses for our existing products; ® maintain, expand and protect our
intellectual property portfolio; and e provide general and administrative support for our operations. To fund future long- term
operations, including the potential commercialization of any of our product candidates, we will need to raise additional capital.
The amount and timing of future funding requirements will depend on many factors, including capital market conditions,
regulatory requirements and commercial success of TLANDO, regulatory requirements related to our other product development
programs, the timing and results of our ongoing development efforts, the potential expansion of our current development
programs, potential new development programs, our ability to license and / or partner our products to third parties, the pursuit of



various potential commercial activities and strategies associated with our development programs and related general and
administrative support. We anticipate that we will seek to fund our operations through public or private equity or debt financings
or other sources, such as potential license, partnering and collaboration agreements. We cannot be certain that anticipated
additional financing will be available to us on favorable terms, in amounts sufficient to fund our operations, or at all. Although
we have previously been successful in obtaining financing through public and private equity securities offerings and our license
and collaboration agreements, there can be no assurance that we will be able to do so in the future. Corporate Strategy Our goal
is to become a leading biopharmaceutical company focused on leveraging our proprietary Lip’ ral drug delivery technology
platform to develop differentiated products through oral delivery of previously difficult to deliver molecules for-ENS-disorders-.
The key components of our strategy are to: Advance LPCN 1154 and other CNS product candidates. We intend to focus on the
development of endogenous-neuroaetive-sterotdsINAS-NASs 2-which have broad applicability in treating various CNS
conditions where we can leverage our technology platform to develop highly differentiated oral therapeutics. Our priority is on
the development of LPCN 1154, a fast- acting oral antidepressant for pestpartamrdepresston-PPD 2-with potential for
outpatient use. Support our Eieensee-licensees , Verity, SPC, and Pharmalink in commercialization and / or of our licensed
oral TRT eptien-product . We believe the TRT market needs a differentiated, convenient oral option. We have exclusively
licensed rights to TLANDO to Verity for commercialization of TLANDO in the H-S-Licensed Verity Territory, to SPC for
commercialization in the SPC Territory, and €anada-to Pharmalink in the Pharmalink Territory . We plan to support eur
Hieensee-Verity’ s, SPC’ s and Pharmalink ° s efforts to effectively enable the availability of TLANDO to patients in a timely
manner, in addition to receiving milestone ane-payments, royalty payments , and / or payments for product sales associated
with TLANDO commercialization as agreed to in the Verity License Agreement , the SPC License Agreement and the
Pharmalink Distribution Agreement . Develop partnership (s) to continue the advancement of re—eere-pipeline assets. We
continuously strive to prioritize our resources in seeking partnerships of our pipeline assets. We are currently exploring
partnering-ofpartnerships for our liver programs LPCN 1144, our candidate for treatment of non- cirrhotic NASH-MASH and
LPCN 1148 for the management of deeempensated-cirrhosis -including prevention of the recurrence of overt hepatic
encephalopathy; LPCN 2401 for improved body composition in obesity management as an adjunct therapy to or as a
monotherapy post cessation of incretin mimetics use; and LPCN 1107, our candidate for prevention of pre- term birth. We
are exploring the possibility of licensing EFREN+HO2H-dmown-as-T LANDO inthe-United-Statesy-and-REN-HH-t0 third parties
outside of the United-States-and-Canada-Currently Licensed TLANDO Territories , although as of the date of this Annual
Report, no additional licensing agreement-agreements has-have been entered into by the Company in any other territories .
Financial Operations Overview Reventte-RevenueTo Fo-date, we have not generated any revenues from product sales and do
not expect to do so until our FDA approved product receives regulatory approval in the SPC Territory or the Pharmalink
Territory or until one of our other product candidates receives approval from the FDA. Revenues to date have been generated
substantially from license fees, royalty and milestone payments and research support from our licensees. Since our inception
through December 31, 2623-2024 , we have generated $ 4453 . 9-1 million in revenue under our various license and
collaboration arrangements and from government grants. We have entered into the Verity License Agreement, the SPC License
Agreement and the Pharmalink Distribution Agreement with the potential for revenue from future milestones and-, royalties ,
and / or product sales , but we may never generate revenues from any of our clinical or preclinical development programs or
licensed products as we may never succeed in obtaining regulatory approval or commercializing any of these product
candidates. Research and Development Expenses Research and development expenses consist primarily of salaries, benefits,
stock- based compensation and related personnel costs, fees paid to external service providers such as contract research
organizations and contract manufacturing organizations, contractual obligations for clinical development, clinical sites,
manufacturing and scale- up for late —stage clinical trials, formulation of clinical drug supplies, and expenses associated with
regulatory submissions. Research and development expenses also include an allocation of indirect costs, such as those for
facilities, office expense , and depreciation of equipment based on the ratio of direct labor hours for research and development

personnel te-total-direettabor-hours—for-atbpersonnel. We expense research and development expenses as incurred. Since our

inception, we have spent approximately $ -1-47—154 2—6 mllhon in research and development expenqeq through December 31,

fﬂdeeaﬁea-te—(—T—T—)—m—t-he—U—S—&ﬂd—Gaﬂadﬂ— We expect to Contlnue to incur %1gnlﬂeant cost% in as—we—deve}ep-etueet-hef

g v as-the development of ary-future pipeline product candidates.
In general the cost of Chnlcal trlal% may vary qlgnlﬁcantly over the life of a project as a result of uncertainties in clinical
development, including, among others: ® the number of sites included in the trials; e the length of time required to enroll
suitable subjects; ® the duration of subject follow- ups; @ the length of time required to collect, analyze and report trial results; ®
the cost, timing and outcome of regulatory review; and @ potential changes by the FDA in clinical trial and NDA filing
requirements. Future research and development expenditures are subject to numerous uncertainties regarding timing and cost to
completion, including, among others: @ the timing and outcome of regulatory filings and FDA reviews and actions for product
candidates; ® our dependence on third- party manufacturers for the production of satisfactory finished product for registration




and launch should regulatory approval be obtained on any of our product candidates; e the potential for future license or co-
promote arrangements for our product candidates, when such arrangements will be secured, if at all, and to what degree such
arrangements would affect our future plans and capital requirements; and e the effect on our product development activities of
actions taken by the FDA or other regulatory authorities. A change of outcome for any of these variables with respect to the
development of our product development candidates could mean a substantial change in the costs and timing associated with
these efforts, could require us to raise additional capital, and may require us to reduce operations. Given the stage of clinical
development and the significant risks and uncertainties inherent in the clinical development, manufacturing and regulatory
approval process, we are unable to estimate with any certainty the time or cost to complete the development of LPCN 1154,
LPCN 2401, LPCN 2101, LPCN 2203, LPCN 1148, LPCN 1144 - FRENIH1-, LPCN 1107 and other product candidates.
Clinical development timelines, the probability of success and development costs can differ materially from expectations and
results from our clinical trials may not be favorable. If we are successful in progressing LPCN 1154 , LPCN 2401 , LPCN
2101, LPCN 2203 or other future product candidates into later stage development, we will require additional capital. The
amount and timing of our future research and development expenses for these product candidates will depend on the pre-
clinical and clinical success of both our current development activities and potential development of new product candidates, as
well as ongoing assessments of the commercial potential of such activities. We will continue efforts to enter into partnership
arrangements for the continued development and / or marketing of LPCN 1144, LPCN 1148, LPCN 2401, LPCN 1107 and-, for
the development and commercialization of TLANDO outside of the United States, Canada, South Korea, and the GCC
countries and LPCN 1111 outside of the United States U—S—and Canada We expect toi incur 51gn1ficant reqearch and
development expenses te-tnerease-in the future as-we : e d 0 p
produet-eandidates-and-as we conduct future clinical %tudrei 1nclud1ng When and if we Conduct Phase 2 clinical studies Wrth our
development product candidates and when and if we conduct Phase 3 clinical studies with LPCN 1144, LPCN 1148, and LPCN
1107. We are also exploring the possibility of licensing LPCN 1144, LPCN 1148, LPCN 2401 and LPCN 1107, although we
have not entered into a licensing agreement and no assurance can be given that any license agreement will be completed, or, if
an agreement is completed, that such an agreement would be on terms favorable to us. If we are unable to raise additional
capital or obtain non- dilutive financing, we may need to reduce research and development expenses in order to extend our
ability to continue as a going concern. General and Administrative Expenses General and administrative expenses consist
primarily of salaries and related benefits, including stock- based compensation and outside consulting services related to our
executive, finance, business development, and administrative support functions. Other general and administrative expenses
include rent and utilities, travel expenses, and professional fees for auditing, tax, legal and various other services. General and
administrative expenses also include expenses for the cost of preparing, filling and prosecuting patent applications and
maintaining, enforcing and defending intellectual property- related claims. We expect that general and administrative expenses
will increase in the future as we continue as a public company ;- These fees nelding-include legal and consulting fees,
accounting and audit fees, director fees, directors’ and officers’ insurance premiums, fees for investor relations services and
enhanced business and accounting systems, litigation costs, professional fees and other costs. However, if we are unable to raise
additional capital, we may need to reduce general and administrative expenses in order to extend our ability to continue as a
going concern. Other Income and Expense aeemey; Net-Other income and expense {ineeme);net-consists primarily of
interest income earned on our cash, cash equivalents and marketable investment securities, imputed interest on minimum
royalties under the heense-agreement-we-had-with-Antares Licensing Agreement in whieh-was-terminatedJanuary 31,2624

2023 . and gains on our warrant hability-and-gains-eneurtitigation-liability. Results of Operations Comparison of the Years
Ended December 31, 2024, and 2023 ard-26822-The following table summarizes our results of operations for the years ended

December 31, 2024 and 2023 and2022- Years Ended December 31, 2024 2023 2022-Variance Revenue $ 11,198,144 § (2,
850, 818) $ 500-14 . 048 966-5(3-, 962 350,818)Rescarch and development expenses 7, 351, 753 10, 175,251 82 , 556-823 ,
498) 888+-618;363-General and administrative expenses 5, 001, 426 4, 904, 888 4-96 , 538 062;,487-842,464-Interest and
investment income 1, 146, 902 1, 366, 940 572;-578-794;-362nterestexpense— 27220 , 698-038 ) 27-098-Unrealized gain on
warrant liability 17, 166 212, 690 5657946 353-195 . 524 256)-Gain-ontitigationsettdement—256;,-000250,-006-) Income tax
expense (F550681) ( 755) 74 ¥We recognized anetreversal-of-variable-eensiderattonrevenue of § 11. 2 —=9-million during the
year ended December 31, 2623-2024 , compared to a net reversal of variable consideration revenue of $ 500,-689-2. 9 million
during the year ended December 31, 2622-2023 . Revenue in 2024 primarily consisted of revenue from our licensees,
Verity, SPC and Pharmalink and royalty revenue from TLANDO sales . Net reversal of variable consideration revenue in
fiscal year ended December 31, 2023 was mainly attributable to the reversal of variable consideration revenue recognized for
minimum guaranteed royalties in 2021 under the license agreement with Antares, offset by $ 110, 000 in license revenue
payments recerved from Sprra%o under a hcenqlng agreement in the cough and cold ﬁeld The -I:teeﬁse—feveﬁue—tn%@%%was

A h Antare% chenee Agreement was

; Anite : mittate termlnated effectrve January 31, 2024. On January 12, 2024,
we -t-he—Geﬁapany—entered into the Verlty License Agreement with Verity. Upon termination of the Antares License Agreement,
all rights and licenses granted by us the-Company-to Antares under the Antares License Agreement terminated and all rights in
TLANDO were transferred to our the-Cempany>—s-new licensing partner, Verity. We recorded research and development
expenses of $ 7. 4 million and $ 10. 2 mitherand-$8—-6-million, respectively, for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023
and-2022-. The inerease-decrease in research and development expenses during the year ended December 31, 2623-2024 was
primarily due to a $ 3. 1 —million decrease related to the completion of our LPCN 1148 Phase 2 millienr POC study in male
patients with cirrhosis in 2023, a $ 584, 000 decrease in TLANDO related costs, and a $ 348, 000 decrease in personnel




related costs. These decreases were offset by a $ 996, 000 increase in eontra ization d
LPCN 1154 clinical studies, a $ $94+188 , 000 increase in We—m&nﬂfaeﬁlrmg—re}a-ted-other lab supplles and research
Costs and a b 569—46 000 1ne1edsere}a-ted-te-etu'—Phase—2—PGGs&tdy— ma-}e—p&tteﬂts—wrt-h—eﬂrhes-ts—wﬁ-h—LP( N 2401 -1—1-48—&&61-

admmlstratl\ € expenses 01‘ ‘b 45 . 9-0 million and b 4. +9 million, 1espect1\ ely for the years ended December 31, 2024 and
2023 and2022-. The increase in general and administrative expenses during the year ended December 31, 2623-2024 was
primarily due to a $ 374-800 , 000 increase in business dev elopment and strategic advi 1501y services related e‘q)enses —and a $
24753 , 000 increase in intellectual property gat-fee atthg-toe i ehras stoe p :

-l-teeﬂsmg—partﬂershrps,—and patent e

H@&Weas&ﬁ%eﬂ&e%gertera%—arxd—&dmﬁa&s&&ﬁve—expenses aﬂd—a—$—2—2—
sales-of TEANDO—These-tnereases-were-offset by a $ 222, 000 decrease in corporate insurance expense, a $ 438208 , 000

decrease in personnel related costs to-the-reernitment-oftwo-additional-direetors-, and-a $ 8-161 , 000 decrease in professional
fees relating to our annual shareholder’ s meeting and subsequent decision to enact a reverse stock split, a $ 146, 000
decrease in other various consulting and professional fees , and a $ 20, 000 decrease in other general and administrative
expenses . Interest and Investment Income The -rnefease—decrease in interest and investment income of approximately $ 220,

000 during the year ended December 31, 2623-2024 was due to higher-interestratesir2623-eompared-to2022-despite-declining
cash and marketable investment securities balances qﬂ&ﬁer—evefqﬁarteﬁn ﬁscal %92—3—I-ﬁ-terest—E-kpeﬂse—"Ph€~deerease-rn-1ﬁtefest
e*peﬂse—&&rmg—t-he—yeal ended Deeember 31,2024 compared to 2023 18

matt&ed—aﬂd—was—patd—m—fu{-l—m—}uﬂe-e-f—}@% Unreallzed I:ess—&(mm 9—011 dednt Llablllty We 1ecorded gains of b 17 000 and
$ 213 5806-and-$-566-, 000, respectively, on warrant liability during the fiscal years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and

2622-related to the change in the fair value of outstanding common stock warrants issued in November 2019. The gain in fiscal
year ended December 31, 2024 was attributable to the expiration in November 2024 of the warrant 1ssued in the
November 2019 Offering. The gains—- gain in fiscal year ended a1 ase-trth

warr&nts—etﬁst&ﬂdtﬂg—as—e-ﬁDeeember 31 2()2% as-was the result of eemp&red—te—Beeem-ber—ZvH@Q%—&ﬂd—a deerease—decreased

Were—due—te—a—deerease—m—etﬂestoc k }’)llLe dnd a—shmteI te1m remaining on the eﬂ-tst&ndmg—\x armnts as compared to the stock
price and remaining term of the warrants as of December 31, 2022 . There were no common stock warrants from the
November 2019 Offering exercised during fiscal years ended December 31, 2024 or 2023 12622~ The warrants are-were
classified as a liability due to a provision contained within the warrant agreement which aHews-allowed the warrant holder the
option to elect to receive an amount of cash equal to the value of the warrants as determined in accordance with the Black-

Scholes optlon pllung model w 1th certain dehned dssumptlons upon a chdnge of control. fPhe—Wﬁr&ﬂt—habﬂ-rty—wﬂ-l—eeﬂtr&ue—te

eeuﬁtere}a-rms—qumdlty and C dpltdl Resoulees Since our inception, our operations have been pnmduly fmdnced through sales
of our equity securities, debt and payments received under our license and collaboration arrangements. We have devoted our
resources to funding research and development programs, including discovery research, preclinical and clinical development
activities. We have incurred operating losses in most years since our inception and we expect to continue to incur operating
losses into the foreseeable future as we advance clinical development of LPCN 1154, LPCN 2101, LPCN 2203 , LPCN 2401
and any other product candidate, including continued research efforts. As of December 31, 2623-2024 , we had § 22-21 . 8-6
million of unrestricted cash, cash equivalents and marketable investment securities compared to § 32-22 . 5-0 million at-as of
December 31, 2622-2023 . In October 2024, we entered into the Pharmalink Distribution Agreement with Pharmalink,
pursuant to which we granted to Pharmalink a non- transferable, exclusive, license to commercialize our TLANDO
product in the Pharmalink Territory. Pharmalink paid us a one- time non- refundable, non- creditable upfront fee. We
are eligible to receive additional payments in regulatory authorization milestones related to the marketing approval in
countries in the Pharmalink Territory under the Pharmalink Distribution Agreement and we have agreed to supply
TLANDO to Pharmalink at a specified transfer price. In September 2024, we entered into the SPC License Agreement
with SPC. Under the terms of the SPC License Agreement, SPC paid us a non- refundable, non- creditable upfront fee in
October 2024. We also received an additional payment for a non- refundable, non- creditable prepayment in
consideration for TLANDO product inventory, and are eligible to receive additional payments for various marketing
authorization and sales milestones and will supply TLANDO to SPC and receive a supply price. In addition, we will
receive royalties on net sales in the SPC Territory under the SPC License Agreement. Our ability to realize benefits from



the SPC License Agreement, including milestone, product sale and royalty payments, is subject to a number of risks. We
may not realize milestone, product sale or royalty payments in anticipated amounts, or at all . On January 12, 2024, we
entered into the Verity License Agreement with Verity, pursuant to which we granted to Verity an exclusive, royalty- bearing,
sublicensable right and license to develop and commercialize our TLANDO product with respect to TRT in the Licensed Verity
Territory B—S—and-Canada-. Upon execution of the Verity License Agreement in January 2024 and upon transition of the
commercialization of TLANDO from Antares to Verity in February 2024, Verity paid to us an initial payments— payment of $
2.5 million , and subsequent payments of $ 5 million and $ 2. S million in February 2024 and December 2024 ,

respectively. Verity has also agreed to make an additional payments— payment to us of $%—m1ﬂieﬂ—befefe—}&ﬁu&1ﬂy—l—292§
and-$ | million before January 1, 2026. The Verity License Agreement also provides Verity with a license to develop and
commercialize TLANDO XR (“ LPCN 1111 ), our the-Company—s-potential next generation, once daily oral product
candidate for testosterone replacement therapy comprised of testosterone tridecanoate ¢“F¥>)-, in the Licensed Verity
Territory B—S—and-Canada-. We are also eligible to receive milestone payments of up to $ 259 million in the aggregate,
depending on the achievement of certain development milestones and sales milestones in a single calendar year with respect to
all products licensed by Verity under the Verity License Agreement. In addition, we receive tiered royalty payments at rates
ranging from percentages of 12 % up to 18 % of net sales of all products licensed to Verity in the Licensed Verity Territory
Ontted-States-and-Canada-. Our ability to realize benefits from the Verity License Agreement, including milestone and royalty
payments, is subject to a number of risks. We may not realize milestone or royalty payments in anticipated amounts, or at all. On
Previously on March 6, 2017, we entered into a sales agreement (“ Cantor Sales Agreement ) with Cantor Fitzgerald & Co. (*
Cantor ”’) under which we agreed to sell shares of our common stock, having registered up to $ 50. 0 million for sale
under the Cantor Sales Agreement. During the year ended December 31, 2024, we sold 32, 110 shares of our common
stock under the Cantor Sales Agreement at a weighted- average sales price of $ 6. 77 per share, resulting in net proceeds
of approximately $ 209, 000, which is net of approximately $ 8, 000 in expenses. During the year ended December 31,
2023, we sold 81, 000 shares of our common stock under the Cantor Sales Agreement at a weighted- average sales price
of $ 5. 36 per share, resulting in net proceeds of approximately $ 405, 000, which is net of approximately $ 24, 000 in
expenses. On April 24, 2024, we terminated the Cantor Sales Agreement. From the inception to the termination of the
Cantor Sales Agreement, we sold in aggregate 996, 821 shares of our common stock for $ 33. 5 million. On April 26,
2024, we entered into a sales agreement (the “ A. G. P. Sales Agreement ”’) with A. G. P. / Alliance Global Partners (“ A.
G. P. ”) pursuant to which we may issue and sell, from time to time, shares of our common stock having an aggregate offering
price of up to the amount we kave-registered on an effective registration statement pursuant to which the offering is being made.
We currently have registered up to $ 56-0-miHien-10, 616, 169 of shares of common shares for sale under the A. G. P. Sales
Agreement, pursuant to ewr-the Registration Statement on Form S- 3 , as amended (File No. 333- 275716) (the “ Form S- 3 7),
through €anter-A. G. P. as ent-sales agent. €anter-A. G. P. may sell our common stock by any method permitted by law
deemed to be an “ at the market offering ” as defined in Rule 415 (a) (4) of the Securities Act ef4933;-as-amended-, including
sales made directly on or through the NASBAQ-Nasdaq Capital Market or any other existing trade market for our common
stock, in negotiated transactions at market prices prevailing at the time of sale or at prices related to prevailing market prices, or
any other method permitted by law. €anter-A. G. P. will uses— use its commercially reasonable efforts consistent with its
normal trading and sales practices and applicable law and regulations to sell hese-shares under the A. G. P. Sales Agreement .
We will pay €anter-A. G. P. 3. 0 % of the aggregate gross proceeds from each sale of shares under the A. G. P. Sales
Agreement. We-In addition, we have also provided €antor-A. G. P. with customary indemnification rights. Our shares of
common stock to be sold under the A. G. P. Sales Agreement will be sold and issued pursuant to the Form S- 3, as
amended, which was previously declared effective by the SEC, and the related prospectus and one or more prospectus
supplements. We are not obligated to make any sales of our common stock under the A. G. P. Sales Agreement. The offering
of ear-common stock pursuant to the A. G. P. Sales Agreement will terminate upon the termination of the A. G. P. Sales
Agreement as permitted therein. We and €anter-A. G. P. may each terminate the A. G. P. Sales Agreement at any time upon ten

days’ prior notice. As of December 31, 2023-2024 , we had not sold ﬁﬂ—any ﬁggfegafe—e—ﬁ964—7-l—l—shdles at-a-wetghted—average
salespriec-of$ 3452 pershare-under the A Atthe O BTOE

ﬁp—te—$é—3—m-rl-l-teﬁ— We belleve that our ex1st1ng capital resources, togethel Wlth interest theleon W111 be sufhuent to meet our
projected operating requirements through at least March 31, 26252026 which include a en—getngclinical studies-study for
LPCN 1154, ﬁﬂd—#er—]:PGN—Z—l-G—l—eﬁHleN%%G%—aﬁd-research and development activities and compliance with regulatory
requirements. We have based this estimate on assumptions that may prove to be wrong, and we could utilize our available
capital resources sooner than we currently expect if additional activities are performed by us including new clinical studies for
LPCN 2401, LPCN 2101, LPCN 1148, LPCN 1144, and / or LPCN 1107. While we believe we have sufficient liquidity and
capital resources to fund our projected operating requirements through at least March 31, 2025-2026 , we will need to raise
additional capital at some point through the equity or debt markets or through additional out- licensing activities, either before
or after March 31, 2625-2026 , to support our operations. If we are unsuccessful in raising additional capital as necessary, our



ability to continue as a going concern will be limited. Further, our operating plan may change, and we may need additional
funds to meet operational needs and capital requirements for product development, regulatory compliance and clinical trial
activities sooner than planned. In addition, our capital resources may be consumed more rapidly if we pursue additional clinical
studies for LPCN 1154, LPCN 2401, LPCN 2101, LPCN 2203, LPCN 1148, LPCN 1144, and / or LPCN 1107. Conversely, our
capital resources could last longer if we reduce expenses, reduce the number of activities currently contemplated under our
operating plan or if we terminate, modify or suspend on- going and / or planned clinical studies. We can raise capital pursuant
to the A. G. P. Sales Agreement but may choose not to issue common stock if our market price is too low to justify such sales in
our discretion. There are numerous risks and uncertainties associated with the development and, subject to approval by the FDA,
commercialization of our product candidates. There are numerous risks and uncertainties impacting our ability to enter into
collaborations with third parties to participate in the development and potential commercialization of our product candidates. We
are unable to precisely estimate the amounts of increased capital outlays and operating expenditures associated with our
anticipated or unanticipated clinical studies and ongoing development efforts. All of these factors affect our need for additional
capital resources. To fund future operations, we will need to ultimately raise additional capital and our requirements will depend
on many factors, including the following: e the scope, rate of progress, results and cost of our clinical studies, pre- preelinteat-—-
- clinical testing and other related activities for all of our product candidates s-including LPCN 1154, LPCN 2401, LPCN 2101
and-, LPCN 2203, LPCN 1148, LPCN 1144, and LPCN 1107; e the cost of manufacturing clinical supplies, and establishing
commercial supplies, of our product candidates and any products that we may develop; @ the cost and timing of establishing
sales, marketing and distribution capabilities, if any; ® the terms and timing of any collaborative, licensing, settlement and other
arrangements that we may establish; @ the number and characteristics of product candidates that we pursue; ® the cost, timing
and outcomes of regulatory approvals; e the timing, receipt and amount of sales, profit sharing or royalties, if any, from our
potential products; e the cost of preparing, filing, prosecuting, defending and enforcing any patent claims and other intellectual
property rights; ® the extent to which we acquire or invest in businesses, products or technologies, although we currently have
no commitments or agreements relating to any of these types of transactions; and e the extent to which we grow significantly in
the number of employees or the scope of our operations. Funding may not be available to us on favorable terms, or at all. Also,
market conditions may prevent us from accessing the debt and equity capital markets, including sales of our common stock
through the A. G. P. Sales Agreement. If we are unable to obtain adequate financing when needed, we may have to delay,
reduce the scope of or suspend one or more of our clinical studies, research and development programs or, if any of our product
candidates receive approval from the FDA, commercialization efforts. We may seek to raise any necessary additional capital
through a combination of public or private equity offerings, including the A. G. P. Sales Agreement, debt financings,
collaborations, strategic alliances, licensing arrangements and other marketing and distribution arrangements. These
arrangements may not be available to us or available on terms favorable to us. To the extent that we raise additional capital
through marketing and distribution arrangements, other collaborations, strategic alliances or licensing arrangements with third
parties, we may have to relinquish valuable rights to our product candidates, future revenue streams, research programs or
product candidates or grant licenses on terms that may not be favorable to us. If we do raise additional capital through public or
private equity offerings, the ownership interest of our existing stockholders will be diluted, and the terms of these securities may
include liquidation or other preferences, warrants or other terms that adversely affect our stockholders’ rights or further
complicate raising additional capital in the future. If we raise additional capital through debt financing, we may be subject to
covenants limiting or restricting our ability to take specific actions, such as incurring additional debt, making capital
expenditures or declaring dividends. If we are unable, for any reason, to raise needed capital, we will have to reduce costs, delay
research and development programs, liquidate assets, dispose of rights, commercialize products or product candidates earlier
than planned or on less favorable terms than desired or reduce or cease operations. Sources and Uses of Cash The following
table provides a summary of our cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 . and-2622-Y cars Ended
December 31, 2024 2023 2022-Cash used in operating activities $ (-1, 865221 , 994233 ) § (11, 968-865 , 849991 ) Cash
provided by investing activities 2, 446, 061 13, 084, 686 +4;293-767-Cash provided by fasedHm-financing activities 209, 340
404, 567 2;126;944)Net Cash Used in Operating Activities During each of the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and
2022~ net cash used in operating activities was $ 1. 2 million and $ 11. 9 and-$42-0-million, respectively. Net cash used in
operating activities during 2623-2024 and-2622-was primarily attributable to cash outlays to support on- going operations,
including research and development expenses primarily related to our LPCN 1154 clinical studies and manufacturing scale
up, in addition to general and administrative expenses . These cash outlays were offset by cash provided by the licensee and
distribution agreements we entered into during 2024 of $ 11. 2 million . During 2023, we were performing activities mainly
related to our LPCN 1 154 Cllnlcal studles and our LPCN 1148 Phase 2 POC Study in male subjects w1th Clrrh051s —Duﬂﬂg%@%%—

0 e cies-with d i ate-up-. Net Cash Provrded by
Investrng Actrvrtres Durlng the yea-r—years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 net Cash pfeﬁded—by—used in 1nvest1ng
activities was $ 2. 4 million and $ 13. | m G RE
aetivities-was-$34-—3-million. Net cash pr0V1ded by 1nvest1ng activities durlng 2024 and 2023 aﬁd—Z@QQ—was prlmarlly the result
of the maturity of marketable investment securities yaet-of $ 35. 4 million and $ 36. 0 million and-, respectively offset by the
purchase of marketable investment securities of $ 59-32 . 5-9 million and $ 22. 9 million, respectively. There were $ 90, 000
and $ 13 ;906-and-$134-, 000 in capital expenditures for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and2022-,
respectively. Net Cash Provided by fdseeHm-Financing Activities During the year-years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023,
net cash provided by financing activities was $ 209, 000 and $ 405, 000 aﬁd—dufmg—t-he—yea%eﬂded—Beeember%—l— respectively,
and 2622-net-used-n-finaneingaetivittes-was $2—1-mitien-the result of proceeds from the sales of our common stock under
the Cantor Sales Agreement . Net cash provided by financing activities during the year ended December 31, 2024 and 2023,




was related to the sale of 32, 110 shares of our common stock for net proceeds of $ 209, 000 and 81, 000 shares of our
common stock for net proceeds of $ 405 000 respectlvely, under eur—A—T—M—efferrng—the Cantor Sales Agreement less
associated cost% N ; o : .

Pmchaqe Obhgatlon% We enter into contracts and issue purcha%e order% in the nornlal course of bu%lne%i W1th chnlcal reiearch
organizations for clinical trials and clinical and commercial supply manufacturing and with vendors for preclinical research
studies, research supplies and other services and products for operating purposes. These contracts generally provide for
termination on notice and are cancellable obligations. Operating Leases In August 2004, we entered into an agreement to lease
our facility in Salt Lake City, Utah consisting of office and laboratory space which serves as our corporate headquarters. On
Janaary24-December 2 , 2024, we modified and extended the lease through February 28, 2025-2026 . Critical Accounting
Policies and Signiflcant Judgments and Estimates Our management’ s discussion and analysis of our financial condition and
results of operations is based on our financial statements which we have prepared in accordance with U. S. generally-aceepted
aceountingprineiplesC~GAAP ). In preparing our financial statements, we are required to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting periods . Qur estimates are based
on our historical experience and on various other factors that we believe are reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying value of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or
conditions. We concluded that licensing revenue recognized in conjunction with the Verity License Agreement, the SPC
License Agreement and the Pharmalink Distribution Agreement met the requirements under ASC 606, Revenue from
Contracts with Customers. We evaluate the measure of progress each reporting period and, if necessary, adjust the
measure of performance and related revenue recognition. License revenue from payments to be received in the future
will be recognized when it is probable that we will receive license payments under the terms of the Verity License
Agreement, the SPC License Agreement or the Pharmalink Distribution Agreement . We have identified the following
accounting policies that we believe require application of management’ s most subjective judgments, often requiring the need to
make estimates about the effect of matters that are inherently uncertain and may change in subsequent periods. Our actual
results could differ from these estimates and such differences could be material. While our significant accounting policies are
described in more detail in Note 2 of our annual financial statements included in this filing, we believe the following accounting
policies to be critical to the judgments and estimates used in the preparation of our financial statements. Revenue Recognition In
May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“ FASB ) issued Accounting Standards Update (“ ASU ”) No. 2014- 09,
Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606) with amendments in 2015 (ASU 2015- 14) and 2016 (ASU 2016- 8, ASU
2016- 10, ASU 2016- 12 and ASU 2016- 20). The updated standard is a new comprehensive revenue recognition model that
requires revenue to be recognized in a manner that depicts the transfer of goods or services to a customer at an amount that
reflects the consideration expected to be received in exchange for those goods or services. The guidance also requires
disclosures regarding the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from contracts with
customers. We adopted this pronouncement effective January 1, 2017. We recognized license and royalty retreversat-of
vartable-eonstderatton-revenue of § 11. 2 =9-million during the year ended December 31, 2623-2024 -and Heense-a net reversal
of variable consideration revenue of $ 566;-686-2. 9 million during the year ended December 31,2022-2023 . Net reversal of
variable consideration revenue in 2023 was mainly attributable to the reversal of variable consideration revenue recognized for
minimum guaranteed royalties in 2021 under the license agreement with Antares, offset by $ 110, 000 in license revenue
payments recelved from Spna%o under a hcenqlng agleement in the cough and cold ﬁeld J:teense—reveﬁue—rn—l’-@%%—was—re}&ted-te

provide reiearch and development services unde1 collaboration arrangements to advance the development of Jomtly owned
products. We record the expenses incurred and reimbursed on a net basis in research and development expense. As of December
31,2623-2024 , we do not have any active collaboration agreements. Researeh-and-DevelopmentExpenses-We make estimates
of our accrued expenses as of each balance sheet date in our financial statements based on the facts and circumstances known to
us at that time. Our expense accruals for contract research, contract manufacturing and other contract services are based on
estimates of the fees associated with services provided by the contracting organizations. Payments under some of the contracts
we have with such parties depend on factors such as successful enrollment of patients, site initiation and the completion of
clinical trial milestones. In accruing service fees, we estimate the time period over which services will be performed and the
level of effort to be expended in each period. If possible, we obtain information regarding unbilled services directly from these
service providers. However, we may be required to estimate these services based on other information available to us. If we
underestimate or overestimate the activity or fees associated with a study or service at a given point in time, adjustments to
research and development expenses may be necessary in future periods. Subsequent changes in estimates may result in a
material change in our accruals. Stock- Based Compensation We recognize stock- based compensation expense for grants of
stock option awards, restricted stock units and restricted stock under our Incentive Plan to employees, nonemployees and
nonemployee members of our board of directors based on the grant- date fair value of those awards. The grant- date fair value of



an award is generally recognized as compensation expense over the award’ s requisite service period. In addition, in the past we
have granted performance- based stock option awards and restricted stock grants, which vest based upon our satisfying certain
performance conditions. Potential compensation cost, measured on the grant date, related to these performance options will be
recognized only if, and when, we estimate that these options will vest, which is based on whether we consider the options’
performance conditions to be probable of attainment. Our estimates of the number of performance- based options that will vest
will be revised, if necessary, in subsequent periods. We use the Black- Scholes model to compute the estimated fair value of
stock option awards. Using this model, fair value is calculated based on assumptions with respect to (i) expected volatility of our
common stock price, (ii) the periods of time over which employees and members of the board of directors are expected to hold
their options prior to exercise (expected term), (iii) expected dividend yield on the common stock, and (iv) risk- free interest
rates. Stock- based compensation expense also includes an estimate, which is made at the time of grant, of the number of awards
that are expected to be forfeited. This estimate is revised, if necessary, in subsequent periods if actual forfeitures differ from
those estimates. As of December 31, 2023-2024 , there was $ 455440 , 000 of total unrecognized compensation cost related to
unvested share- based compensation arrangements granted under the Company’ s stock option plan. Warrant Liability In
connection with the November 2019 public offering, we issued warrants to purchase common stock. The warrants would have
require-required us to pay such holders an amount of cash in the event of a fundamental transaction, as defined in the warrant
agreement. As the cash payment ts-was at the option of the warrant holder, we aeeeunt-accounted for the common stock
warrants as a liability, which is-was adjusted to fair value each reporting period as well as upon exercise of such warrants. The
Company estimates-estimated the fair value of the warrant liability based on a hypothetical payout associated with a
fundamental transaction. The fair value estimate #tHizes-utilized a pricing model and unobservable inputs. Unlike the fair value
of other assets and liabilities which are readily observable and therefore more easily independently corroborated, the warrants
are-were not actively traded, and fair value is-was determined based on significant judgments regarding models, unobservable
inputs and valuation methodologies. As-The warrants issued under the November 2019 public offering expired in
November 2024, and there were no warrants from the November 2019 offering outstanding as of December 31, 2024. As
of December 31, 2024 and 2023 and2022-, the warrant liability was $ 0 and $ 17, 000 and-$-236,-6660-, respectlvely
Aeeounting-StandardsIssaed NotAdepted-ITEM 7TA. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT
MARKET RISK Netapplieable-As a “ smaller reporting company, > this item is not required . [TEM 8. FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTAL DATA LIPOCINE INC. INDEX TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Page Audited
Financial Statements of Lipocine Inc. for the Years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 ard-2622-Report of Independent
Registered Public Accounting Firm (PCAOB ID No. 270) Consolidated Balance Sheets Consolidated Statements of Operations
and Comprehensive Loss Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm To the Board of
Directors and Stockholders Lipocine Inc. Opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements We have audited the accompanying
consolidated balance sheets of Lipocine Inc. and subsidiaries (the Company) as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2622-, the
related consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income ( loss ), changes in stockholders’ equity, and cash
flows for the years then ended, and the related notes (collectively, the consolidated financial statements). In our opinion, the
consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of
the Company as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 ard-2622-, and the consolidated results of its operations and its cash flows for
years then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Basis for
Opinion These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’ s management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on the Company’ s consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm
registered with the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (PCAOB) and are required to be independent
with respect to the Company in accordance with the U. S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the
Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB. We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the
PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. The Company is not required
to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. As part of our audits, we are
required to obtain an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Company’ s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. Our
audits included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a
test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. Our audits also included
evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our 0p1n10n
Critical Audit Matter-Matters The-eritieal-Critical audit matter-matters are eommunteated-below-is-a-matter-matters arising
from the current period audit of the eensehdated-financial statements that sas-were communicated or required to be
communicated to the audit committee and that +(1) retates— relate to accounts or disclosures that are material to the
eonsehdated-financial statements and (2) involved our especially challenging, subjective, or complex judgments. Fhe

eemmtmteaﬁen—ef—We determlned that there are no crmcal audlt matters éees—net—&}tefm—aﬁy—wayhetﬁptmen—en—t-he




maﬁagemeﬂt—ﬁ-udgmeﬂ-ts—aﬂd—esﬁma’ees— / s/ Tdnner LLC We have served as the Company S audltor since 2018 Salt Lake
City, Utah March #12 , 2624-2025 LIPOCINE INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES Consolidated Balance Sheets December 31,
December 31, 2024 2023 2622-Assets Current assets: Cash and cash equivalents $ 6, 205, 926 $ 4, 771, 758 -$—3—1-4'8—496
Marketable investment securities 15, 427, 385 17, 263, 788 29:38+-4+6-Accrued interest income 120, 447 52,254 86427
Contraet-asset—eurrentportion—579;428-Prepaid and other current assets 567, 915 773, 424 945-349-Total current assets 22,
321, 673 22, 861, 224 34:135;-080-Contract-asset—non—eurrent-portion—3;252-506-Property and equipment, net of
accumulated depreciation of § 1, 482-223 , 494297 and § 1, +53-182 , 536-191 respectively 165, 075 116, 095 43+-589-Other
assets 23, 753 23, 753 Total assets $ 22, 510, 501 $ 23, 001, 072 $37-542,922 L iabilities and Stockholders’ Equity Current
liabilities: Accounts payable $ 271,696 $ 1, 395, 977 $6080,388Accrued expenses 921, 240 1, 218, 486 +-Deferred revenue
320, 000- 674738 Warrant liability- earrentportion-17, 166 —Total current liabilities 1, 512, 936 2, 631, 629 678126
Warranthabtlity-—229;-856-Total liabilities 1, 512, 936 2, 631, 629 5987-982-Commitments and contingencies (notes 8, 9 and
11) — Stockholders’ equity: Common stock, par value $ 0. 0001 per share, 200, 000, 000 shares authorized; 5, 348, 276 and S,
316 sH66-and-5-235-, 166 issued and 5, 347, 940 and 5, 315 +-836-and-5;234-, 830 outstanding , respectively 8, 863 8, 860 8;
$52-Additional paid- in capital 220, 789, 138 220, 171, 250 249;HH2364-Treasury stock at cost, 336 shares (40, 712) (40, 712)
Accumulated other comprehensive gain @ess)}9, 138 7, 259 26;32H-Accumulated deficit (199, 777768 , 244-862 ) ( +83-199 ,
425777 , 843-214 ) Total stockholders’ equity 20, 997, 565 20, 369, 443 35:634;-940-Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $
22,510,501 $ 23, 001, 072 $37-542,-922-See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements Consolidated
Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income ( Loss ) 2024 2023 2622-Years Ended December 31, 2024 2023 2622
Revenues: License and royalty revenue $ 11, 198, 144 $ 109, 987 $-580,-8680-Minimum guaranteed royalties revenue (reversal
of variable consideration) = (2, 960, 805) —Total revenues (reversal of variable consideration), net 11, 198, 144 (2, 850, 818) 566;
006-Operating expenses: Research and development 7, 351, 753 10, 175, 251 8-General and administrative 5 . 556-001, 426 4,
904 , 888 General-and-administrative4;:-904;-8884;-062,487 T otal operating expenses 12, 353, 179 15, 080, 139 42:-649;375
Operating loss (41, 936-155 , 957035 ) (4217 , H9-930 , 375-957 ) Other income fexpense)-: Interest and investment
income 1, 146, 902 1, 366, 940 572-578Interestexpense—~274-098)-Unrealized gain on warrant liability 17, 166 212, 690 565;
%Gﬁmeﬁ—%gaﬁefrsef&emem—hab&&}h—%e—@@@ﬁotdl other income ynet-1, 164, 068 1, 579, 630 Income ( +361+420-Foss
loss ) before income tax expense 9, 033 (16, 351, 327 HFH0;-75%955-) Income tax expense ( 681) (755) Net income ( 68+loss )
Netdoss-8, 352 (106, 352, 082 HFB;-F58;-636-) Issuance of Series B preferred stock dividend - (89) —Net gain ( loss ) attributable
to-common-shareholders Netdess-attributable to common shareholders $ 8,352 $ (16, 352, 171) $-Basic income ( loss +0;758;
636-) Bastetess—per share attributable to common stock $ - § (3. 10 }3$42-06-) Weighted average common shares outstanding,
basic 5, 338,957 5, 269, 671 5;234-68+-Diluted income ( loss ) per share attributable to common stock $ = $ (3. 14 3$4245)
Weighted average common shares outstanding, diluted 5, 422, 604 §, 269, 671 5;256;+65-Comprehensive income ( loss ) : Net
income (loss) $ 8,352 5 (16, 352, 082 )—$—61—9—7§-8—636—) Net unrealized gain on available- for- sale securities 1, 879 27, 580
Comprehensive gain (loss) $ 10 eﬁwm%ab}e—%f—sa}e—seeufﬁies—zq— 231 5802305 Comprehensivedoss$ (16, 324, 502 3%
6,766,941 Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity For the Years Ended December 31, 2024 and 2023
and-2022-Number of Shares Ametnt-Amount Number of Shares Amount Number of Shares Amount Paid- In Capital
Comprehensive Loss Accumulated Deficit Stockholders’ Equity Mezzanine Equity Stockholder’ s Equity Series B Preferred
Stock Common Stock Treasury Stock Additional Accumulated Other Total Number of Shares Amount Number of Shares
Amount Number of Shares Amount Paid- In Capital Comprehensive Loss Accumulated Deficit Stockholders’ Equity Balances
at December 31, 20242022 - $- =5, 224234 , 883-830 § 8, 836-852 336 § (40, 712) § 248219 , 286-112 , 323-164 5 ( +8-20,
616321 ) § (172183 , 666-425 , 467043 ) § 45-35 , 576-634 , 940 018 Mezzanine-equity;-batanee;shares—Net loss-------- —( 16
16 , 758-352 , 636082 ) (16-16 , 758-352 , 636-082 ) —Unrealized net Joss-gain on marketable investment —securities------- 27
, 580 3653 27 2, 580 365)— Stock- based compensation------ 636-654 , 146-438 -- 636-654 , 438- H406-Mezzanine-equity;
lssuance of Series B preferred stock dl\’ldend 88 Va-l-ue—MeZZﬂ-&me—eqtﬂﬁ’—Isst}&nee—Sll 9---- 80-- 80 Redemptlon of Serles B
preferred stock d-lﬂdeﬂd-(SS sha q preferre
sold through —vatuelv A t t i Option
49-1—-%1—1—42—3»—€esf3—asseet&ted—wrt-h—ATM effeﬂﬂg—offerlng -- 81 ---62—1— -7’-99)—000 8 -- 404 (%1— -7-99)—559-- 404, 567
Balances at December 31, 2022-2023 - $- -5, 234-315 , 830 § 8, '852—860 336 $ (40 712) $ 2—1—9—220 -1—1—2—171 -1-64-250 $ 7 259

)

Mezzamne Equlty Stockholdel ] Equlty Serles B Prefened Stock Common Stock Treasury Stock
Additional Accumulated Other Total Number of Shares Amount Number of Shares Amount Number of Shares Amount Paid- In
Capital Comprehensive Loss Accumulated Deficit Stockholders’ Equity Balances at December 31, 20222023 - $- -5, 234-315 ,



830 $ 8,852-860 336 $ (40, 712) $ 249-220 , H2-171 , +64-250 $ 7, 259 $ (26-199 , 32+777, 214 ) $ 20 (483-, 425-369 , 643)
443 Balance- $ 35—634—94-9—Ba-laﬂees—va}ue-—$-~ 5,234-315, 830 § 8, 852860 336 $ (40, 712) $ 249-220 , H2-171 , +64-250 $
7,259 $ (26-199 , 324777, 214 ) $ 20, 369, 443 Net income-------- 8, 352 8, 352 Net income ( loss -1-83—425—943—)-&;—35—634—
940-Netdoss—------- 8 —46-, 352 8 768916~ 352 7682-Unrealized net gain on marketable investment securities------- 271,
589—879 2—7—1 5-89—879 Stock- based compen%atlon —————— 654—408 438—551 - 65-4-408 551 43-8—Issuaﬁee-ef—Seﬂes—B—pfefeffed-
ste ; ertes e ommon stock sold
through ATM offerlng—— $1+32, 999—8—110 3-- 494—209 559—337 -- 494-209 567340 Balances at December 31, 2623-2024 - $-
—5,345-347 , 836-940 $ 8, 860-863 336 § (40, 712) § 220, +H-789 , 256-138 $ 79 , 259-138 $ (199, 777768 ., 244-862 ) § 20,
3695-997 , 443-565 Balanees—- Balance ;valae— $- —5, 345-347 , 836-940 $ &, 869—863 336 $ (40 712) $ 220 -1—7-1—789 256-138
$79,259-138# $ (199, 777768 , 244-862 ) § 20, 369-997 , 565 44 4 6 e 4
statements-Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 2024 2023 2022-Years Ended December 31, 2024 2023 %GQQ—CaSh flows
from operating activities: Net income (loss ) $ 8,352 § (16, 352, 082) -$—(—1-9—7§8—636)—Adjustment% to reconcile net income (
loss ) to cash used in operating activities: Depreciation expense 41, 106 28, 661 95453-Stock- based compensation expense 408,
551 654, 438 636,140 Non—eashinterestexpense—5;-842-Non- cash gain on change in fair value of warrant liability (242-17 ,
690-166 ) ( 565-212 , 690 946)-Gainren-settement-oftitigationtiabiity—250;-600-) Amortization of discounts on marketable
investment securities ( 952-697 , 651865 ) (+22-952 , 948-651 ) Write off of contract asset due to variable consideration revenue
reversal = 2, 960, 805 —Changes in operating assets and liabilities: Accrued interest income (68, 193) 28, 173 +66;-826-Contract
asset = 709, 933 248;-072-Prepaid and other current assets 205, 509 333, 085 569:446-Accounts payable (1, 124, 281) 795, 589
688,954 -Accrued expenses (297, 246) 140, 748 Deferred revenue 320 61286-Litigation-settlement-Hability—15256-, 000 -
Cash used in operating activities (-1 , 865221 , 994233 ) (11,968-865 , 839-991 ) Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of property and equipment (43-90 , 467086 ) (433— 13 , 834167 ) Purchases of marketable investment securities ( 22
32 ,902-863 , 147853 ) (4522, 874902 , 462-147 ) Maturities of marketable investment securities 35, 400, 000 36, 000 7066
59%92— 000 Ca%h provided by 1nve€t1ng activities 2, 446, 061 13, 084, 686 +4;293;-707Cash flows from financing activities:
ehbtrepayerts—H—666667HEnd-ofte ean-paymen 656;-600)-Net proceeds from sale of common stock through ATM 209,
340 404, 567 H@%eee&&&eﬁrﬁeel&epﬁeﬁexefeﬂes-%%ash provided by fased-m)-financing activities 209, 340
404, 567 426,944 Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 1, 434, 168 1, 623, 262 49%-944-Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of period 4, 771, 758 3, 148, 496 2,-950,-552-Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 6, 205,926 $ 4, 771, 758 $
33H48;496-Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information: {-nfefest—pa-xd—$-—$—2-l—2§6-1ncome taxes paid $ 681 225 %99
Supplemental disclosure of non- cash 1nve€t1ng and ﬁnancmg acthlty Net unreahzed gain fess)-on available- for- sale
securities $ 1,879 $ 27, 580 $ e al-payment-charge-ond 42-Tssuance of Series B preferred stock $ -
$ 89 $—~LIPOCINE INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS DECEMBER
31,2024 and 2023 and-20822-(1) Description of Business Lipocine Inc. (“ Lipocine ” or the “ Company ), a clinical- stage
biopharmaceutical company feeunsed-onreentralnervous-system-—ENSdiserders-, is engaged in research and development
for the delivery of drugs using its proprietary delivery technology. The Company’ s principal operation is to provide oral
delivery solutions for existing drugs. Lipocine develops its own drug candidates or it develops drug candidates on behalf of or in
collaboration with corporate partners. The Company has funded operating costs primarily through collaborative license,
milestone and research arrangements, through federal grants, through the sale of equity securities and through debt. The
Company is incorporated under the laws of the State of Delaware. (2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (a) Use of
Estimates The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U. S. generally accepted accounting principles (“ US
GAAP ”) requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Significant items subject to such
estimates and assumptions include those related to the timing and amount of revenue recognized from licensing agreements,
stock- based compensation +, income tax uncertainties <+, the fair value of the warrant liability , and the useful lives of property
and equipment. (b) Cash and Cash Equivalents The Company considers all highly liquid investments with original maturities to
the Company of three months or less to be cash equivalents. Although the Company may deposit its cash and cash equivalents
with multiple financial institutions, its deposits, at times, may exceed federally insured limits. Cash and cash equivalents were $
6. 2 million and 4. 8 million as of and-$3—-mitienat-December 31, 2024 and 2023 and2022-, respectively . (c) Receivables
Accounts receivable are recorded at the invoiced amount and do not bear interest. The Company maintains an allowance for
doubtful accounts for estimated losses. In establishing the allowance, management considers historical losses adjusted to take
into account current market conditions and their customers’ financial condition, the amount of receivables in dispute, and the
current receivables aging and current payment patterns. The Company had no write- offs in 2024 and 2023 and2622-and the
Company did not record an allowance for doubtful accounts as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2622-as there were no
accounts receivable outstanding. The Company does not have any off- balance- sheet credit exposure related to its customers.
(d) Revenue Recognition The Company generates most of its revenue from license and royalty arrangements. At the inception of
each contract, the Company identifies the goods and services that have been promised to the customer and each of those that
represent a distinct performance obligation, determines the transaction price including any variable consideration, allocates the
transaction price to the distinct performance obligations and determines whether control transfers to the customer at a point in
time or over time. Variable consideration is included in the transaction price to the extent that it is probable that a significant
reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognized will not occur or when the uncertainty associated with the variable
consideration is subsequently resolved. The Company reassesses its reserves for variable consideration at each reporting date
and makes adjustments, if necessary, which may affect revenue and earnings in periods in which any such changes become
known. (2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — (continued) Disaggregation of Revenue. In the following tables,




revenues reported for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and2022-, under Topic 606, are disaggregated by type of
revenue. Schedule of Disaggregation of Revenue Type of Revenue 2024 2023 2022-License $ 10, 900, 000 $ 109, 987 $506
Royalties 298 ., 660-144- Minimum guaranteed royalties revenue (reversal of variable consideration) (2, 960, 805) —Revenue $
11,198, 144 $ (2, 850, 818) $-560,-000-Under Topic 606, all revenue has been recognized as point in time for the years ended
December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2022-. See Note 4 for a description of the Verity lieense-agreement-with-AntaresPharma;
ne—(the—~Antares-License Agreement 2y, the SPC License Agreement and the Pharmalink Supply and Distribution
Agreement . Sce Note 12 for a description of the agreement with Spriaso , a related party . License Fees. For distinct license
performance obligations, upfront license fees are recognized when the Company satisfies the underlying performance
obligation. Fhis-generally-oeeurs-upon-transfer-Performance obligations under these licenses, which consist of the right to
use the Company’ s proprietary technology, are satisfied at a point in time corresponding with delivery of the under lying
technology rights to the licensee, which is generally upon transfer of the licensed technology / preduct to the customer. In
addition, license arrangements may include contingent milestone payments, which are due following achievement by our
licensee of specified sales or regulatory milestones and ferwhteh-the licensee and / or Company must fulfill its performance
obligation prior to achievement of these milestones. Because of the uncertainty of the milestone achievement, and / or the
dependence on sales of our licensee, variable consideration for contingent milestones is fully constrained and is not recognized
as revenue until the milestone is achieved by our licensee, to the extent collectability is reasonably certain. Royalties. Royalties
revenue consists of %ales based and rnrnrnlum royaltle% earned under licenses agreementi for our products. Performanee

heeﬁsed—teelﬁe-legy—/—pfe&uet—te—the—ettstemer—Sales based royaltle% revenue repreqent% Varrable consrderatlon under t-he—hcense

agreements and is recognized in the period a customer sells products incorporating the Company’ s licensed technologies /
products. The Company estimates sales- based royalties revenue earned but unpaid at each reporting period using information
provided by the licensee. The Company’ s license arrangements may also provide for minimum royalties, which the Company
recognizes upon the satisfaction of the underlying performance obligation which generally occurs with delivery of the
underlying technology rights to the licensee. Sales- based and minimum royaltle% are generally due w1th1n 45 days after the end
of eaeh quarter in which they are earned. ; aeta yalty ; ;

Antafes—]:teeﬁse—A—gfeemeﬂt—Revenue Concentratron A major partner is Congrdered to be one that comprises more than 10 % of
the Company’ s total revenues. Fhe-In 2024, the Company recognized 91. 4 %, or $ 10. 2 million of its revenue from the
Verity License Agreement, which consisted of $ 10. 0 million in licensing revenue and $ 232, 000 in TLANDO sales-
based royalties. In 2023, the Company recognrzed a reversal of revenue relatrng to Varrable consideration of the Antares
License Agreement of $ 3-2 . 8-9 million andrev a1

respeetively-. The reversal of revenue in 2023 is-was due to the write off of the contract asset rewltrng ina reversal of variable
consideration recognrzed in2021 for mlnlmum guaranteed royalties Wthh resulted from the termination of the Antare% License
Agreement. v o1 ; G ary ptftean
Aeeeﬂﬂt-rng—PeHeies—(eeﬁt-iﬂued?—(e) Property and Equipment Property and equlpment are recorded at cost, less aceumulated
depreciation. Maintenance and repairs that do not extend the life or improve the asset are expensed in the year incurred.
Depreciation is computed using the straight- line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets, which are five years for
laboratory and office equipment, three years for computer equipment and software, and seven years for furniture and fixtures.

(f) Accounting for Impairment of Long- Lived Assets Long- lived assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Recoverability of assets held and
used is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of an asset to future net cash flows (undiscounted) expected to be
generated by the asset. If such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized is measured as the amount
by which the carrying amount of the assets exceeds the fair value of the assets. Assets held for sale are reported at the lower of
the carrying amount, or fair value, less costs to sell. (g) Income Taxes Income taxes are accounted for under the asset and
liability method. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences
between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases and operating
loss and tax credit carryforwards. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to
taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred
tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date. A
valuation allowance is provided against net deferred tax assets if, based upon the available evidence, it is more likely than not
that some or all of the net deferred tax assets will not be realized. The Company recognizes the effect of income tax positions
only if those positions are more likely than not of being sustained. Recognized income tax positions are measured at the largest
amount that is greater than 50 percent likely of being realized. Changes in recognition or measurement are reflected in the
period in which the change in judgment occurs. The Company records interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits
as a component of its income tax expense. (h) Share Based Payments The Company recognizes stock- based compensation




expense for grants of stock option awards, restricted stock units and restricted stock under the Company’ s Incentive Plan to
employees, nonemployees and nonemployee members of the Company”’ s board of directors based on the grant- date fair value
of those awards. The grant- date fair value of an award is generally recognized as compensation expense over the award’ s
requisite service period. In addition, #rthe-pastthe Company has granted performance- based stock option awards and restricted
stock units, which vest based upon the Company satisfying certain performance conditions. Potential compensation cost,
measured on the grant date, related to these performance options will be recognized only if, and when, the Company estimates
that these options or units will vest, which is based on whether the Company considers the performance conditions to be
probable of attainment. The Company’ s estimates of the number of performance- based options or units that will vest will be
revised, if necessary, in subsequent periods. The Company uses the Black- Scholes model to compute the estimated fair value of
stock option awards. Using this model, fair value is calculated based on assumptions with respect to (i) expected volatility of the
Company’ s common stock price, (ii) the periods of time over which employees, nonemployees and members of the board of
directors are expected to hold their options prior to exercise (expected term), (iii) expected dividend yield on the common stock,
and (iv) risk- free interest rates. Stock- based compensation expense also includes an estimate, which is made at the time of
grant, of the number of awards that are expected to be forfeited. This estimate is revised, if necessary, in subsequent periods if
actual forfeitures differ from those estimates. Stock- based compensation cost for stock option awards and restricted stock
units that kas-have been expensed in the statements of operations amounted to approximately $ 409, 000 and $ 654 ;-800-and-$
636-, 000 for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2622-, allocated as follows: Schedule of Employee Service
Share- based Compensation, Allocation of Recognized Period Costs Years Ended December 31, 2024 2023 2622-Research and
development $ 222,596 $ 358, 352 General and administrative 185, 955 296, 086 $ 338-408 , 551 818-General-and
ad:nﬂmsffa-t—l—ve%é—&%é%%—l%%ﬂi 654, 438 $-636;440-The Company issued 26-84 , 467715 stock options and #4-26 , 334-467
stock options during the years ended December 31,2024 and 2023 , respectively. The Company issued 21, 762 restricted
stock units and 0 restricted stock units during the years ended December 31, 2622-2024 and 2023 , respectively. Key
assumptions used in the determination of the fair value of stock options granted are as follows: Expected Term: The expected
term represents the period that the stock- based awards are expected to be outstanding. The Bue—te-h-m-tted-h-lsteﬂea-l-e*peﬂeﬂee
of simiar-awards;-the-expected term was estimated using the simplified method in accordance with the provisions of Staff
Accounting Bulletin (“ SAB ) No. 107, Share- Based Payment, for awards with stated or implied service periods. The
simplified method defines the expected term as the average of the contractual term and the vesting period of the stock option.
For awards with performance conditions, and that have the contractual term to satisfy the performance condition, the contractual
term was used. Risk- Free Interest Rate: The risk- free interest rate used was based on the implied yield currently available on
U. S. Treasury issues with an equivalent remaining term. Expected Dividend: The expected dividend assumption is based on
management’ s current expectation about the Company’ s anticipated dividend policy. The Company does not anticipate
declaring dividends in the foreseeable future. Expected Volatility: The volatility factor is based solely on the Company’ s
trading history. For options granted in 2024 and 2023 and-2622-, the Company calculated the fair value of each option grant on
the respective dates of grant using the following weighted average assumptions: Schedule of Key Assumption of Fair Value of
Stock Options Granted 2024 2023 2622-Expected term 5. #3-81 years 5. 82-73 years Risk- free interest rate 3-4 . 73-41 % 3. 66
73 % Expected dividend yield — — Expected volatility 98. 76 % 98. 97 %-99-31+% FASB Accounting Standards Codification
(“ASC ) 718, Stock Compensation, requires the Company to recognize compensation expense for the portion of options that
are expected to vest. Therefore, the Company applied estimated forfeiture rates that were derived from historical employee
termination behavior. If the actual number of forfeitures differs from those estimated by management, additional adjustments to
compensation expense may be required in future periods. As of December 31, 2023-2024 , there was $ 455440 , 000 of total
unrecognized compensation cost related to unvested share- based compensation arrangements granted under the Company’ s
stock option plan , of which $ 368, 000 relates to unvested stock options and $ 72, 000 relates to unvested restricted stock
units . Thateest-Share- based compensation related to options is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period
of 1. 4-2 years and-. The cost will be adjusted for subsequent changes in estimated forfeitures. The weighted average fair value
of stock options share—based-eompensationrawards-granted during the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2022-was
approximately $ 3. 80 and $ 6. 19 pershare-and-$3H--50-per share, respectively. (i) Fair Value The Company utilizes valuation
techniques that maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs to the extent possible. The
Company determines fair value based on assumptions that market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability in the
principal or most advantageous market. When considering market participant assumptions in fair value measurements, the
following fair value hierarchy distinguishes between observable and unobservable inputs, which are categorized in one of the
following levels: ® Level 1 Inputs: Quoted prices for identical instruments in active markets. ® Level 2 Inputs: Quoted prices for
similar instruments in active markets, quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in markets that are not active, and
model- derived valuation in which all significant inputs and significant value drivers are observable in active markets. ® Level 3
Inputs: Valuations derived from valuation techniques in which one or more significant inputs or significant value drivers are
unobservable. All of the Company’ s financial instruments are valued using quoted prices in active markets or based on other
observable inputs. For accrued interest income, prepaid and other current assets, accounts payable, and accrued expenses, the
carrying amounts approximate fair value because of the short maturity of these instruments. The following table presents the
placement in the fair value hierarchy of assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis at-as of
December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2622-: Schedule of Fair Value, Assets and Liabilities Measured on Recurring Basis Fair value
measurements at reporting date using December 31, 2024 Level 1 inputs Level 2 inputs Level 3 inputs Assets: Cash
equivalents- money market funds $ 6, 155, 167 $ 6, 155, 167 $- $- Government treasury bills 15, 427, 385 15, 427, 385-- §
21, 582, 552 $ 21, 582, 552 $- $- Liabilities: Warrant liability $- $- $- $- $ 21, 582, 552 § 21, 582, 552 $- $- Fair value
measurements at reporting date using Deember 31, 2023 Level | inputs Level 2 inputs Level 3 inputs Assets: Cash



equivalents- money market funds $ 4, 695, 491 $ 4, 695, 491 $- $- Government treasury bills 14, 281, 104 14, 281, 104-- BS-U .
S. Gevernment-government agency sccurities 2, 982, 684-2, 982, 684-$ 21,959,279 $ 18,976, 595 $ 2, 982, 684 $-
Llabllltle% Warrant llablllty $ 17, 166 $ $- $ 17,166 $ 21, 976, 445 $ 18,976, 595 $ 2,982, 684 $ 17, 166F&rr—va-l-ue

-$—8—6§-3—434—$—2—3—42—2—4—1—9—$—2—2-9—8§6—The follow1ng method% and as%umptlon% were used to determlne the fair Value of each
class of assets and liabilities recorded at fair value in the balance sheets: Cash equivalents: Cash equivalents primarily consist of
highly rated money market funds and treasury bills with original maturities to the Company of three months or less and are
purchased daily at par value with specified yield rates. Cash equivalents related to money market funds and treasury bills are
classified within Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy because they are valued using quoted market prices or broker or dealer
quotatlonq for similar assets. U. S. Geveﬂa-naeﬁt—government agency securities beﬂds-a-nd-netes— The Company uses a thlrd—

party pr101ng service to value these 1nve§tment§ U bn S v v

party—p . government agency

porate-bonds; notes-and-eommeretal paper-arc clasqlﬁed W1th1n Level 2 of the falr value hierarchy because they
are valued using broker / dealer quotes, bids and offers, benchmark yields and credit spreads and other observable inputs.
Government treasury bills: The Company uses a third- party pricing service to value these investments. United States
treasury bills are classified within Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy because they are valued using quoted market prices
in active markets for identical assets and reportable trades. Warrant liability: The warrant liability (which relates to warrants
to purchase shares of common stock) #s-was marked- to- market each reporting period with the change in fair value recorded to
other income (expense) in the accompanying statements of operations until the warrants are-were exercised, expire-expired or
other facts and circumstances tead— led the warrant liability to be reclassified to stockholders’ equity. The fair value of the
warrant liability is estimated using a Black- Scholes option- pricing model. All outstanding warrants required to be classified
as a liability had expired by December 31, 2024, therefore no liability existed at the end of the year. The significant
assumptions used in preparing the option pricing model for valuing the warrant liability as of December 31, 2023, include (i)
volatility of 100 %, (ii) risk free interest rate 0f4 79 %, (111) %trlke prlce 0f$ 8 50, (1V) falr Value of common %tock 0f$ 2.79,
and (V) expected llfe ofO 9 years. The stgnifie 3 rg-th d v e

recognlze tran%fer% between levels of the falr Value hlerarchy on the date of the event or change in c1rcum§tance§ that Cauied the
transfer. There were no transfers into or out of Level 1, Level 2 or Level 3 for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and
Beeember3+2622-. (j) Earnings (Loss) per Share Basic earnings (loss) per share is calculated by dividing net income (loss)
available to common shareholders by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted
earnings (loss) per share is based on the weighted average number of common shares outstanding plus, where applicable, the
additional potential common shares that would have been outstanding related to dilutive options, warrants, and unvested
restricted stock units to the extent such shares are dilutive. (2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — (continued) The
following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share of common stock for the years ended
December 31, 2024 and 2023 ard-2622-. Schedule of Computation of Basic and Diluted Earnings (Loss) Per Share of Common
Stock 2024 2023 2022-Years Ended December 31, 2024 2023 2022-Basic earnings ( loss ) per share attributable to common
stock: Numerator Net earnings (loss ) $ 8,352 $ (16, 352, 171 ¥3$6;758,636-) Denominator Weighted avg. common shares
outstanding 5, 338,957 5, 269, 671 5;234;-684-Basic earnings ( loss ) per share attributable to common stock $ -8 (3. 10) $
Diluted earnings ( loss 2-086-) PtutedHess—per share attributable to common stock: Numerator Net earnings (loss ) $ 8,352 §
(16, 352, 171 ¥$-H8;758;636-) Effect of dilutive securities on net earnings ( loss ) : Common stock warrants 17,166 212, 690
565;-946-Total net loss for purpose of calculating diluted net loss per common share $ (4+6-8 , 814 564;:-861+) § (H-16 , 324-564
, 576-861 ) Denominator Weighted avg. common shares outstanding 5, 338, 957 §, 269, 671 5;2345-68+Weighted average
effect of dilutive securities: Commen-stoek-Stock options 83 swarrants—24-, 488-647- Total shares for purpose of calculating
diluted net earnings ( loss ) per common share 5, 422, 604 5, 269, 671 5;-256;+69-Diluted earnings ( loss ) per share
attributable to common stock $ - $ (3. 14 ¥$215-) The computation of diluted earnings per share for the years ended
December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2822-does not include the following stock options or warrants to purchase shares in the
computation of diluted earnings per share because these instruments were antidilutive: Schedule of Anti- dilutive Securities
Excluded from Computation of Earnings Per Share 2024 2023 December 31, 2024 2023 2822-Stock options 251, 611 262, 247
277Unvested restricted stock units 21 , 225-762- Warrants 49, 433 49, 433 Antidilutive Securities 49, 433 49, 433 (k)
Segment Information The Company is a single reportable segment engaged in research and development for the delivery of
drugs using its proprietary delivery technology. Operating segments are identified as components of an enterprise for which
separate discrete financial information is available for evaluation by the chief operating decision maker in making decisions
regarding resource allocation and assessing performance. The chief operating decision maker made such decisions and assessed
performance at the company level, as one segment. (1) Principles of Consolidation The consolidated financial statements include
the accounts of the Company and all subsidiaries. The Company eliminates all intercompany accounts and transactions in
consolidation. (3) Marketable Investment Securities The Company has classified its marketable investment securities as
available- for- sale securities, all of which are debt securities. These securities are carried at fair value with unrealized holding
gains and losses, net of the related tax effect, included in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) in stockholders’



equity until realized. Gains and losses on investment security transactions are reported on the specific- identification method.
Dividend income is recognized on the ex- dividend date and interest income is recognized on an accrual basis. The amortized
cost, gross unrealized holding gains, gross unrealized holding losses, and fair value for available- for- sale securities by major
security type and class of security atas of December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-20822-were as follows: Schedule of Available for
Sale SecuritiesDecember 31, 2024 Amortized Cost Gross Unrealized Holding Gains Gross Unrealized Holding Losses
Aggregate Fair Value Government treasury bills $ 15, 418, 247 $ 9, 138 $- § 15, 427, 385 $ 15, 418, 247 $ 9, 138 $- $ 15,
427, 385 December 31, 2023 Amortized Cost Gross unreatized-Unrealized helding-Holding gains-Gains Gross ttﬁfeahzed
Unrealized holding-Holding tosses-Losses Aggregate fatr-Fair walge-Value Government treasury bills $ 14, 272, 530 § 8, 574
$- S 14 281 104 U. S. government agency securities 2 983 999- ( l\) 2,982,684 % 17 256, ﬁ"‘) $8,574 S( 15)$ 17,
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Marketable Investment Securities- (LOHUDLIL([) Maturities of dd)l securities le%\l 1ed as a\dllabk for- \dlL swulluus at-as of
December 31, 2023-2024 are as follows: Schedule of Maturities of Debt Securities Classified as Available- for- Sale
SecuritiesDecember 31, 2023-2024 Amortized Cost Aggregate faie-Fair yalte-Value Due within one year $ 4715 , 256418 ,
529247 $ +7-15 , 263427 , 788-385 § +715 , 256418 , 529-247 $ +715 , 263427 , 788-385 There were no sales of marketable
investment securities during the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and2622-and therefore no realized gains or losses.
Additionally, $ 35. 4 million and $ 36. 0 mitherand-$-59—-5-million of marketable investment securities matured during the
years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and2022-, respectively. The Company determined there were no other- than-
temporary impairments for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2022-. (4) Contractual Agreements (a) Verity
Pharmaceuticals, Inc. On January 12, 2024, the Company entered into the Verity License Agreement with GSL and
Verity Pharma, pursuant to which the Company granted to GSL (an affiliate of Verity Pharma) an exclusive, royalty-
bearing, sublicensable right and license to commercialize the Company’ s TLANDO product with respect to testosterone
replacement therapy in males for conditions associated with a deficiency or absence of endogenous testosterone, as
indicated in NDA No. 208088, treatment of Klinefelter syndrome, and pediatric indications relating to testosterone
replacement therapy in males for conditions associated with a deficiency or absence of endogenous testosterone (the «
Field ”), in each case within the United States and Canada (the “ Licensed Verity Territory ). The Verity License
Agreement also provides GSL with a license to develop and commercialize TLANDO XR (LPCN 1111), the Company’ s
potential once- daily oral product candidate for testosterone replacement therapy in the Licensed Verity Territory.
Under the Verity License Agreement, the Company retains rights to TLANDO and TLANDO XR in applications outside
of the Field and to the development and commercialization rights outside of the United States and Canada. Upon
execution of the Verity License Agreement, GSL agreed to pay the Company a license fee of $ 11. 0 million consisting of
an initial payment of $ 2. 5 million which was received on signing of the Verity License Agreement, $ 5. 0 million which
was received on February 1, 2024, $ 2. 5 million which was received on December 30, 2024, and $ 1. 0 million which is to
be paid no later than January 1, 2026. The Company is also eligible to receive development and sales milestone
payments of up to $ 259. 0 million in the aggregate, depending primarily on the achievement of certain sales milestones in
a single calendar year with respect to all products licensed by GSL under the Verity License Agreement. Under the
Verity License Agreement, GSL is generally responsible for expenses relating to the development (including the conduct
of any clinical trials) and commercialization of licensed products in the Field in the Licensed Verity Territory, while the
Company is generally responsible for expenses relating to development activities outside of the Field and / or the
Licensed Verity Territory. The Company concluded that licensing revenue recognized in conjunction with the Verity
License Agreement met the requirements under ASC 606, Revenue from Contracts with Customers. The Company
evaluates the measure of progress each reporting period and, if necessary, adjusts the measure of performance and
related revenue recognition. License revenue from payments to be received in the future will be recognized when it is
probable that we will receive license payments under the terms of the Verity License Agreement. During 2024 the
Company recognized $ 10. 0 million in licensing revenue and approximately $ 232, 000 in sales- based royalty revenue
under the Verity License Agreement. (4) Contractual Agreements — (continued) (b) SPC Korealn September 2024, the
Company entered into a Distribution and License Agreement (the “ SPC License Agreement ”’) with SPC Korea Limited
(“ SPC ), pursuant to which the Company granted to SPC a non- transferable, exclusive, royalty- bearing license to
commercialize the Company’ s TLANDO product with respect to the Field, specific to the country of South Korea (the «
SPC Territory ”). SPC paid the Company a one- time non- refundable, non- creditable upfront fee in October 2024. The
Company also received an additional payment for a non- refundable, non- creditable prepayment in consideration for
TLANDO product inventory, and is eligible to receive additional payments for various marketing authorization and
sales milestones, and the Company will supply TLANDO to SPC and receive a supply price. In addition, the Company
will receive royalties on net sales in the SPC Territory. (c) PharmalinkIn October 2024, the Company entered into a
distribution and supply agreement (the “ Pharmalink Distribution Agreement ”’) with Pharmalink, pursuant to which
the Company granted to Pharmalink a non- transferable, exclusive, license to commercialize the Company’ s TLANDO
product with respect to the Field, specific to the Gulf Cooperation Council Countries (* GCC ”), including Saudi Arabia,
Kuwait, the United Arab Emirates (“ UAE ), Qatar, Bahrain, and Oman (the “ GCC Territory ). Pharmalink paid the
Company a one- time non- refundable, non- creditable upfront fee. The Company is eligible to receive additional
payments in regulatory authorization milestones related to the marketing approval in countries in the GCC Territory
under the Pharmalink Distribution Agreement and the Company will supply TLANDO to Pharmalink at an agreed
transfer price. (d) Antares Pharma, Inc. On October 14, 2021, the Company entered into a license agreement (“ License



Agreement ) with Antares Pharma, Inc. (“ Antares ”) pursuant to which the Company granted to Antares an exclusive,
royalty- bearing, sublicensable right and license to develop and commercialize, upon final approval of TLANDO ® from
the U. S. Food and Drug Administration (“ FDA ”), the Company’ s TLANDO product with respect to testosterone
replacement therapy in males for conditions associated with a deficiency or absence of endogenous testosterone, as
indicated in NDA No. 208088, treatment of Klinefelter syndrome, and pediatric indications relating to testosterone
replacement therapy in males for conditions associated with a deficiency or absence of endogenous testosterone, in each
case within the United States. TLANDO received FDA approval on March 29, 2022. Upon execution of the Antares
License Agreement, Antares paid the Company an initial payment of $ 11. 0 million. Antares agreed to make additional
payments of $ 5. 0 million to the Company on each of January 1, 2025, and January 1, 2026, provided that certain
conditions were satisfied. The Company was also eligible to receive milestone payments of up to $ 160. 0 million in the
aggregate, depending on the achievement of certain sales milestones in a single calendar year with respect to all products
licensed by Antares under the Antares License Agreement. In addition, upon commercialization, the Company was to
receive tiered royalty payments at rates ranging from percentages in the mid- teens to up to 20 % of net sales of
TLANDO in the United States, subject to certain minimum royalty obligations. On October 2, 2023, the Company
received notice from Antares of Antares’ termination of the License Agreement. In accordance with the terms of the
License Agreement, the License Agreement was terminated effective January 31, 2024. On January 12, 2024, the
Company entered into the “ Verity License Agreement ” with Verity Pharmaceuticals Inc. Upon termination of the
Antares License Agreement, all rights and licenses granted by the Company to Antares under the Antares License
Agreement terminated and all rights to TLANDO in the Field and Licensed Verity Territory transferred to the
Company’ s new licensing partner, Verity. During the year ended December 31, 2024, the Company recognized royalty
revenue of $ 67, 000 and during the year ended December 31, 2023 and recorded a reversal of variable consideration
revenue under the Antares License Agreement of $ 2. 9 million. (e ) Abbott Products, Inc. On March 29, 2012, the Company
terminated its collaborative agreement with Solvay Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (later acquired by Abbott Products, Inc.) for
TLANDO. As part of the termination, the Company reacquired the rights to the intellectual property from Abbott. All
obligations under the prior license agreement have been completed except that Lipocine will owe Abbott a perpetual 1 % royalty
on net sales. Such royalties are limited to $ 1. 0 million in the first two calendar years following product launch, after which
period there is not a cap on royalties and no maximum aggregate amount. [f generic versions of any such product are introduced,
then royalties are reduced by 50 %. The Company incurred royalty expense of $ 24, 000 and $ 34 ;-600-ard-$42-, 000 in the
years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and2022-, respectively. ( fbyAntares Pharma; tre-OnOetober 14,202 the
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Contract Research and Beve}epﬂieﬂt—DevelopmentThe T—he—Company has entered into dgeements Wlth various contmct
organizations that conduct preclinical, clinical, analytical and manufacturing development work on behalf of the Company as
well as a number of independent contractors, primarily clinical researchers, who serve as advisors to the Company. The
Company incurred expenses of $ 4. 1 million and $ 6. 7 mithemand-$5—6-million under these agreements in 2024 and 2023

and2022-and has recorded these expenses in research and dev elopment expenses (5) -I:eaﬂ—aﬂd—Seeﬂr—&y%gfeemeﬁt—Sﬁ-teeﬁ
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Equlpment Plopelty and eqmpment Cormsted of the follovx ng: Schedule of Property and Equ1pment 2024 2023 2622-Years
Ended December 31, 2024 2023 2022-Computer equipment and software $ 151, 533 $ 66, 830 $-53;-663-Lab and office
equipment 1, -1-89—185 , 052435 1, 180, 052 Furniture and fixtures 51, 404 51, 404 Property and equipment, gross 1, 388,372 1,
298, 286 1528591 ess accumulated depreciation (1, 482223 , 494297 ) (1,453-182 , 536-191 ) Property and equipment, net
$165,075$ 116, 095 $434-589-Depreciation expense for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and2022-was
approximately $ 41, 000 and $ 29, 000 and-, respectively. (6) Deferred Revenue In 2024, the Company recognized deferred
revenue resulting from a distributor’ s prepayment of $ 9-320 , 566, respeetively-000 for TLANDO inventory. Revenue
related to the sale of inventory will be recognized once the inventory has shipped in accordance with the Company’ s
revenue recognition policy . (7) Income Taxes (a) Income Tax Expense Income tax expense consists of: Schedule of Income
Tax Expense 2024 2023 2022-December 31, 2024 2023 2622-U. S. federal $- $- State and local 681 755 é8+Deferred-- Total $
681 $ 755 $681(b) Tax Rate Reeeneiliation-ReconciliationIncome Hreome-tax expense was $ 681 and $ 755 and-$-681,
respectively, for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2622-and-differed from the amounts computed by applying
the U. S. federal income tax rate of 21 % for 2024 and 2023 ard-2622-, respectively, to pretax income from continuing
operations as a result of the following: Schedule of Pretax Income from Continuing Operations 2024 2023 20622-December 31,
2024 2023 2022-Computed “ expected ” tax expense (benefit) $ 1, 897 $ (3, 433, 893 3$5-2,259272-) Increase (reduction) in
income taxes resulting from: Change in valuation allowance 295, 361 3, 619, 564 2;-529-547State and local income taxes, net
of federal income tax benefit 538 596 538-Stock expense 189, 209 319, 214 3H4;186-Research and development tax credits (
434-480 , 858-338 ) ( 422434 , 495-858 ) Orphan drug tax credit ( 26-2 , 245913 ) ( 42-26 , 976-245 ) Warrant Liability ( 3, 605)
(44, 665) (H8;-84H-Other, net 532 1, 042 —Total $ 681 $ 755 $681-(7) Income Taxes — (continued) (c) Significant
Components of Deferred Faxes-TaxesThe Fhe-tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of the
deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities at-as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 and2022-arc presented below: Schedule of
Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities 2024 2023 2022-December 31, 2024 2023 2622-Deferred tax assets: Stock- based
compensation $ 1, +88-058 , 535-082 $ 1, 428-188 , +67535 Net operating loss carryforwards 34, 275,198 35, 108, 766 35;595;
946-Employee benehts 56, 813 45, 592 44—692—Reseduh and development tax credits 6, 694, 003 6, 032, 559 5; 494865
Orphan drug tax credits 1, 277, 891 1, 274, 204 +:246;-982Plant-and-equipment—Sec. 174 Expenses 4, 780, 931 3, 945, 862 +

997-F8FOther deductible temporary differences 88, 657 167, 371 69:243-Total gfess—éefeﬁed-&ﬁﬁissets—47—7-62—8-89—4§—86-8—
556 Netdeferred tax assets § 48, 231, 575 $ 47, 762, 889 -$—4§—86H§6—Def61red tax liabilities: Plant-Property and equipment (

8, 778) (7, 227) £9;-652-Total gress-deferred-taxtiabiities(7H22H(9;-052 Net-deferred tax liabilities § (78 , 227778 ) § (9-7
, 052227 ) Deferred tax asset / deferred tax liability 48, 222,797 47, 755, 662 45;-859;-564-Valuation allowance ( 4748 , 755
222 , 662797 ) (4547 , 859-755 , 564-662 ) Net deferred tax asset $- $- The valuation allowance for deferred tax assets as of
December 31,2024 and 2023 and2022-was § 48. 2 million and $ 47. 8 million and-$-45-9-mitltonrespeetively- The net
change in the valuation allowance was an increase of $ 0. 5 million in 2024 and an increase of $ 1. 9 million in 2023 and-an
terease-of $ 2 9-millienin2022- A valuation allowance has been provided for the full amount of the Company” s net deferred



tax assets as the Company believes it is more likely than not that these benefits will not be realized. In assessing the realizability
of deferred tax assets, management considers whether it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets
will not be realized. The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income
during the periods in which those temporary differences become deductible. Management considers the scheduled reversal of
deferred tax liabilities (including the impact of available carryback and carryforward periods), projected future taxable income,
and tax planning strategies in making this assessment. DECEMBER 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2622-(7) Income Taxes —
(continued) During the year ended December 31, 2013, the Company experienced a change in ownership, as defined by the
Internal Revenue Code, as amended (the “ Code ) under Section 382. A change of ownership occurs when ownership of a
company increases by more than 50 percentage points over a three- year testing period of certain stockholders. As a result of
this ownership change, we determined that our annual limitation on the utilization of our federal net operating loss (“ NOL ™)
and credit carryforwards is approximately $ 1. 1 million per year. We will only be able to utilize $ 9. 8 million of our pre-
ownership change NOL carryforwards and will forgo utilizing $ 3. 3 million of our pre- ownership change NOL carryforwards
and $ 1. 2 million of our pre- change credit carryforwards as a result of this ownership change. We do not account for forgone
NOL and credit carryovers in our deferred tax assets and only account for the NOL and credit carryforwards that will not expire
unutilized as a result of the restrictions of Code Section 382. As of December 31, 2023-2024 , we had NOL and research and
development credit carryforwards for U. S. federal income tax reporting purposes of approximately $ +38-135 . 6-2 million and
$4-5 . 4-0 million, respectively. Approximately $ 33-46 . 7-6 million of the NOL will expire between 2624-2025 and 2034-2035
and $ 52-36 . 4-1 million of the NOL will expire 28352036 through 2037. Pursuant to the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act of 2017, NOL’
s generated in 2018 and subsequent years have an unlimited carryforward therefore the 2024, 2023, 2022, 2020, 2019 and 2018
NOL of $ 52. 5 million can be carried forward indefinitely. The research and development credits will begin to expire in 2033
through 20432044 . We have orphan drug credit carry forwards of approximately $ 1. 3 million which will expire if unused
through 2043-2044 . We also have state NOL and research and development credit carry forwards of approximately $ +28-129 .
9-5 million and $ 1. 7 million, respectively. The Company’ s state NOL ef$-3+2-mithen-will not expirc between2024-and
2029-and-$-97-but can be used until exhausted under Utah Code Section 59- 7 - 110 m-rl-l-teﬁ—wrl-l—exptre—m—z@%@—threugh
2637 The state research and development credits expire in 2624-2025 through 2038. The Company’ s federal and state income
tax returns for December 31, 2028-2021 through 2023-2024 are open tax years. A reconciliation of the beginning and ending
amount of total unrecognized tax contingencies, excluding interest and penalties, for the years ended December 31, 2024 and
2023 and2022-are as follows: Schedule of Reconciliation of the Beginning and Ending Amount of Total Unrecognized Tax
Contingencies, Excluding Interest and Penalties December 31, 2024 2023 2022-Balance, beginning of year $- $- Balance, end of
year $- $- (8) Leases The Company has a non- cancelable operating lease for office space and laboratory facilities in Salt Lake
City, Utah. On Jannary24-December 2 , 2024, the term of the lease was has-beenextended through February 28, 2625-2026 .
Future minimum lease payments under the non- cancelable operating lease as of December 31, 2623-2024 are: Schedule of
Future Minimum Rental Payments for Operating Leases Operating {eases-Lease Yecar ending December 31: 2024-2025 $ 366
375 , 296-745 2625-2026 61-62 , 346-880 Total minimum lease payments $ 427438 , 636-625 The Company’ s rent expense
was $ 366, 000 and $ 355 7600-and-$34+- 000 for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2022- respectively. (9)
Stockholders’ Equity On May 1, 2023, at the 2023 annual meeting of the stockholders, the Company’ s stockholders approved
an amendment to the Company’ s Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation to effect a reverse stock split at a ratio not
less than 1- for- 5 and not more than 1- for- 20, with the exact ratten— ratio to be set within that range at the discretion of the
Board without further approval or authorization from stockholders. On May 10, 2023, the Company’ s Board approved a reverse
stock split of 1- for- 17. The Company filed the Amendment to its Certificate of Incorporation with the Secretary of the State of
Delaware on May 10, 2023, and the Amendment became effective at 5: 00 pm Eastern Time on May 11, 2023. The Company’ s
shares began trading on a split- adjusted basis on the Nasdaq Capital Market commencing upon market open on May 12, 2023.
All common stock share data and per share price data of the Company reflect the reverse stock split effective May 11, 2023. O
June-8-The Company is authorized to issue up to 200 . 000, 000 shares of its common stock, par value $ 0. 0001. (a)
Issuance of Common StockOn April 26, 2022-2024 , at-the 2622-annuat-meeting-of Company entered into a sales
agreement with A. G. P. ( the steekholders A. G. P. Sales Agreement ) pursuant to which the Company may issue and
sell , from time to time, shares of its common stock having an aggregate offering price of up to the amount the Company
registered on an effective registration statement pursuant to which the offering is being made. The Company currently
has registered $ 10, 616, 169 shares of common shares for sale under the Sales Agreement, pursuant to the Registration
Statement on Form S- 3, as amended (Flle No 333 275716) (the “ Form S- 3 ”), through A. G P. as the Company s sales

the Company s common stock by any method permltted by law

deemed —pa-&vahte—$—9—999—1—frem—l—(—)9—(—)(—)9—999—s-hafes—to be an “ at %Ge—eee—eeeehares#he—eempaw—ﬁ-}ed-the market

ef—Belawa-re—(a) }ssuaﬂee-(4) of the Securltles Act, mcludmg sales made d1rectly on or through the Nasdaq Capltal Market
or any other existing trade market for our Common-common SteekOn-The Company currently has registered up to $
50.0 million for sale under the Sales Agreement,pursuant to the Registration Statement on Form S- 3 (File No.333-
250072) through Cantor as the Company’ s sales agent.Cantor may sell the Company’ s common stock by any method
permitted by law deemed to be an “ at the market offering ” as defined in Rule 415 (a) (4) of the Securities Act,including
sales made directly on or through the NASDAQ Capital Market or any other existing trade market for our common
stock,in negotiated transactions at market prices prevailing at the time of sale or at prices related to prevailing market prices,or
any other method permitted by law. Cantor A-G-R-wiH-use-uses its commercially reasonable efforts consistent with its normal



trading and sales practices and applicable law and regulations to sell these shares underthe-A-. G-PR-SalesAgreement—The
Company wittpay-pays Cantor A-G-P-3.0 % of the aggregate gross proceeds from each sale of shares under the A-G-P—Sales
Agreement In addltron the Company has also provrded Cantor -A—G—P—wnh customary 1ndemn1ﬂcatron rlghts The shafes—e-f—t-he

oﬂe—eﬁmefe—pfespeefus—supplemeﬁfs.—’Phe—Company 1s not obllgated to make any sales of its common stock under the A=GP-
Sales Agreement.The offering of common stock pursuant to the A-G-P--Sales Agreement will terminate upon the termination of
the A=G-P-Sales Agreement as permitted therein.The Company and Cantor A-G-P—may each terminate the A-GP—Sales
Agreement at any time upon ten days ’ prior notice.(9) Stockholders’ Equity — (continued) March 6, 2017, the Company
entered into a sales agreement (““ Sales Agreement ) with Cantor Fitzgerald & Co. (“ Cantor ") pursuant to which the Company
may-could issue and sell, from time to time, shares of its common stock having an aggregate offering price of up to the amount
the Company registered on an effective registration statement pursuant to which the offering is being made. The Company
currently has registered up to...... Stockholders® Equity — (continued) As of December 31, 2623-2024 , we had sold an aggregate
0f 964-996 , 71821 shares at a weighted- average sales price of $ 34-33 . 52-62 per share under the At the Market Offering (the
“ ATM Offering ) Cantor Sales Agreement for aggregate gross proceeds of § 33. 3-5 million and net proceeds of $ 32. +4
million, after deducting sales agent commission and discounts and our other offering costs. During the year ended December 31,
%92—3—2024 the Company sold -8-1—32 999—110 shares of its common stock pursuant to the Cantor A—’l“—M—e-ffeﬂﬂg—at—a—wetghted-
avera e he-Sales Agreement . On
2024 -the Cantor

Serles B Preferred -SteeleStockOn Gﬂ—March 7, 2023 the Board of the Company declared a d1V1dend of one one- thousandth (1
/1, 000th) of a share of Series B Preferred Stock, par Value $ 0. 0001 per share (““ Series B Preferred Stock ), for each
outstanding share of common stock of the Company, to stockholders of record on March 24, 2023. The Certificate of
Designation of Series B Preferred Stock (the * Certificate of Designation ) was filed with the Delaware Secretary of State and
became effective on March 10, 2023. The dividend was based on the number of shares of outstanding common stock on March
24,2023, and resulted in 88, 511 Series B Preferred shares being issued. Each whole share of Series B Preferred Stock entitled
the holder thereof to 1, 000, 000 votes per share, and each fraction of a share of Series B Preferred Stock had a ratable number of
votes. Thus, each one- thousandth of a share of Series B Preferred Stock was entitled to 1, 000 votes. The outstanding shares of
Series B Preferred Stock were entitled to vote together with the outstanding shares of common stock as a single class exclusively
with respect to any proposal to adopt an amendment to the Company’ s Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation, as
amended (the “ Certificate of Incorporation ), to effect a reverse stock split of the outstanding shares of Common Stock at a
ratio determined in accordance with the terms of such amendment (the “ Reverse Stock Split ), and (ii) any proposal to adjourn
any meeting of stockholders called for the purpose of voting on the Reverse Stock Split (the “ Adjournment Proposal ) in
conjunction with the Company’ s 2023 annual meeting of stockholders. All shares of Series B Preferred Stock that were not
present in person or by proxy at the 2023 annual meeting as of immediately prior to the opening of the polls (the * Initial
Redemption Time ) were automatically redeemed by the Company without further action on the part of the Company or the
holder of shares of Series B Preferred Stock (the * Initial Redemption ”’). The remaining shares of Series B Preferred Stock that
were not redeemed pursuant to the Initial Redemption were redeemed automatically upon the effectiveness of the amendment to
the Certificate of Incorporation implementing the Reverse Stock Split (the “ Subsequent Redemption ). Each “ beneficial owner
” (as such terms are defined in the Certificate of Designation with respect to the Series B Preferred Stock) of shares of Series B
Preferred Stock redeemed in the redemptions described above has the right to receive an amount equal to $ 0. 01 in cash for each
ten whole shares of Series B Preferred Stock that were *“ beneficially owned ” by the beneficial owner as of immediately prior to
the applicable redemption time and redeemed pursuant to such redemption, payable upon receipt by the Company of a written
request submitted by the applicable beneficial owner to the corporate secretary of the Company following the applicable
redemption time. The Series B Preferred Stock was not convertible into, or exchangeable for, shares of any other class or series
of stock or other securities of the Company. The Series B Preferred Stock had no stated maturity and was not subject to any
sinking fund. The Series B Preferred Stock was not subject to any restriction on the redemption or repurchase of shares by the
Company while there is any arrearage in the payment of dividends or sinking fund installments. (9) Stockholders’ Equity —
(continued) The Company was not solely in control of the redemption of the shares of Series B Preferred Stock prior to the
annual meeting of stockholders since the holders had the option of deciding whether to vote in respect of the above- described
Reverse Stock Split, which determined whether a given holder’ s shares of Series B Preferred Stock was redeemed in the Initial
Redemption or the Subsequent Redemption. Since the redemption of the Series B Preferred Stock was not solely in the control
of the Company, the shares of Series B Preferred Stock were classified within the mezzanine equity in the Company’ s
unaudited consolidated statement of stockholder’ s equity. Upon issuance, the shares of Series B Preferred Stock were measured
at redemption Value On May 10 As—e-f—}tme—?}@— 2023 all shares of Serres B Preferred Stock had been redeemed by the

M&reh—l—@—292—3— (C) Rrghts AgreementOn November l3 2015, the Company and Amerrcan Stock Transfer & Trust Company,
LLC, as Rights Agent, entered into a Rights Agreement. Also on November 12, 2015, the board of directors of the Company



authorized and the Company declared a dividend of one preferred stock purchase right (each a ““ Right ”” and collectively, the *
Rights ”) for each outstanding share of common stock of the Company. The dividend was payable to stockholders of record as
of the close of business on November 30, 2015 and entitles the registered holder to purchase from the Company one one-
thousandth of a fully paid non- assessable share of Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock of the Company at a price of $
63. 96 per one- thousandth share (the “ Purchase Price ™). The Rights will generally become exercisable upon the earlier to
occur of (i) 10 business days following a public announcement that a person or group of affiliated or associated persons has
become an Acquiring Person (as defined below) or (ii) 10 business days (or such later date as may be determined by action of
the board of directors prior to such time as any person or group of affiliated or associated persons becomes an Acquiring Person)
following the commencement of, or announcement of an intention to make, a tender offer or exchange offer the consummation
of which would result in the beneficial ownership by a person or group of 15 % or more of the outstanding common stock of the
Company. Except in certain situations, a person or group of affiliated or associated persons becomes an “ Acquiring Person ”’
upon acquiring beneficial ownership of 15 % or more of the outstanding shares of common stock of the Company. In general, in
the event a person becomes an Acquiring Person, then each Right not owned by such Acquiring Person will entitle its holder to
purchase from the Company, at the Right’ s then current exercise price, in lieu of shares of Series A Junior Participating
Preferred Stock, common stock of the Company with a market value of twice the Purchase Price. In addition, if after any person
has become an Acquiring Person, (a) the Company is acquired in a merger or other business combination, or (b) 50 % or more
of the Company’ s assets, or assets accounting for 50 % or more of its earning power, are sold, leased, exchanged or otherwise
transferred (in one or more transactions), proper provision shall be made so that each holder of a Right (other than the Acquiring
Person, its affiliates and associates and certain transferees thereof, whose Rights became void) shall thereafter have the right to
purchase from the acquiring corporation, for the Purchase Price, that number of shares of common stock of the acquiring
corporation which at the time of such transaction would have a market value of twice the Purchase Price. The Company will be
entitled to redeem the Rights at $ 0. 001 per Right at any time prior to the time an Acquiring Person becomes such. The terms of
the Rights are set forth in the Rights Agreement, which is summarized in the Company’ s Current Report on Form 8- K dated
November 13, 2015. The rights plan was originally set to expire on November 12, 2018; however, on November 5, 2018 our
Board of Directors approved an Amended and Restated Rights Agreement pursuant to which the expiration date was extended to
November 5, 2021 . On and-againen-November 1, 2021, the Company adopted a Second Amended and Restated Rights
Agreement pursuant to which the expiration date was extended to November 1, 2024 . On October 22, 2024, the Company
adopted a Third Amended and Restated Rights Agreement extending the expiration until October 22, 2027 , unless the
rights are earlier redeemed or exchanged by the Company. (d) Stock Option Ptan-PlanIn f-April 2014, the beard-Board of
direeters-Directors adopted the 2014 Stock and Incentive Plan (“ 2014 Plan ™) subject to shareholder approval which was
received in June 2014. The 2014 Plan provides for the granting of nonqualified and incentive stock options, stock appreciation
rights, restricted stock units, restricted stock and dividend equivalents. An aggregate of 58, 823 shares were authorized for
issuance under the 2014 Plan. Additionally, 15, 994 remaining authorized shares under the 2011 Equity Incentive Plan (“ 2011
Plan ) were issuable under the 2014 Plan at the time of the 2014 Plan adoption. Upon receiving shareholder approval in June
2016, the 2014 Plan was amended and restated to increase the authorized number of shares of common stock of the Company
issuable under all awards granted under the 2014 Plan from 74, 817 to 145, 405. Additionally, upon receiving shareholder
approval in June 2018, the 2014 Plan was further amended and restated to increase the authorized number of shares of common
stock of the Company issuable under all awards granted under the 2014 Plan from 145, 405 to 189, 522. Finally;upen-Upon
receiving shareholder approval in June 2020, the 2014 Plan was further amended and restated to increase the authorized number
of shares of common stock of the Company issuable under all awards granted under the 2014 Plan from 189, 522 to 336, 582. In
June 2024, the 2014 Plan was further amended and restated to increase the authorized number of shares of common
stock of the Company issuable under all awards granted from 336, 582 to 600, 000. The board-Board of direeters-Directors
, on an option- by- option basis, determines-approves the number of shares, exercise price, term, and vesting period for options
granted. Options granted generally have a ten- year contractual life. The Company issues shares of common stock upon the
exercise of options with the source of those shares of common stock being either newly issued shares or shares held in treasury.
An aggregate of 336-600 , 582-000 shares are authorized for issuance under the 2014 Plan, with 48217 , 422-305 shares
remaining available for grant as of December 31, 2623-2024 . A summary of stock option activity is as follows: Schedule of
Stock Option Activity Outstanding stock options Number of shares Weighted average exercise price Balance at December 31,
2022 277,225 $ 38. 44 Options granted 26, 467 6. 19 Options exercised-- Options forfeited (7, 352) 6. 91 Options cancelled
(34,093) 52. 72 Balance at December 31, 2023 262, 247 34. 21 Options granted 84, 715 4. 79 Options exercised-- Options
forfeited (10, 209) 142. 99 Options cancelled (1, 495) 5. 23 Balance at December 31, 2024 335, 258 23. 59 Options
exercisable at December 31, 2623-2024 +94-232 | 228-42-902 31 . 72-62 ( 9-d ) Steckhotders™Equity—Stock Option Plan-
(continued) The following teble-tables summarizes-- summarize information about stock options outstanding and exercisable at
as of December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023: Schedule of Share- based Compensation of Stock Options Outstanding and
ExereisableOptions-ExercisableAs of December 31, 2024 Options outstanding Options exercisable Number outstanding
Weighted average remaining contractual life (Years) Weighted average exercise price Aggregate intrinsic value Number
exerciseable Weighted average remaining contractual life (Years) Weighted average exercise price Aggregate intrinsic
value 335, 258 6. 75 $ 23. 59 $ 29, 299 232, 902 S. 61 $ 31. 62 $ 3, 175 As of December 31, 2023 Options outstanding Options
exercisable Number outstanding Weighted average remaining contractual life (Years) Weighted average exercise price
Aggregate intrinsic value Number exerciseable Weighted average remaining contractual life (Years) Weighted average exercise
price Aggregate intrinsic value 262, 247 6. 60 $ 34. 21 $- 194, 228 5. 84 $ 42. 72 $- The intrinsic value for stock options is
defined as the difference between the current market value and the exercise price. No Fhe-tetalintrinste-valae-efstock options
were exercised during the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-. The aggregate intrinsic value of outstanding stock



optlons as of December 31 %(-)2—2—2024 —and 2023 was approxnmately $ 29, 000 and $ 0 aﬂd—$—l—7-3—999—respeefﬁfel-y—’llhefe
A 3 8 7 , respectively. (¢) Common

Stock W&ﬁaﬂfs—WarrantsThe Fhe-Company account% for its common Stock Warrant% under ASC 480, Distinguishing Liabilities
from Equity, which requires any financial instrument, other than an outstanding share, that, at inception, embodies an obligation
to repurchase the issuer’ s equity shares, or is indexed to such an obligation, and requires or may require the issuer to settle the
obligation by transferring assets, to be classified as a liability. In accordance with ASC 480, the Company’ s outstanding
warrants from the November 2019 Offering are classified as a liability. The liability is adjusted to fair value at each reporting
period, with the changes in fair value recognized as gain (loss) on change in fair value of warranty liability in the Company’ s
consolidated statements of operations. The warrants issued in the November 2019 Offering aew-allowed the warrant holder, if
certain change in control events had eeeur-occurred , the option to receive an amount of cash equal to the value of the warrants
as determined in accordance with the Black- Scholes option pricing model with certain defined assumptions upon a fundamental
transaction. As of December 31, 2623-2024 and-2022-, the Company-had-04, 362 warrants that had been outstanding from the
November 2019 Offering to purchase an equal number of shares of common stock had expired . The fair value of these
warrants on November 18, 2019 (closing date of November 2019 Offering) and December 31, 2023 were and2022-was
determined using the Black- Scholes option pricing model with the following Level 3 inputs (as defined in the November 2019
Offering): Schedule of Fair Value of Warrants December 31, 2023 Beeember34,2022-November 18, 2019 Expected life in
years 0 =88+ 88 5. 00 Risk- free interest rate 4. 79 %54—4+% 1. 63 % Dividend yield — — —Volatility +86-686-%-100. 00 %
224. 47 % Stock price $ 2. 79 $ 6. FF$6-89 During the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and2022- the Company
recorded #non- cash gair-gains of $ 17, 000 and $ 213 ;-0086-ard-$566-, 000, respectively, from the change in fair value of the
November 2019 Offering warrants. The following table is a reconciliation of the warrant liability measured at fair value using
level 3 inputs: Schedule of Reconciliation of Warrant Liability Warrant Liability Balance at December 31, 2022 § 229, 856
Change in fair value of common stock warrants (212, 690) Balance at December 31, 2023 17, 166 Change in fair value of
common stock warrants (17, 166) Balance at December 31, 2024 $ - +7366-Additionally, in the February 2020 Offering, the
Company issued 296, 593 common stock warrants. However, because these warrants do not provide the warrant holder the
option to put the warrant back to the Company, the warrants are classified as equity. As of December 31, 2823-2024 , there were
49, 433 warrants outstanding that were issued in the February 2020 Offering which, if not exercised, will expire on February
27,2025 . The following table summarizes the number of common stock warrants outstanding and the weighted average
exercise price: Schedule of Number of Warrants Outstanding and the Weighted Average Exercise Price Warrants Weighted
Average Exercise Price Outstanding at December 31, 2022 113, 795 $ 8. 72 Issued-- Exercised-- Expired-- Cancelled--
Forfeited-- Outstanding at December 31, 2023 113, 795 $ 8. 72 Issued-- Exercised-- Expired (64, 362) 8. 50 Cancelled--
Forfelted-- Balance at December 31, %92—3—2024 -1—1-3—49 -7-95—433 $89 .01 %—Bﬁﬂﬁg—ﬂ&e—ye&fs-eﬂded-laeeem-ber—}%—aﬁé

e 6 e etsed—The following table-tables
summarizes-- summarize 1nformat10n about common 9tock warrants outstandmg at-as of December 31, 2024 and December
31,2023: Schedule of Common Stock Warrants OutstandingWarrants-OutstandingAs of December 31, 2024 Warrants
outstanding Number exercisable Weighted average remaining contractual life (Years) Weighted average exercise price
Aggregate intrinsic value 49, 433 0. 16 $ 9. 01 $- As of December 31, 2023 Warrants outstanding Number exercisable
Weighted average remaining contractual life (Years) Weighted average exercise price Aggregate intrinsic value 113,795 1. 00 $
8.72 $-(10) 401 (k) Plan On January 1, 2002, the Company adopted a tax qualified employee savings and retirement plan (the
“401 (k) Plan ) covering eligible employees. Pursuant to the 401 (k) Plan, employees may elect to reduce current compensation
by a percentage of eligible compensation, not to exceed legal limits, and contribute the amount of such reduction to the 401 (k)
Plan. Beginning April 1, 2014, the 401 (k) Plan was amended to require matching contributions to the 401 (k) Plan by the
Company on behalf of the participants of 100 percent Company match on up to four percent of an employee’ s compensation
computed on a per pay period basis. The Company contributed $ 109, 000 and $ 102 ;-806-ard-$94-, 000, respectively, to the
401 (k) Plan during the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and2622-. (11) Commitments and Contingencies The
Company is involved in various lawsuits, claims and other legal matters from time to time that arise in the ordinary course of
conducting business. The Company record% a hablhty When a partlcular Contlngency is probable and estimable —OnAprt2;




shareholder class action lawsuit, Solomon Abady v. Lipocine Inc. et al., 2: 19- cv- 00906- PMW, filed in the United District
Court for the District of Utah. The complaint alleges that the defendants made false and / or misleading statements and / or failed
to disclose that the Company’ s filing of the NDA for TLANDO to the FDA contained deficiencies and as a result the
defendants’ statements about our business and operations were false and misleading and / or lacked a reasonable basis in
violation of federal securities laws. The lawsuit seeks certification as a class action (for a purported class of purchasers of the
Company’ s securities from March 27, 2019 through November 8, 2019), compensatory damages in an unspecified amount, and
unspecified equitable or injunctive relief. The Company has insurance that covers claims of this nature. On April 14, 2023, a
judgment was issued ordering the case dismissed with prejudice and closure of the action. (—I—H—Geﬂafﬂrt-mem:s—aﬂd—eefmﬂgeﬁetes
feentimed)-Management does not currently believe that any other matter, individually or in the aggregate, will have a material
adverse effect on our financial condition, liquidity or results of operations. Guarantees and Indemnifications In the ordinary
course of business, the Company enters into agreements, such as lease agreements, licensing agreements, clinical trial
agreements, and certain services agreements, containing standard guarantee and / or indemnifications provisions. Additionally,
the Company has indemnified its directors and officers to the maximum extent permitted under the laws of the State of
Delaware. (12) Agreement with Spriaso, LLC The Company has a license and a services agreement with Spriaso, a related-
party that is majority- owned by certain current and former directors of Lipocine Inc. and their affiliates. Under the license
agreement, the Company assigned and transferred to Spriaso all of the Company’ s rights, title and interest in its intellectual
property to develop products for the cough and cold field. In addition, Spriaso received all rights and obligations under the
Company’ s product development agreement with a third- party. In exchange, the Company will receive a royalty of 20 percent
of the net proceeds received by Spriaso, up to a maximum of $ 10. 0 million. Spriaso also granted back to the Company an
exclusive license to such intellectual property to develop products outside of the cough and cold field. The Company also agreed
to continue providing up to 10 percent of the services of certain employees to Spriaso for a period of time. The agreement to
provide services expired in 2021; however, it may be extended upon written agreement of Spriaso and the Company. The
Company did not receive any reimbursements from Spriaso for the years ended December 31, 2024 or 2023 and-2022;
respeettvely-. Additionally, during the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and2022-, the Company received $ 0 and $
110, 000 and-$-0-, respectively, in royalty revenue from Spriaso. Spriaso filed its first NDA and as an affiliated entity of the
Company, it used up the one- time waiver for user fees for a small business submitting its first human drug application to the
FDA. Spriaso is considered a variable interest entity under the FASB ASC Topic 810- 10, Consolidations, however the
Company is not the primary beneficiary and has therefore not consolidated Spriaso. (13) SubsequentEvents-OnJanuary12
Segment Reporting Operating segments are defined as components of an entity for which separate financial information
is available and that is regularly reviewed by the Chief Operating Decision Maker (“ CODM ”) in deciding how to
allocate resources to an individual segment and in assessing performance. The Company operates as a single reporting
segment, focused on leveraging its proprietary technology platform to augment therapeutics through effective oral
delivery of products and product candidates. The Company’ s measure of segment profit or loss is net income (loss). The
CODM is the chief executive officer (“ CEO ). The CODM manages and allocates resources to the operations of the
Company on a total company basis. Managing and allocating resources on a consolidated basis enables the CEO to
assess the overall level of resources available and how to best deploy these resources across functions, therapeutic target
areas and research and development projects that are in line with the Company’ s long- term company- wide strategic
goals. Consistent with this decision- making process, the CEO uses consolidated financial information for purposes of
evaluating performance, forecasting future period financial results, allocating resources and setting incentive targets.
Operating expenses are used to monitor budget versus actual results. The monitoring of budgeted versus actual results
are used in assessing performance of the segment. All the Company’ s long- lived assets are held in the United States and
all the Company’ s revenues are primarily related to TLANDO. The following table is representative of the significant
expense categories regularly provided to the CODM when managing the Company’ s single reporting segment. A
reconciliation to the consolldated net income (loss) for the years ended December 31,2024 —and 2023 is 1ncluded at the
bottom y v ecttieals he-eomme atiorr-of the table
below. Schedule of Slgmﬁcant Expense Categorles 2024 2023 Year Ended December 31, 2024 2023 Total revenues $ 11,
198, 144 $ (2, 850, 818) Program expenses (1) LPCN 1154 (1) 3, 628, 033 2, 631, 643 LPCN 1148 (1) 78, 796 3, 200, 730
TLANDO ®-1-(1) 168, 814 752, 652 the-Other research H—S—and ferthe-development programs and-eommeretatization
rightsto-TEANDO-XR-in-Canada-as-deseribedinNote-4- e-1 ) 857, 107 622, 741 Non- program expenses (2) (2) 3, 675, 349
3, 371, 120 Personnel costs 3, 536, 529 3, 846, 816 Stock- based compensation 408, 551 654, 438 Total segment operating
income (loss) (3) (1, 155, 035) (17, 930, 958) Other income (loss) (3) 1, 163, 387 1, 578, 787 Net income (loss) $ 8, 352 § (16,
352, 171) (1) Includes external research and development expenses. (2) Includes general and administrative expenses,
information technology, infrastructure, facilities, and intellectual property, and legal and professional fees. (3) Includes
interest income and gain on warrant liability . [TEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS
ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL PISEEOSURE-DISCLOSUREITEM HEM-9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures We maintain “ disclosure controls and procedures ” within the meaning of
Rule 13a- 15 (e) of the-Seeurities Exehange-Aetof 1934-as-amended;or-the Exchange Act. Our disclosure controls and
procedures (““ Disclosure Controls ) are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by us in the reports we file
or submit under the Exchange Act, such as this Annual Report enFerm10-K-, is recorded, processed, summarized and reported
within the time periods specified in the SEC’ s rules and forms. Our Disclosure Controls include, without limitation, controls
and procedures designed to ensure that such information is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our
Chief Executive Officer and Principal Financial Officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.
As of the end of the period covered by this Annual Report enFerm16-K-, we evaluated the effectiveness of the design and




operation of our Disclosure Controls, which was done under the supervision and with the participation of our management,
including our Chief Executive Officer and our Principal Financial Officer. Based on the eentrets-evaluation, our Chief
Executive Officer and Principal Financial Officer have concluded that, as of the date of their evaluation, our Disclosure Controls
were effective as of December 31, 2623-2024 . Management’ s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting Our
management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting. Our internal
control system was designed to provide our management and beard-Board of direetors-Directors reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
GAAP. Internal control over financial reporting has inherent limitations. Internal control over financial reporting is a process
that involves human diligence and compliance and is subject to lapses in judgment and breakdowns resulting from human
failures. Internal control over financial reporting also can be circumvented by collusion or improper management override.
Because of such limitations, there is a risk that material misstatements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis by
internal control over financial reporting. However, these inherent limitations are known features of the financial reporting
process. Therefore, it is possible to design into the process safeguards to reduce, though not eliminate, this risk. Our
management has assessed the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2623-2024 . In
making this assessment, we used the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission in Internal Control- Integrated Framework (2013). Based on our assessment we believe that, as of December 31,
2623-2024 , our internal control over financial reporting is effective based on those criteria. Change in Internal Control over
Financial Reporting During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2623-2024 , there have been no changes in our internal control
over financial reporting (as defined in Rule 13a- 15 (f) under the Exchange Act) that have materially affected, or are reasonably
likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting. ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION During the three
months ended December 31, 2623-2024 , none of our directors or officers adopted or terminated a “ Rule 10- b5- 1 trading
arrangement ” or “ non- Rule 10- b5- 1 trading arrangement ” as each term is identified in Item 408 of Regulation S- K. ITEM
9C. DISCLOSURE REGARDING FOREIGN JURISDICTIONS THAT PREVENT INSPECTIONS Neot applicable. PART
HIITEM HHFEM-10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCECertain
GOVERNANCE-Certain-of the information required by this item will be contained in our definitive Proxy Statement with
respect to our 2024-2025 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, under the captions “ Election of Directors, ” and *“ Compliance with
Section 16 (a) of the Exchange Act ” and is incorporated into this item by reference. ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE
COMPENSATHON-COMPENSATIONThe Fhe-information required by this item will be contained in our definitive Proxy
Statement with respect to our 2624-2025 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, under the captions ““ Executive Compensation ,
Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation , ” ;-and “ Compensation Committee Report ” and is incorporated
into this item by reference. ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND
MANAGEMENT, AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATFERS-MATTERSThe Fhe-information required by this item will
be contained in our definitive Proxy Statement with respect to our 2624-2025 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, under the
captions “ Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management ” and “ Equity Compensation Plan Information
and is incorporated into this item by reference. ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS,
AND DIRECTOR INDERENDENEE-INDEPENDENCEThe Fhe-information required by this item will be contained in our
definitive Proxy Statement with respect to our 2624-2025 Annual Meeting of Stockholders under the captions “ Certain
Relationships and Related Transactions ” and *“ Independence of the Board ” and is incorporated into this item by reference.
ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES-SERVICESThe Fhe-information required by this item will
be contained in our definitive Proxy Statement with respect to our 2624-2025 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, under the caption
“ Principal Accountant Fees and Services ” and is incorporated into this item by reference. PART IWVIFEM-IVITEM 15.
EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES (a) The following documents are filed as part of this Annual
Report on Form 10- K. 1. Financial Statements. The financial statements listed on the accompanying Index to Consolidated
Financial Statements are filed as part of this Annual repert-Report . 2. Financial statement schedules. There are no financial
statements schedules included because they are either not applicable or the required information is shown in the consolidated
financial statements or the notes thereto. 3. Exhibits. The following exhibits are filed or incorporated by reference as part of this
Annual Report Form16-1. INDEX TO EXHIBITSExhibit EXHIBITFSExhibit-Incorporation By Reference Number Exhibit
Description Form SEC File No. Exhibit Filing Date 2. 1 Agreement and Plan of Merger and Reorganization, dated July 24,
2013, by and among Marathon Bar Corp., Lipocine Operating Inc., and MBAR Acquisition Corp. 8- K 333-1782302.17/25/
2013 3. 1 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation 8- K 333- 178230 3.2 7/25/2013 3. 2 Amended and Restated
Bylaws 8- K 333- 178230 3.3 7/25 /2013 3. 3 Certificate of Designation of Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock. 8- K
001-36357 3.1 12/1/2015 3. 4 Certificate of Increase of Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock 8- K 001- 36357 3. 1
11/1/2021 3. 5 Certificate of Amendment to the Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Lipocine Inc. 8- K 001-
363573.46/28/2022 3. 6 Certificate of Designation of Series B Preferred Stock 8- K 001-363573.23/10/2023 3.7
Amendment to the Amended and Restated Bylaws of Lipocine Inc. 8- K 001- 36357 3. 13 /10/2023 3. 8 Certificate of
Amendment to the Amended and Restated Certificated of Incorporation of Lipocine Inc. 8- K 001- 36357 3.25/11/20233.9
Certificate of Amendment to Certificate of Designation of Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock. 8- K 001- 36357
3.110/22/2024 4. 1 Form of Common Stock certificate 8- K 333- 1782304. 1 7/25/2013 4. 2 Second Amended and
Restated Stockholder Rights Agreement dated as of November 1, 2021 by and between the Company and American Stock
Transfer & Trust Company, LLC 8- K 001- 36357 4.1 11/1/2021 4. 3 Form of Pre- Funded Warrant 8- K 001- 36357 4. 1 11/
14 /2019 4. 4 Form of Common....... 6 7 /25 /2013Exhibit 2019Exhibit Incorporation By Reference Number Exhibit
Description Form SEC File No. Exhibit Filing Date 2019 4.4 Form of Common Warrant 8- K 001- 36357 4.2 11 /14 /2019 4.5
Form of Common Warrant 8- K 001- 36357 4.1 2 /26 /2020 4.6 Description of Registered Securities 10- K 001- 363574.63 /9
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Lipocine Inc. Amended and Restated 2011 Equity Incentive Plan 8- K 333- 178230 10.1 7/25/2013 10.2 * * Form of Stock
Option Agreement and Option Grant Notice under the 2011 Equity Incentive Plan 8- K 333- 178230 10.2 7/25 /2013 10.3 * *
Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement and Notice under the 2011 Equity Incentive Plan 8- K 333- 178230 10.3 7/25/
2013 10.4 * * Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement and Notice under the 2011 Equity Incentive Plan 10- K 001- 36357
10.43/31/2014 10.6 Second Lease Extension and Modification Agreement,dated June 21,2011,by and between Lipocine
Inc.and Paradigm Resources,L.C.8- K 333- 178230 10.57/25/2013 10.7 * * Form of Indemnification Agreement by and
between Lipocine Inc.and each of its directors and officers 8- K 333- 178230 10.6 7 / 25 / 2013Exhibit 10. 8 Registration
Rights Agreement, dated May 25, 2004, by and between Lipocine Operating Inc. and Schwarz Pharma Limited (now UCB
Manufacturing Ireland Ltd.) 8- K 333- 178230 10. 8 7/25 /2013 10. 9 Registration Rights Agreement, dated April 20, 2001, by
and among Lipocine Operating Inc., Elan International Services, Ltd., and Elan Pharma International Limited 8- K 333- 178230
10.97/25/2013 10. 10 Form of Securities Purchase Agreement, dated July 26, 2013 8- K 333- 178230 10. 10 7/31/2013 10.
11 Form of Registration Rights Agreement, dated July 26, 2013 8- K 333- 178230 10. 11 7/31 /2013 10. 12 Manufacturing
Agreement, dated August 27, 2013, by and between Lipocine Inc. and Encap Drug Delivery. 8- K 333- 178230 10. 129/5/
2013 10. 13 * * Executive Employment Agreement, dated January 7, 2014, by and between Lipocine Inc. and Dr. Mahesh V.
Patel 8- K 000- 55092 10. 1 1/7/2014 10. 15 Commercial Manufacturing Services and Supply Agreement, dated March 3,
2016, by and between Lipocine Inc. and M. W. Encap Ltd. 10- Q 001- 36357 10. 1 5/9 /2016 10. 16 Controlled Equity
OfferingSM Sales Agreement, dated March 6, 2017, by and between Lipocine Inc. and Cantor Fitzgerald & Co. 10- K 001-
36357 10.223/6/2017 10. 17 * * Vice President Employment Agreement, dated November 5, 2018, by and between Lipocine
Inc. and Nachiappan Chidambaram. 10- Q 001- 36357 10. 1 11/7 /18 10. 18 Loan and Security Agreement dated January 5,
2018 8- K 001-36357 10. 1 1/9/2018 10. 20 Securities Purchase Agreement, dated as of November 14, 2019, by and between
Lipocine, Inc. and the purchasers identified on the signature pages thereto 8- K 001- 36357 10.2 11 /14 /2019 10. 21 Securities
Purchase Agreement, dated as of February 25, 2020, by and between Lipocine, Inc. and the purchasers identified on the
signature pages thereto 8- K 001- 36357 10.2 2 /26 /2020 10. 22 Fourth Amended and....... 1 5/9/2022Exhibit 2020Exhibit
Incorporation By Reference Number Exhibit Description Form SEC File No. Exhibit Filing Date 10. 2626-+6-22 Fourth
Amended and Restated Lipocine Inc.2014 Stock and Incentive Plan S- 8 333- 240197 99.1 07 /30 /2020 10.23 First
Amendment to Loan and Security Agreement,dated February 16,2021,made by and among Lipocine Inc.,Lipocine Operating
Inc.and Silicon Valley Bank 8- K 001- 36357 10.1 2/ 18 /2021 10.24 * * * License Agreement dated October 14,2021,by and
between Lipocine,Inc.and Antares Pharma,Inc.10- Q 001- 36357 10.1 11/10/2021 10.25 * * * Amendment No.1 to
Commercial Manufacturing Services and Supply Agreement between Lipocine,Inc.and MW Encap Ltd.Dated October 13,2021
10- Q 001-36357 10.2 11/10/2021 10.26 * * Principal Accounting Officer Employment Agreement,dated March 7,2022,by
and between Lipocine Inc.and Krista Fogarty.8- K/ A 001- 36357 10.1 3 /7 /2022 10.27 First Amendment to License
Agreement,dated October 14,2021,made by and among Lipocine Inc.,and Antares Pharma,Inc.10- Q 001- 36357 10.15/9/
2022 10. 28 *, * * * License Agreement dated January 12, 2024 by and among Lipocine, Inc., Gordon Silver Limited, and
Verity Pharmaceuticals 10- K 001- 36357 10. 28 3 /7 /2024 10. 29 Lipocine Inc. Fifth Amended and Restated 2014 Stock
and Incentive Plan 8- K 001- 36357 10. 1 6 /3 /2024 19 * Lipocine Inc. Insider Trading Policy 21. | * Subsidiaries 23. 1 *
Consent of Tanner LLC 31. 1 * Certification of Principal Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes- Oxley Act
0f2002. 31. 2 * Certification of Principal Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes- Oxley Act of 2002. 32. 1 *
* * * Certification of Principal Executive Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes- Oxley Act of 2002, 18 U. S. C. 1350.
32.2 * ® * * Certification of Principal Financial Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes- Oxley Act of 2002, 18 U. S. C.
1350. 99%-Lipocine Inc. Clawback Policy 10- K 001- 36357 03 / 07 / 24Exhibit Incorporation By Reference Number
Exhibit Description Form SEC File No. Exhibit Filing Date 101. INS * XBRL Instance Document — the instance document
does not appear in the Interactive Data File because its XBRL tags are embedded within the Inline XBRL document. 101. SCH
* Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document 101. CAL * Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase
Document 101. DEF * Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document 101. LAB * Inline XBRL Taxonomy
Extension Labels Linkbase Document 101. PRE * Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document 104 *
Cover Page Interactive Data File (formatted as Inline XBRL and contained in Exhibit 101) * Filed herewith . * * Management
contract or compensation plan or arrangement . Confidential treatment has been granted with respect to certain portions of this
exhibit. Omitted portions have been submitted separately with the Securities and Exchange Commission. * * * Certain portions
of this exhibit have been omitted pursuant to Item 601 (b) (10) of Regulation S- K. The Registrant hereby undertakes to furnish
to the SEC, upon request, copies of any such instruments. * * * * Furnished herewith. [ITEM 16. FORM 10- K SUMMARY
None-SIGNATURESPursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15 (d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant
has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized. Lipocine Inc. (Registrant)
Dated: March #13 , 2024-2025 / s / Mahesh V. Patel Mahesh V. Patel, President and Chief Executive Officer (Principal
Executive Officer and Principal Financial Officer) Dated: March #13 , 2624-2025 / s / Krista Fogarty Krista Fogarty, Corporate
Controller (Principal Accounting Officer) Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has
been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the date indicated. Signature
Title Date / s / Mahesh V. Patel President and Chief Executive Officer (Principal Executive March 13 , 2624-2025 Mahesh V.
Patel Officer and Principal Financial Officer) / s / Krista Fogarty Corporate Controller (Principal Accounting Officer) March #
13 , 2624-2025 Krista Fogarty /s / Jeffrey Fink Director March 713 , 2624-2025 Jeffrey Fink /s / Jill M. Jene Director March #
13 , 2624-2025 Jill M. Jene / s / John Higuchi Director March 713 , 2624-2025 John Higuchi /s / R. Dana Ono Director March
713, 2624-2025 R. Dana Ono / s / Spyros Papapetropoulos Independent Lead Director and Chairman of the Board March 13 ,
2624-2025 Spyros Papapetropoulos Exhibit +6-LIPOCINE INC . INSIDER TRADING POLICY NOVEMBER 17 28




BACKGROUND The Board ft-he—Stgn-rﬁg—B&te—)—aﬂd—ts—effeem‘e—as—ol Dlrectors of -Febfu&fy—l—29%4—€t-he—E-ffeefwe—Bafe
1)—by—&ﬂel—lm-‘:t—weeﬂ—L1pm1m Inc. —a—Be}a-w&fe-eefpefa-t-teﬂ— Llpoum or theﬁﬂm

the-laws-of British-Columbtathereinafter~Heolding-Company ) has adopted this Ins1der Tradlng Pollcy (6St-the Pollcy
) for our directors , Verity-officers, employees, consultants and their respective affiliates (including entities or trusts that
own Company securities and are controlled by such persons) (“ Covered Persons ”), including those who serve in such
capacities with any of the subsidiaries of Lipocine, with respect to the trading of the Company’ s securities, as well as the
securities of publicly traded companies with whom we have a relationship. Federal and state securities laws prohibit the
purchase or sale of a company’ s securities by persons who are aware of material information about that company that is
not generally known or available to the public. These laws also prohibit persons who are aware of such material
nonpublic information from disclosing this information to others who may trade. Companies and their controlling
persons are also subject to liability if they fail to take reasonable steps to prevent insider trading by company personnel.
It is important that you understand the breadth of activities that constitute illegal insider trading and the consequences,
which can be severe. The U. S. Securities and Exchange Commission, together with U. S. Attorneys, investigate and
pursue insider trading vigorously. Cases have been successfully prosecuted against trading by employees at all levels
through foreign accounts, trading by family members and friends, and trading involving only a small number of shares.
The Company has adopted this Policy both to satisfy the Company’ s obligation to prevent insider trading and to help
Company personnel avoid the severe consequences associated with violations of the insider trading laws. This Policy is
also intended to prevent even the appearance of improper conduct on the part of anyone employed by or associated with
the Company (not just the officers or directors of the Company). It is your obligation to understand and comply with
this Policy. Should you have any questions regarding this Policy, please contact the Compliance Officer: Krista Fogarty,
Corporate Controller, at (801) 994- 7383 or her successor. 1. PENALTIES FOR NONCOMPLIANCE Penalties for
trading on or communicating material nonpublic information can be severe, both for individuals involved in such
unlawful conduct and their employers and supervisors, and may include jail terms, criminal fines, civil penalties and
civil enforcement injunctions. Given the severity of the potential penalties, compliance with this Policy Statement is
absolutely mandatory. Legal Penalties. A person who violates insider trading laws by engaging in transactions in a
company’ s securities when he or she has material nonpublic information can be sentenced to a substantial jail term (up
to 20 years) and required to pay a criminal penalty of several times the amount of profits gained or losses avoided. In
addition, a person who tips others may also be liable for transactions by the tippees to whom he or she has disclosed
material nonpublic information. Tippers can be subject to the same penalties and sanctions as the tippees, and the SEC
has imposed large penalties even when the tipper did not profit from the transaction. The SEC can also seek substantial
civil penalties from any person who, at the time of and- an Holding-insider trading violation, “ directly or indirectly
controlled the person who committed such violation, ” which would apply to the Company and / or management and
supervisory personnel. Even for violations that result in a small or no profit, the SEC can seek substantial penalties from
a company and / or its management and supervisory personnel as control persons. Company- Imposed Sanctions.
Compliance with the policies of the Company is a condition of continued employment or service with the Company of
each employee, officer and director. An employee’ s failure to comply with the Company’ s insider trading policy will
subject the employee to Company- imposed sanctions, which may include dismissal for cause, whether or not the
employee’ s failure to comply results in a violation of law. The Company reserves the right to determine, in its own
discretion and on the basis of the information available to it, whether this Policy has been violated. The Company may
also determine that specific conduct violates this Policy whether or not the conduct also violates the law. It is not
necessary for the Company to wait for the filing or conclusion of a civil or criminal action against the alleged violator
before taking disciplinary action. 2. SCOPE OF POLICY Persons Covered. As a director, officer, employee or
consultant of Lipocine or its subsidiaries this Policy applies to you and any of your affiliates, including any entities or
trusts that you control that own shares of the Company’ s stock. The same restrictions that apply to you apply to your
family members who reside with you, anyone else who lives in your household, and any family members who do not live
in your household but whose transactions in Lipocine securities are directed by you or are subject to your influence or
control (such as parents or children who consult with you before they trade in Lipocine securities). You are responsible
for making sure that the purchase or sale of any security covered by this Policy by any such person complies with this
Policy. Companies Covered. The prohibition on insider trading in this Policy is not limited to trading in Lipocine
securities. It includes trading in the securities of other firms, such as customers or suppliers of Lipocine and those with
which Lipocine may be negotiating material transactions, such as a corporate collaboration, license, acquisition,
investment or sale. Information that is not material to the Company may nevertheless be material to one of those other
firms. The prohibition on insider trading in this Policy also applies to trading in the securities of all other companies
from which you have obtained material nonpublic information in the scope of your employment. Transactions Covered.
Trading includes purchases and sales of stock, derivative securities on hedging transactions such as put and call options
and short and long sales, convertible debentures or preferred stock, and debt securities (debentures, bonds and notes).
Compliance Officer and Compliance Committee: The Company has designated Krista Fogarty, Corporate Controller,



as its Compliance Officer (the “ Compliance Officer ). The Insider Trading Compliance Committee (the “ Compliance
Committee ) will consist of the Compliance Officer and Mahesh Patel, Chief Executive Officer. The Compliance
Committee will review and either approve or prohibit all proposed trades by Covered Persons. 3. STATEMENT OF
POLICY No Trading on Inside Information. You may not trade in the securities of Lipocine, directly or through family
members or other persons or entities, if you are aware of material nonpublic information relating to the Company.
Similarly, you may not trade in the securities of any other company if you are aware of material nonpublic information
about that company which you obtained in the course of your employment with Lipocine. This Policy also applies to your
family members who reside with you, anyone else who lives in your household, and any family members who do not live
in your household but whose transactions in Company securities are directed by you or are subject to your influence or
control (such as parents or children who consult with you before they trade in Company securities). You are responsible
for the transactions of these other persons, and therefore should make them aware of the need to confer with you before
they trade in the Company’ s securities. No Tipping. You may not pass material nonpublic information on to others or
recommend to anyone the purchase or sale of any securities when you are aware of such information. This practice,
known as “ tipping, ” also violates the securities laws and can result in the same civil and criminal penalties that apply to
insider trading, even though you did not trade and did not gain any benefit from another’ s trading. No Exception for
Hardship. The existence of a personal financial emergency does not excuse you from compliance with this Policy.
Transactions that may be necessary or justifiable for independent reasons (such as the need to raise money for an
emergency expenditure) are not excepted from the policy. If the employee, officer or director has material, nonpublic
information, the prohibition still applies. The securities laws do not recognize such mitigating circumstances, and, in any
event, even the appearance of an improper transaction must be avoided to preserve the Company’ s reputation for
adhering to high standards of conduct. Pre- Clearance Procedures. To help prevent inadvertent violations of the federal
securities laws and to avoid even the appearance of trading on the basis of inside information, Lipocine ¢ s board of
directors has adopted certain Pre- Clearance Procedures. All directors, Executive Officers, officers, employees and
consultants, may not engage in any transaction involving Lipocine’ s securities (including an option exercise, or a gift,
loan, pledge or hedge, contribution to a trust or any other transfer) without first obtaining pre- clearance of the
transaction from the Compliance Committee. A request for pre- clearance should be submitted to the Compliance
Officer at least two business days in advance of the proposed transaction whenever possible. However, the Compliance
Officer is under no obligation to approve a trade submitted for pre- clearance, and may determine not to permit the
trade. The Compliance Officer may not trade in Lipocine securities unless the Compliance Committee has approved the
trade (s) in accordance with the procedures set forth in this Policy. Stock Trading Periods (“ Windows ), Blackouts and
Related Procedures. All directors, officers, employees and consultants of the Company are subject hereinaftereoleetively
referred-to certain Windows- Related Procedures including certain Blackout periods when trading in Lipocine shares is
prohibited. In general, directors, officers, employees and consultants of Lipocine are not restricted under this Policy
from buying or selling the Company’ s stock when the trading Window is open as long as they are not in possession of
material nonpublic information and they first obtain pre- clearance for a proposed transaction from the Compliance
Committee, as explained in this Policy. However, directors, officers, employees and consultants may not buy or sell the
Company’ s stock when the Window is closed and a Blackout on trading is in place. The Insider Trading Policy
Compliance Officer will notify directors, officers, employees and consultants, by e- mail or otherwise, that trading of
Lipocine securities or any other company is prohibited (i. e. that the Window is closed and a Blackout on trading is
imposed). Windows will generally be closed during the following time periods and may also be closed during times that
the Company’ s Compliance Committee, in consultation with Company management, deem appropriate (the * Verity
Group-Special Blackout Period ”). WHEREAS-The following closed trading Window applies to all directors , GSE
officers, which is engaged-rdefined to include the Chief Executive Officer , among-Chief Financial Officer, any Vice
President or above of Lipocine, and all financial and accounting personnel of Lipocine and its subsidiaries: ® Quarterly
Closed Window Periods. The Company’ s announcement of its quarterly financial results almost always has the potential
to have a material effect on the market for the Company’ s securities. Therefore, to avoid even the appearance of trading
on the basis of material nonpublic information, you may not trade in the Company’ s securities during the period
beginning the first day after quarter or year end, and ending after the second full business day following the public
dissemination of the Company’ s annual or quarterly financial results (either through a press release or by filing of the
respective Form 8- K, Form 10- Q or 10- K for that quarter or year end). The following trading Windows may apply to
all directors, officers, employees and consultants: e Closed Window Periods or Blackouts for Interim Earnings Releases
and Event- Specific Releases. The Company may on occasion issue interim earnings guidance or other things-potentially
material information such as execution of an important contract , managing-the-dnteHeetual-Property-owned-important
regulatory developments, clinical trial results, or important product development milestones, by orlieensed-te-means of a
press release, SEC filing on Form 8- K, the-other Verityr-Group WHEREASVerity-SEC filing or other means designed to
achieve widespread dissemination of the information. You should anticipate that the window will also be closed while the
Company is engaged-in the process registration;-prometiomrand-eommeretalization-of assembling pharmaeeutieal-produets-in
the information Ferritory—-Whereas;-GSE-desires-to obtain-be released until the second full business day following the
release of that information by the Company. e Closed Window Periods for Results of Clinical Trials. The Company will
onduct clmlcal trlals from time -I:rpeeme,—&ﬂd—lrrpeerﬁe—rs—vﬂ-l-l-r&g—m gfani—te-GSthlme To av01d 1lu appearance of trading
e e-an rys-on the basis of
materlal nonpubllc mformatlon fefms—&ﬂd-eeﬁdmeﬁs—set—fﬁﬂa—hemm—New— -T—hefefefe—based-eﬁ—you may not trade in the
premises-and-Company’ s securities (1) during the mutaat-eovenants-period beginning with the last patient visit of each

v € NDBO c NDO



chmcal trial and ebl-rg&ﬁens—set—fefﬂa—belew—aﬂd-rntend-mg— endlng after to-be-bound-hereby;-the second full business day
o ele-Definitions pHrposes h he-following e&pﬁa-hi‘ed-terms—sh&l-l—ha-ve—lhc

meanrngs—as—set—feﬁh—belew—release of the results of such chnlcal trial by the Company, (2) at any t1me when you become

eeﬂtraet—eretheﬁﬂseﬂﬂ—llerseﬂ—\\l bc successful or unsuccessful or ag-any A’Eﬁ-l-rate—regulatory action related to the

clinical trial by the Company, or (3) at any time when you are aware of material, non- public information relating to the

efﬁcacy or safety data of the chmcal trlals o Closed WllldOW Perlods 01 Regulatory and Commercial Events parposes-of
6 S ot For-You may not trade in the avotdanee

e%detrbt—kfﬁhates—e-ﬁél—SHnelude—l—lel&rng-( ompany ’ § securltles when you are and-Verity——3—"shalthave-the-meaning
aserrbed—te—rt—m possessmn of materlal -Seeﬁen—4—4—l—4%°rnta-res¢me&ns—ﬁntares—P—haﬂﬂa— non- pubhc 1nformat10n relating

en-tered—rn-te—any regulatory filmgs, communications, actions, approvals or demals, or any manufacturmg, clinical or
commercial events or developments, product sourcing, or product launch dates until the second full business day
follow1ng the release of that mformatlon b\ -l:rpeerne—&nd—ﬁntares—pﬂer—te—lhc Company E—ffeet—rve—Bate— ° No 1ns1ders may

any thlrd party that the Speclal Blackout Perlod 1s des1gnated Procedures Relatmg to Trades by Covered Persons and
A 5 A Ren Regardless -l—7%°:ssrgneé

person tradlng as—has notlﬁed a—resu-lt—e-ﬁa—bfeaeh—e-ﬂtlﬂsﬁgfeement—e%lhc Compllance Ofﬁcer feeewrng—ll&rt-y—oﬁts

ed-s Ration 3 arty-in aceordanee-with-thisAgreement-writing of
the amount and nature of the proposed trade (s): (b) lhc person tradlng has certified reeetvingParty-oritsAffittates
already-possessesprior-to reeetptthereoffrom-the Compliance Officer in writing at the time of such proposed trade (s) that
(i) the— he diselosingParty-or she is not in possession of material nonpublic information concerning the Company and (ii)
the proposed trade (s) do not violate the trading restrictions of Section 16 of the Exchange Act or Rule 144 of the
Securities Act ; (c) is-obtained-withoutrestrietion-the person trading has notified and received approval from the
Compllance Commlttee for the ﬁllng of a Form 144 with T—hrrd—Party—te—t he SEC knewleelge—e-ﬂthe—reeewmg—P&rt—y—w&s—net

;or-and (d) the Compliance




Committee has approved the trade (s), and the Compliance Officer has certified such approval in writing. Approved
10b5- 1 Plan Exception. The trading restrictions in this Policy do not apply to transactions under a pre- exiting written
plan, contract, instruction, or arrangement under Rule 10b5- 1 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (an “
Approved 10b5- 1 Plan ”) that meets the requlrement descrlbed in Rule 10b5- 1 and the followmg requlrements ® it has

ett-heréﬁ—has—&n—and AB—r&trﬂg—m—the—Gr&ﬂge—Bﬁeleer—éna—ts—applm ed b\ the Comphance Ofﬁcer at least [ five busmess

days ] in advance of being entered into (or, if revised or amended, such revisions or amendments have been reviewed and
approved by the Compliance Ofﬁcer at least [ five busmess days ]i in advance of bemg entered mto), o it prov1des that no

dentified-by-oronbehalf-of off period speclﬁed G
Agreemeﬂt,—rﬂe-l-&d-mg—m Rule 10b5 any e

(B), and no trades occur untll after that tlme The approprlate coohng- off perlod w1ll vary based on the status of the
Covered Person. For directors and officers, the cooling- off period ends on the later of (x) ninety days after adoption or
certain modifications of the 10b5- | plan; or (y) —53—Launch-Date-means,with-respeet-to-two business days following
disclosure of the Company’ s financial results in a Fteensed-Produet-Form 10- Q or Form 10- K for the quarter in which
the 10b5- 1 plan was adopted. In no case will the cooling- off period for directors and officers exceed 120 days. For all



other Covered Persons, if 2 eeuntry-cooling- off period is required under Rule 10b5- 1 , the date-on-whieh-cooling- off
period ends 30 days after adoption or modification of the 10bS- 1 plan; e it is entered into in good faith by the Covered
Person, and not as part of a plan or scheme to evade the prohibitions of Rule 10b5- 1, at a time when the Covered Person
was not in possession of material nonpublic information about the Company; and, if the Covered Person is a director or
officer, the 10bS- 1 plan must include representations by the Covered Person certifying to that effect; o it gives a third
party the discretionary authority to execute such LieensedProduet-purchases and sales, outside the control of the Covered
Person, so long as such third party does not possess any material nonpublic information about the Company; or
explicitly specifies the security or securities to be purchased or sold, the number of shares, the prices and / or dates of
transactions, or other formula (s) describing such transactions; and e it is firstseld-the only outstanding Approved 10b5-

1 Plan entered into by the Covered Person GSJrrts%fﬁ}tates—eFStl-bheeflsee—te—a—"Pl‘ﬂfd—P&ﬁy— -rﬂel-ttd-mg—a—dts-tﬂ-bttteﬁ—subject

H{a)abever(c) (11) (D)) No Approved 10b5S-1 Plan may be adopted durlng a blackout perlod If you are consnderlng
entering into, modifying or terminating an Approved 10bS- 1 Plan or have any questions regarding Approved 10b5- 1
Plans, please contact the Compliance Officer. You should consult your own legal and tax advisors before entering into,
or modifying or terminating, and-- an alt-isswed-Approved 10bS- 1 Plan. A trading plan, contract, instruction or
arrangement will not qualify as and-- an unexpired-patentsresultingfrom-Approved 10bS- 1 Plan without the prior review
and approval of the Compliance Officer as described above. Exceptions to Trading Prohibitions: The prohibition on
trading in Company securities during Blackout Periods, during Special Blackout Periods, or while otherwise in
possession of material nonpublic information does not generally apply to the following. However, in order to ensure that
you comply with this policy and the insider trading laws, you must still consult with the Compliance Officer prior to
engaging in such transactions. a. purchases made under an employee stock purchase plan operated by the Company;
provided, however, that the securities so acquired may not be sold during a Blackout Period or any Special Blackout
Period; andb. acquisitions or dispoesitions of Company common stock under the applieations-deseribed-in-Company’ s 401
( k) plan, which are made pursuant to standing instructions not entered into or modified during 2 Blackout Period or
Special Blackout Period or while otherwise in possession of material nonpublic information. 4. DEFINITION OF
MATERIAL NONPUBLIC INFORMATION Note that inside information has two important elements- (1 ) or
materiality and ( b-2 ) abeve-public availability. Materiality. Insider trading restrictions come into play only if the
information you possess is “ material. ” Materiality, however, involves a relatively low threshold. Material information is
any information that a reasonable investor would consider important in making a decision to buy, hold or sell securities.
Any information that could be expected to affect the Company’ s stock price, whether it is positive or negative, should be
considered material. Some examples of information that ordinarily would be regarded as material are set forth below
but this list is not exhaustive — other information may be deemed material based upon the circumstances: ® Financial
information, including, but not limited to, revenue results, operating income or loss, or net income or loss ; ® Earnings
that are inconsistent with the consensus expectations of the investment community or other earnings guidance,
projections or budgets; @ News about a significant contract or cancellation of an existing significant contract; e News
about significant new services or lines of business; ® The gain or loss of a significant supplier; ® A pending or proposed
merger, acquisition, joint venture or tender offer; ® A pending or proposed acquisition or disposition of a significant
asset (¢-s ) or facility; @ A change in the Company’ s dividend policy or the declaration of a stock split, ® The
implementation, change in or results of a Company stock buy- back; e A public or private offering of additional
securities, borrowings, credit facilities or other financing transactions; ® A change in the Board of Directors, senior
management or any and-at-issued-and-unexpired-reisstes-other major personnel changes; e Significant legal exposure due
to actual , reexaminations-pending or threatened litigation; or e Impending bankruptcy or the existence of financial or
liquidity problems. Both positive and negative information can be material. Because trading that receives scrutiny will
be evaluated after the fact with the benefit of hindsight , renewals-questions concerning the materiality of particular
information should be resolved in favor of materiality . and trading should be avoided. If you are unsure whether
information is material, you should consult the ComplianceOfficer before making any decision to disclose such
information or to trade in or recommend securities to which that information relates or assume that the information is
material. Public Availability. Insider trading prohibitions come into play only when you possess information that is
material and “ nonpublic. ” The fact information has been disclosed to a few members of the public does not make it
public orfor insider trading purposes. Nonpublic information may include: e Information available to a select group of
analysts or brokers or institutional investors; e Undisclosed facts that are the subject of rumors, even if the rumors are
widely circulated; and e Information that has been entrusted to the Company on a confidential basis until a public
announcement of the information has been made and enough time has elapsed for the market to respond to a public
announcement of the information. If you are aware of material nonpublic information, you may not trade until the
information has been disclosed broadly to the marketplace (such as by press release or an SEC filing) and the investing
public has had time to absorb the information fully. To avoid the appearance of impropriety, as a general rule,
information should not be considered fully absorbed by the marketplace until after the second business day after the
information is released. If, for example, the Company were to make an announcement on a Monday, you should not
trade in the Company’ s securities until Thursday. If an announcement was made on a Friday, Wednesday generally



would be the first eligible trading day after the announcement. 5. ADDITIONAL GUIDANCE Lipocine considers it
improper and inappropriate for those employed by or associated with the Company to engage in short- tcrm extenstons-,
speculative transactions, including derivatives or hedges, in or related to the Company’ s securities or in other
transactions in the Company’ s securities that may lead to inadvertent violations of the insider trading laws. Accordingly,
your trading in the Company’ s securities is subject to the following additional guidance. Short Sales. Short sales of the
Company’ s securities evidence any— an ef-expectation on the patents-deseribed-part of the seller that the securities will
decline in value {a)-, tb)-and therefore signal to the market that the seller has no confidence in the Company or its short-
term prospects. In addition, short sales may reduce the seller’ s incentive to improve the Company’ s performance. o
For these reasons, short sales of the Company’ s securities are prohibited by this Policy. In addition, Section 16 (c)
abeve:-of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended ( e-the “ Exchange Act ” ) prohibits officers and directors
from engaging in short sales. Publicly Traded Options. A transaction in options is, in effect, a bet on the short- term
movement of the Company’ s stock, and therefore creates the appearance that the director, officer or employee is
trading based on inside information. Transactions in options also may focus the director’ s, officer’ s or employee’ s
attention on short- term performance at the expense of the Company’ s long- term objectives. Accordingly, transactions
in puts, calls or other derivative securities involving the Company, on an exchange or in any other organized market, are
prohibited by this Policy. (Option positions arising from certain types of hedging transactions are governed by the
section below captioned “ Hedging Transactions ). Hedging Transactions. Certain forms of hedging or monetization
transactions, such as zero- cost collars and forward sale contracts, allow a director, officer or employee to lock in much of
the value of his or her stock holdings, often in exchange for all fereign-eounterparts-or part of the potential for upside
appreciation in the stock. These transactions allow the director, officer or employee to continue to own the covered
securities, but without the full risks and rewards of ownership. When that occurs, the director, officer or employee may
no longer have the same objectives as the Company’ s other stockholders. Therefore, the Company discourages you from
engaging in such transactions. Any person wishing to enter into such any— an efarrangement must first pre- clear the
patents-desertbedt-(proposed transaction with the Board of Directors. Any request for pre- clearance of a ybj);{(ey
hedgmg or 51mllar arrangement must be submltted to the Chlef F 1nanc1al Ofﬁcer eiefor approval at least one week prlor

that—eeﬂsﬁtute—l-mpfevemeﬁ-ts—lo 1lu -rnveﬁt-teﬁs-deserﬂaed—m—proposed executlon of documents ev1dencmg the patents
proposed transaction and must patent-appheattons-sct forth a justification for the proposed transaction. Exercising
Employee Stock Options. You may exercise your vested options to purchase shares of common stock of the Company for
cash. However, any sale of those shares is subject to the prohibition on trading in Exhibit-the securities under this Policy.
This prohibition applies to cashless exercises and sales made to cover any tax liability arising from the exercise of the
options. Thus, if you choose to exercise stock options when the Window is closed or you are in possession of material
non- public information, then you must hold all of the shares of stock purchased upon such exercise until the Window is
open or the inside information is no longer material or is publicly available. Standing Orders. Standing orders should be
used only for a very brief period of time. A standing order placed with a broker to sell or purchase stock at a specified
price leaves you with no control over the timing of the transaction . A standing order transaction executed by the broker
when you are aware of material nonpublic information may result in unlawful insider trading. However, as previously
explained in this Policy, trades by individuals in the Company’ s securities that are executed pursuant to an Approved
10b5- | Plan are not subject to the prohibition on trading on the basis of material nonpublic information contained in
this Policy or to the restrictions set forth above relating to pre- clearance procedures and Windows . 56-~Fieensed
ProduetmeansTEANDO-®-Margin Accounts and Pledges. Securities held in a margin account may be sold by the
broker without the customer’ s consent if the customer fails to meet a margin call. Similarly, securities pledged (or
hypothecated) as collateral for a loan may be sold in foreclosure if the borrower defaults on the loan. Because a margin
sale or foreclosure sale may occur at a time when the pledgor is aware of material nonpublic information or otherwise is
not permitted to trade in Company securities, directors, officers and other employees are prohibited from holding
Company securities in a margin account or pledging Company securities as collateral for a loan. An exception to this
prohibition exists where a person wishes to pledge Company securities as collateral for a loan (not including margin
debt) and clearly demonstrates the financial capacity to repay the loan without resort to the pledged securities. Any
dlrector or officer of the Company w1sh1ng to enter 1nto such and- an arrangement must first pre FTEANDO-®XR—+-57
y now— clear How——58"Fieensed-Trademarksmean-the
U-nrted—StateHr&elemarks—hsted—rn—E*h&bﬁﬁﬁ—proposed transactlon with the Board of Directors . +Any request for pre-
clearance of a margin account, pledge, or similar arrangement must be submitted to the Compliance Officer for
approval at least one week prior to the proposed execution of documents evidencing the proposed transaction and must
set forth a justification for the proposed transaction . 59--6. POST- TERMINATION TRANSACTIONS This Policy
continues to apply to your transactlons in LIDOL ine -l-ﬂdeﬁaﬂrteesLsha-H-securltles even after you have termmated your

-lesses—rneurred—servnces to Llpoclne or its afﬁllates as follows if you are aware of materlal nonpubllc 1nformatlon when
your employment or service relationship terminates, you may not trade in Lipocine securities until that information has
become public or is no longer material. In all other respects, the procedures set forth in this Policy will cease to apply to
your transactions in Lipocine securities upon the expiration of any closed Window period that is applicable to your
transactions at the time of your termination of employment or services. 7. UNAUTHORIZED DISCLOSURE
Maintaining the confidentiality of Lipocine ¢ s information is essential for competitive, security and other business



reasons, as well as to comply with securities laws and the confidentiality obligations you have promised to the Company
upon commencing your employment or other afﬁliation with the Company You should treat all 1nf0rmat10n you learn

Inadvertent dlsclosure




e : The tlmmg and nature of 2—6-Eieensed
Llpoum S feaseﬁ&b-}e-rnstrueﬁeﬁs—as-dlsclosure of material
mformatlon to out51ders is subJect to legal rules, the breach of -ferm—&ﬂd—maﬂﬂer—rn—\\ ch could result the—bleeﬁseé

GSEacknowledges-and-agrees-that-it is f&mﬁ-raﬂmportant that responses to 1nqu1r1es about Llpocme by the press,
investment analysts or others in the financial community be made on Lipocine’ s behalf only through authorized
individuals. Please consult Lipocine’ s Regulation FD and Corporate Communication Policy for more details regarding
its policy on speaking to the media, financial analysts and investors. 8. PERSONAL RESPONSIBILITY You should
remember that the ultlmate responsrblhty for adherlng to th1s POlle and av01d1ng 1mpr0per trading rests with you the

; ; d ; rtends-to-use-the s-. If you violate this
POlle, Lipocine may feqﬂest—take dlsclplmary actlon agamst you , mcludlng d1sm1ss1ng you for cause. 9. SECTION 16
RESTRICTIONS ON DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS Directors and Executive Officers of the Company
and certain other persons identified by the Company from time to time ;representative-examples-must also comply with the
reporting obligations and limitations on short- swing transactions set forth in Section 16 of the Exchange Act, and the




Lipocine Section 16 Compliance Program administered by the Compliance Officer. The practical effect of these
provisions is that Executive Officers, directors and such other persons who purchase and sell the Company’ s securities
within a six- month perlod must disgorge all advertising-and-promotional-profits to the Company whether or not they had
knowledge of any material nonpublic information. Under these provisions, and so long as certain other criteria are met,
neither the receipt of an option under the Company’ s option plans, nor the exercise of that option is deemed a purchase
under Section 16; however, the sale of any such shares is a sale under Section 16. 10. COMPANY ASSISTANCE Your
compliance with this Policy is of the utmost importance both for you and for the Company. If you have any questions
about this Policy or its application to any proposed transaction, you may obtain additional guidance from the
Compliance Officer at 675 Arapeen Drive, Suite 202, Salt Lake City, Utah 84108 or (801) 994- 7383. Do not try to resolve
uncertainties on whiel-your own, as the Hieensed-TFrademarksrules relating to insider trading arc ssed-often complex, not
always intuitive and carry severe consequences. 11. CERTIFICATION All employees must certify their understanding
of, and intent to comply with, this Policy. A copy of the certification that employees must sign is enclosed with this
Policy. This Policy is dated as of the date set forth on the first page of the Policy. LIPOCINE, INC. INSIDER TRADING
POLICY CERTIFICATION I hereby certify that: 1. I have read and understand the Lipocine Inc. Insider Trading
POlle dated [ ° ], 2023 ( eel-}eet-wel-y—t he M&teﬂaa}s-Pohcy ’). T understand that the Compliance Officer GSEagrees-to
P N otrrea west-and atno-eostto-the outside legal counsel of Lipocine Inc . Fo-(
lm e*teﬂt—“ Company ”?) are avanlable to answer any questlons I have regarding the Policy Statement. 2. I agree that I will
h N ret-comply with the Policy for as long as I am subject terms

e%ﬂ%rs%gfeemeﬂt—]:rpeetﬂe—sh&kl-haﬂfe—fhe—ﬂgh—t—m such pollcy 3 I understand that feqﬁes{—med-rﬁea&eﬁs—te—t-he—maﬁﬁeﬁm




DevelopmentinTerritory—(a)yAs-of the Effeetive Date;-GSE-shall have full power sel-e—eeﬂtfe-l-evehmd éeetsteﬂ-—ma-kmg
authm ity wﬁh—respeet—to cancel any outstanding orders




the Pollcy I further agreeeﬂd-e-ﬁeaeh—ea-}eﬂdaﬁeuaﬁef
: Rifg and #tsAffilatesand-Sublieensees’if

apphe&b’:e)—effeﬁs—represent that I will never trade in Company securities while I am in possession of material nonpublic

1nf0rmat10 rega 1([111(* Beve}epmeﬂt—&nd-Gernmefeta-l-&aﬁeﬂ—eﬂ 1e Company. S. This certification constitutes consent
d-for the Companyﬁe*t—&ﬂd-fhe—resu}ts-e-ﬁsueh—efferts—










EXHIBIT



















eem—E%éH—I—B-I—T—Z—l—l—Llpocme Operatmg Inc. EXHIBIT 23. 1 CONSENT OF lNDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC
ACCOUNTING FIRM The Board of Directors Lipocine Inc.: We consent to the incorporation by reference in the registration
statements (Nos. 333- 250072, 333- 190897, 333- 240197, 333- 226664, 333- 214492, 333- 197421, 333- 191695 and 333-
275716) on Forms S- 3 and S- 8 of Lipocine Inc. of our report dated March 12 , 2624-2025 with respect to the consolidated
balance sheets of Lipocine Inc. as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2022-, and the related consolidated statements of
operations and comprehensive loss, changes in stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related
notes (collectively, the “ consolidated financial statements ”’), which report appears in the December 31, 2623-2024 annual
report on Form 10- K of Lipocine Inc. / s / Tanner LLC Salt Lake City, Utah March 13, 2025 EXHIBIT 31. +
CERHHCEATHONSE- 1CERTIFICATIONS I, Mahesh V. Patel, certify that: 1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form
10- K of Lipocine Inc.; 2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to
state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were
made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report; 3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and
other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of
operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report; 4. The registrant’ s other certifying
officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a- 15 (e) and 15d- 15 (e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a- 15 (f)
and 15d- 15 (f)) for the registrant and have: a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure
controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant,
including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
which this report is being prepared; b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control
over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles; ¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’ s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by
this report based on such evaluation; and-andd €-) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’ s internal control over
financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’ s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’ s fourth fiscal quarter in the
case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’ s internal control
over financial reporting; and-and5 5- The registrant’ s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent
evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’ s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’ s
board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions): a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in
the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’
s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; ard-andb ¥-) Any fraud, whether or not material, that
involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’ s internal control over financial reporting.
Dated: March %13 , 2024-2025 / s / Mahesh V. Patel Mahesh V. Patel, President and Chief Executive Officer (Principal
Executive Officer) EXHIBIT 31. 2Dated: March #13 , 2624-2025 / s / Mahesh V. Patel Mahesh V. Patel (Principal Financial
Officer) EXHIBIT 32. | CERTIFICATION In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10- K of Lipocine Inc. (the
Corporation ™) for the year ended December 31, 2023-2024 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date
hereof (the ““ Report ), the undersigned, Mahesh V. Patel, President and Chief Executive Officer of the Corporation, hereby
certifies, pursuant to Rule 13a- 14 (b) or Rule 15d- 14 (b) and 18 U. S. C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of



the Sarbanes- Oxley Act of 2002, that to his knowledge: (1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13 (a)
or 15 (d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and (2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents,
in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Corporation. Dated: March 713 , 2624-2025 / s /
Mahesh V. Patel Mahesh V. Patel, President and Chief Executive Officer (Principal Executive Officer) EXHIBIT 32. 2In 2
SERTHFHHEAHON—connection with the Annual Report on Form 10- K of Lipocine Inc. (the “ Corporation ) for the year
ended December 31, 2023-2024 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “ Report ), the
undersigned, Mahesh V. Patel, Principal Financial Officer of the Corporation, hereby certifies, pursuant to Rule 1 14 (b) or
Rule 15d- 14 (b) and 18 U. S. C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes- Oxley Act of 2()()2 that to
his knowledge: (Exhtbit07FHROCEINEINCINCENTVE-COMPENSATHONRECOVERYPOLHICY-] )—I-ﬁt-fe&ueﬁe-n—T he
-Beafd-Report fully complles with the requlrements of Sectlon 13 Bﬁeefefs-e%lzrpeetne—lﬂe—( a t-he—€eﬁrp&ny—

ttﬂéeﬁ-he—feéef&l-seettﬂt-tes—l-aws—( dﬂ%e—Pe-l-tey— JPhts—Pehey—m%esrgfted—teeeﬂﬂa}y—ﬁﬂfkrSeeﬁeﬂ—}eB—of the Secuntles
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended , and ( 2 the-“Exchange-Aet>) ;relatedrules-orstandards-of The information contained

in Nasdaq—SfeeH&&ﬂeet—e%aﬂ-y—efher——— the seeurities-exehange-on-whieh-Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the
Company—financial condition and results of operatlons of the Corporatlon Dated March 13, 2025 / s/ Mahesh V sh&fes
a-re—l-ts’fed—rn—t-he—fufttfe— 2—Patel Mahesh V Patel Arelin -







